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[Translation from the original text in Greek]

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of “Coca-Cola Hellenic Bottling Company S.A.”
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of “Coca-Cola Hellenic Bottling Company S.A.” which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of 31 December 2012 and the consolidated income statement and statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

§PricewaterhouseCoopers SA, 268 Kifissias Avenue, 15232 Halandri, Greece
T:+30 210 6874400, F:+30 210 6874444, www.pwc.gr

17 Ethnikis Antistassis Str, 55134 Thessaloniki, T:+30 2310 488880 F:+30 2310 459487
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the “Coca-
Cola Hellenic Bottling Company S.A.” and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2012, and their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European
Union.

Athens, 4 March 2013 The Certified Auditor — Accountant

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Auditors - Accountants

268 Kifissias Avenue, Halandri 152 32 Marios Psaltis

SOEL Reg. No. 113 SOEL Reg. No. 38081

§PricewaterhouseCoopers SA, 268 Kifissias Avenue, 15232 Halandri, Greece
T:+30 210 6874400, F:+30 210 6874444, www.pwc.gr

17 Ethnikis Antistassis Str, 55134 Thessaloniki, T:+30 2310 488880 F:+30 2310 459487
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As at 31 December

2012 2011 2010

Note € million € million € million
Assets
INtANQIDIE ASSELS ....coiiiiiiiii e s et 4 1,944.6 1,935.4 1,954.6
Property, plant and equIPMEeNt ..........ooiceecccmriireeii e 5 3,041.4 2,998.1 3,072.3
Equity method iNVESIMENLS ........oooiiiiiiieeeeee e, 6 168.5 141.7 91.8
Available-for-sale financial asSets .........ccccvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 7 1.7 1.2 1.6
DErVALIVE ASSELS .. coviieieiiiiitie ettt e et e e e e eeaaas 8 35.8 69.5 73.1
Deferred tax ASSELS .....cciiiiiiiiii e et 9 40.1 35.1 34.8
Other NON-CUIMTENt ASSELS ....uvvvvieiiiiimcmcr e eeee s e nre e 10 47.2 47.4 49.3
Total NON-CUIMTENT ASSELS ...uvvuiiiiiiiiiii e eeieee i eeee e eeeeees 5,279.3 5,228.4 5,277.5
INVENTOMIES .eeeeiiei ettt et e ettt e e e e e e e e e e eeaaen 11 458.0 447.7 477.4
Trade reCeIVADIES .........cvvuiiiiii s e e s e e e e e e e e e et e eeeia e e e e e e e e e e eereeaaaens 12 801.3 854.7 870.5
Other receivables and aSSEtS ..........ooi oo, 13 235.5 229.9 234.9
DErVALIVE QSSELS .....ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiemmmmme e e e e e e e eeeee e et eenreeeeaeeeere e 8 13.6 15.7 4.2
CUIMENT TAX ASSELS ..uiiiiiiiii e e eeeeee e e e e e et e e ettt e e e e e et e eeans 23.3 19.7 13.8
Cash and cash equIValEeNtS ..........coooiiiiieeeee s 14 439.1 447 .4 306.7
TOtal CUIMTENE ASSELS ...ooiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiitimmmme e e e e et e eeee e e et e s eenbann e 1,970.8 2,015.1 1,907.5
0] = U= 1T £ 7,250.1 7,243.5 7,185.0
Liabilities
Short-term DOITOWINGS .....ccoiviiiiiiiiie et e 15 555.0 3215 531.2
Cross-CUIrenCy SWap CONIACES .........c.vricemmmmmneiiieeeie e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeseeeenans 8 67.8 — —
Trade PAYADIES .......ooiiiiiiiiiii et sttt 16 435.8 417.8 378.8
Other PAYADIES ... e 16 1,130.5 1,114.3 1,083.9
Current tax HabilitieS .........ooouuiiiiii e, 33.2 57.5 36.6
Total current Habilities ........coooiiiiiii e 2,222.3 1,911.1 2,030.5
LONG-term DOITOWINGS ......ueeiiiiiiiiie et 15 1,604.7 1,939.8 1,662.8
Cross-CUIrenCy SWap CONIACES .........o.vvueemmmmmneiinieeriee e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeeeenans 8 75.6 130.8 136.1
Deferred tax liabilities ............coovviiiceeeecc e 9 177.4 172.1 165.2
NON-CUITENE PrOVISIONS ....ccoiiiiieiiiiees st e e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e seaees 17 149.0 155.4 145.8
Other non-current lIabilities ........ccooeviiiiiiiiiiee e, 14.6 14.1 13.5
Total non-current liabilities ............oooiiimmiiiic e 2,021.3 2,412.2 2,123.4
B 0] = U L= o111 T= TP 4,243.6 4,323.3 4,153.9
Equity
SNAre CaPItaAl ...ceeiiiiiiie e 18 370.2 549.8 183.1
SNare PremiUm ... 18 569.3 569.2 1,119.2
TrEASUNY SNAIES ....eiiiiiiiiiit ettt e e e ettt reee e 19 (54.3) (55.5) (57.2)
Exchange equaliSation rESEIVE ... ceeeeiiiiiieiiieee e 19 (168.1 (199.7 (131.0)
OLNEI TESEIVES ..oneneiiii ettt et e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e eestanaaaeaeeens 19 376.6 380.0 366.4
Retained @arniNgS ....cccvuvriiiiiieiee e s mmcmme e e e e e e e e s e s rmmne e e e e s s ee s 1,895.0 1,660.6 1,465.0
Equity attributable to owners of the parent ...........ccccooevviiiiiiiivevvvnninnnn 2,988.7 2,904.4 2,945.5
NON-CONErOlliNG INLEIESES ....eoiiiiiiiie e smeeeeee e 28 17.8 15.8 85.6
LI ] = 1= o[ 13/ 3,006.5 2,920.2 3,031.1
Total equity and liabilities ............uvvvviimiiiiiieiiece e 7,250.1 7,243.5 7,185.0
(1) Comparative figures have been restated wheressary to reflect changes in accounting policiededailed in Note 1.

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdéhmmnsolidated financial statements
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Year ended 31 December

Note 2012 201% 2010
€ million € million € million

NEL SAIES FEVENUE ....oovieeiiiiiie e eee e 3 7,044.7 6,824.3 6,761.6
COSt Of GOOAS SOIA ..ot (4522.2 (4,254.7  (4,042.7)
GrOSS PrOfit .eeiiiiiieie i it e e e e e e e s e s eeaeae e nae 2,522.5 2,569.6 2,718.9
OPperating EXPENSES ....cceiiiiiiiiitieiit e eaaeaetie e eetae e e e s e s e ssesmamsbsbaeaeeaaaaaaaaans 20 (2,078.1 (2,048.2 (2,048.4)
RESIIUCLUINNG COSES ...oiiiiiiiiiiieiitie ettt 20 (106.7 (71.1) (36.5)
Operating Profit ... 3 337.7 450.3 634.0
T g T= U ToT =N Lo o] 3 o1 TS 10.4 8.7 6.9
FINANCE COSES ...utiiiiiiiiiiiie et ettt et e e nnnee e e es (98.0) (96.1) (82.8)
Loss on net monetary POSITION ............ .o e eeseestiriieieee e e e e e e e smmnnaes 21 (3.1) (7.8) —
Total fiINANCE COSES, NEL ....eviiiiiiiiee e 21 (90.7) (95.2) (75.9)
Share of results of equity method iNVeStMents . .......occvvveiiiicas e, 6 11.6 9.4 10.4
Profit DEFOre taX ....ccveviiiiiiiiiiiis v e 258.6 364.5 568.5
B I Y G PP OO P PP PPPPON 3,22 (65.2) (98.8] (137.8)
Profit @fter taX ......oveveeiiiiiiiii e e 193.4 265.7 430.7
Attributable to:
OWNErS Of the PAIENT .....coiiiiiiii ittt e 190.4 264.4 421.0
Non-controlling interests 3.0 1.3 9.7

193.4 265.7 430.7
Basic and diluted earnings per Share (€) ..ceeeeeevoovieeeiiiiemieiee e 23 0.52 0.73 1.16
(1) Comparative figures have been restated wheressary to reflect changes in accounting policsededailed in Note 1.

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdéhmmnsolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Items that may be subsequently reclassified to

income statement:

Available-for-sale financial assets:

Valuation (gains)/losses reclassified to

profit and loss for the year

Cash flow hedges:

Amounts of (losses) / gains during the year.............
Amounts of losses reclassified to

profit and loss for the year
Foreign currency translation

Share of other comprehensive income of

equity method investments ...............

Income tax relating to items that may be subsedyent
reclassified to income statement (refer to Netg .2.....

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified

to income statement:
Actuarial (losses) / gains

Income tax relating to items that will not be supsntly
reclassified to income statement (refer to Netg .2.....

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax (refer to Note 24) .......cccceeevmmeeeeeevcmeneennn,
Total comprehensive income for the yeat..................

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Year ended 31 December

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
193.4 265.7 430.7
0.2 (0.4) 0.5
— 0.2 — (0.4) (2.8) (2.3)
(22.9) 5.3 (11.3)
9.5 (13.4) 3.1 8.4 2.0 (9.3)
324 (54.4) 182.0
(0.8) (0.6) 0.9
2.9 (2.6) 0.3
21.3 (49.6) 171.6
(15.2) 27.7) 6.1
2.6 5.7 (1.3)
(12.6) (22.0) 4.8
8.7 71.6) 176.4
202.1 194.1 607.1
199.1 187.8 593.3
3.0 6.3 13.8
202.1 194.1 607.1

(1) Comparative figures have been restated wheressary to reflect changes in accounting polioyedailed in Note 1.

Page 7 of 98
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the parent

Exchange Non-
Share Share Treasury equalisa- Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium shares tion reserve reserve: earnings Total interests equity
€ million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million
Balance as at 1 January 2010 182.8 1,113.8 (14.9) (309.1 368.8 1,112.3 2,453.7 101.2 2,554.9
Changes in accounting policy
(NOEE 1) — — — (1.8) (9.0) 7.1 (3.7) (20.8) (24.5)
Balance as at 1 January 2010
(AAJUSEE).....eeeeeeeer e 182.8 1,113.8 (14.9) (310.9; 359.8 1,119.4 2,450.0 80.4 2,530.4
Shares issued to employees
exercising stock options............c.cceevvenienn 0.3 5.4 — — — — 5.7 — 5.7

Share-based compensation:

[©] 11 0] 4 1SS — — — — 6.7 — 6.7 — 6.7
Movement in treasury shares................. — — — — 0.2 — 0.2 0.2
Shares repurchased............ccccccourerimmnne — — (42.3) — — — (42.3) — (42.3)

Exchange equalisation reserve

recycled to retained earnings................... — — — 11 — (1.1) — — —
Appropriation of reserves...........ccccoevenee — — — — 11.0 (11.0) — — —
Purchase of shares held by non-controllin

interests in subsidiary in Serbia............... — — — — — — — 3.7) (3.7)
DiIVIAENDS ...t — — — — — (68.1) (68.1) (4.9) (73.0)

183.1 1,119.2 (57.2) (309.8 377.7 1,039.2 2,352.2 718 2,424.0

Profit for the year net of taX........c.ccocevveene — — — — — 421.0 421.0 9.7 430.7
Other comprehensive income for

the year, net of taX.......c..cceeirverirvvmmecncnns — — — 178.8 (11.3) 4.8 172.3 4.1 176.4
Total comprehensive income for

the year, net of t&R...........cocovvevvvverrn.. — — — 178.8 (11.3) 425.8 593.3 13.8 607.1
Balance as at 31 December 2010 183.1 1,119.2 (57.2) (131.0 366.4 1,465.0 2,945.5 85.6 3,031.1

1) The amount included in the exchange equalisatiserve of €178.8m gain for 2010 representstbkeange gains attributable to the owners of themtaof €177.9m plus
the share of equity method investments of €0.9m.gai
The amount included in other reserves of €11.3m for 2010 consists of losses on cash flow hedfy€9.3m (of which €11.3m represents losses foryds and €2.0m
represents revaluation losses reclassified to tpaoiil loss for the year), losses on valuation @filakle-for-sale financial assets of €2.3m (of wh&0.5m represents
revaluation gains for the year and €2.8m represemauation gains reclassified to profit and lémsthe year) and the deferred income tax creditebf amounting to

€0.3m.

The amount of €425.8m profit comprises of prdiit the year of €421.0m plus actuarial gains of B6ldss deferred income tax debit of €1.3m.
The amount of €13.8m income included in non-cdhmm interests for 2010 represents the share of-cantrolling interests in the exchange equalisatieserve of
€4.1m gain and in the retained earnings of €9.%mrire.

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdéhmmnsolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (contired)

Attributable to owners of the parent

Exchange Non-
Share Share Treasury equalisa- Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium shares tion reserve reserves earnings Total interests equity
€ million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million

Balance as at 31 December 201

(adjusted) ......ccoverererireeeren e 183.1 1,119.2 (57.2) (131.0 366.4 1,465.0 2,945.5 85.6 3,031.1
Shares issued to employees

exercising stock options........... 0.2 4.5 — — — — 4.7 — 4.7
Share-based compensation:

OPLONS ... — — — — 8.1 — 8.1 — 8.1

Movement in treasury shares.. — — — — 0.4) — 0.4) — 0.4)
Capitalisation of share premium

FESEIVE...cvtieerieeeeresiesie st 549.7 (549.7, — — — — — — —
Expenses relating to share capi

increase (net of tax €1.2m)....... — (4.8) — — — — (4.8) — (4.8)
Return of capital to shareholder:  (183.2 — 17 — — — (181.5; — (181.5)
Share capital increase

in subsidiary in Serbia.............. — — — — — (0.8) (0.8) 1.2 0.4
Purchase of shares held by

non-controlling interests........... — — — (8.7) — (37.7) (46.4) (71.5) (117.9)
Appropriation of reserves........... — — — — 0.5 (0.5) — — —
Hyperinflation impact — — — — — (7.8) (7.8) — (7.8)
Dividends — — — — — — — (5.8) (5.8)

549.8 569.2 (55.5) (139.7, 374.6 1,418.2 2,716.6 9.5 2,726.1

Profit for the year net of tax........ — — — — — 264.4 264.4 1.3 265.7
Other comprehensive income fa

the year, net of taX................... — — — (60.0) 5.4 (22.0) (76.6 5.0 (71.6
Total comprehensive income for

the year, net of t&................. — — — (60.0) 5.4 242.4 187.8 6.3 194.1
Balance as at 31 December 201 549.8 569.2 (55.5) (199.7 380.0 1,660.6 2,904.4 15.8 2,920.2

(2) The amount included in the exchange equalisatisarve of €60.0m loss for 2011 represents the exghlmsses attributable to the owners of the payE869.4m plus

the share of equity method investments of €0.6m. los

The amount included in other reserves of €5.4m f@i2011 consists of losses on valuation of aldé-for-sale financial assets of €0.4m represgmtvaluation losses
for the year, cash flow hedges gain of €8.4m (oictvt€5.3m represents revaluation gains for the pear€3.1m represents revaluation losses reckedgii profit and

loss for the year) and the deferred income taxdd€2.6m.
The amount of €242.4m profit comprises of prdit the year of €264.4m less actuarial losses of @2 plus deferred income tax credit of €5.7m.
The amount of €6.3m gain included in non-contngllinterests for 2011 represents the share of patraling interests in the exchange equalisatieserve of €5.0m
gain and in the retained earnings of €1.3m income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdéhmmnsolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equitgdntinued)

Attributable to owners of the parent

Exchange Non-
Share Share Treasury equalisa- Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium shares tion reserve reserves earnings Total interests equity
€ million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million
Balance as at 31 December 201
(adjusted) ......coccoereeeeirreee e 549.8 569.2 (55.5) (199.7 380.0 1,660.6 2,904.4 15.8 2,920.2
Shares issued to employees
exercising stock options........... — 0.1 — — — — 0.1 — 0.1
Share-based compensation:

[©] 11 o] 41 — — — — 6.3 — 6.3 — 6.3
Movement in treasury shares.. — — — — 0.1 — 0.1 — 0.1
Return of capital to shareholder:  (124.6, — 1.2 — — — (123.4, — (123.4)

Reduction of share capital to
extinguish accumulated losses
of the parent company.............. (55.0) — — — — 55.0 — — —
Share of other changes in equit
of equity method investments.. — — — — — (2.1) (2.1) — (2.1)
Appropriation of reserves........... — — — — 0.5 (0.5) — — —
Hyperinflation impact.................. — — — — — 4.2 4.2 — 4.2
Dividends ........ccoevrirereresicmmmnn — — — — — — — (1.0) (1.0)
370.2 569.3 (54.3) (199.7, 386.9 1,717.2 2,789.6 14.8 2,804.4
Profit for the year net of tax........ — — — — — 190.4 190.4 3.0 193.4
Other comprehensive income....
for the year, net of tax.............. — — — 316 (10.3) (12.6) 8.7 — 8.7
Total comprehensive income for
the year, net of t&%................... — — — 31.6 (10.3) 177.8 199.1 3.0 202.1
Balance as at 31 December 201 370.2 569.3 (54.3) (168.1 376.6 1,895.0 2,988.7 17.8 3,006.5

3

parent of €32.4m plus the share of equity methudstments of €0.8m loss.

The amount included in the exchange equalisaiserve of €31.6m gain for 2012 represents tishange gains attributable to the owners of the

The amount included in other reserves of €10.3ss lor 2012 consists of gains on valuation of abdd-for-sale financial assets of €0.2m,
representing revaluation gains for the year, ctsh fiedges loss of €13.4m (of which €22.9m reprissevaluation losses for the year and €9.5m
represents revaluation losses reclassified totmaofi loss for the year), and the deferred inc@areain thereof amounting to €2.9m.

The amount of €177.8m profit comprises of prdfit the year of €190.4m less actuarial losses of&aplus deferred income tax credit of €2.6m.

The amount of €3.0m gain included in non-contngllinterests for 2012 represents the share of patralling interests in the retained earnings.

For further details, please refer to: Note 18 Sleapital and share premium; Note 19 Reserves;
Note 25; Shares held for equity compensation plaote 26; Stock option compensation plans; and 96teDividends.

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdéhmmnsolidated financial statements
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Year ended 31 Decembe

Note 2012 2011 2010

Operating activities € million € million € million
Profit @fter taX .......cccoeiiiiii e 1934 265.7 430.7
Total finanCce COSES, Ni....oovieiiiiciieccs e 21 90.7 95.2 75.€
Share of results of equity method investments 6 (11.6) (9.4) (10.4)
Tax charged to the income statement ......c.ccceeceveeieiienennenn 3,22 65.2 98.8 137.8
Depreciation of property, plant and equipm..... 3,8 375.: 368.< 381.2
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 3,5 33.0 21.0 —
Employee Share OPtiONS .........ccooiiiiieeeeecne e e s 26 6.3 8.1 6.7
Amortisaticn of iNtangible aSSE.........cccveiiiiiiii 34 3.0 3.2 7.1
OthEr IIEIMS ..ottt emmmeme e e ste e beemeeenee s 2.3 1.3 —

757.6 852.2 1,029.0
Losses on disposals Of r-CUMTENT ASSel........ccveviriiiiiiiereseee e 6.8 3.2 13.C
(Increase) / decrease iN INVENTOMES .....ccoeeerrerinerreneneees e e (10.4) 15.3 (43.4)
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receisable.............ccooviieeeniciiiiciinnnns 67.2 (0.8) (29.3)
Increase in trade and other Payal...........cccoiiiiiiiiiie e 27.2 46.€ 140.t
LI D 0= 1 ST PP PSP (95.0) (88.4) (139.4)
Net cash from operating aCtiVItIeS ..........eecereriiieiiieiiieiee e 753.6 828.3 970.4
Investing activities
Payments for purchases of property, plant and @URI...............ccceverieircirenrnenn (395.5 (363.9 (366.5
Payments for purchases of intangible as.............cocoiieiiiieii e — — (15.8
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipmen............c.ccccve v mreeseeseene. 5.0 10.9 8.1
Net (payments for)/receipts from iNVESIME............cccovieiiiiirieiie e (21.1 (38.1 10.€
INTEIEST FECEIVE ...ttt ettt ettt ea e s b se e e e bre e neebeenee e 7.8 8.7 6.€
Net receipts from disposal of SUBSIdIArY ...cceceeeiiiiiiiiie e 28 — 13.1 —
Net payments for acquisition of joint arrangement............ccccooeieeceeeieeiciieneens 28 — (2.5) —
Net cash used in investing activitie (403.7 (371.8 (356.7
Financing activities
Return of capital to shareholders ... 18,19 (123.4, (1815 —
Payments of expenses related to the share capstakise 18 — (6.0) —
Share buy-back PAYMENTS ......c..ooiuiiiiceeeme e s 19 — — (42.3)
Purchase of shares held by non-controlling iNt8rest...........ccocvevvieeeeerciesecneens 28 (13.9) (74.2) (3.7)
Proceeds from shares issued to employees exersigiok Options..........c..cccceeuenee. 18 0.1 4.7 5.7
Dividends paid to owners of the parent.......ccccceeciveieeiiie i e 29 — — (102.0)
Dividends paid to NoN-controlling iNtErestS .........ccveererirenene e e (2.0) (5.8) (4.9)
Proceeds from external DOrTOWINGS ........oceeeerniieiiiieiiie e 1,088.2 1,493.7 926.4
Repayments of external DOrrOWINGS ........coceeceeireeiinieinie e (1,186.2 (1,383.7 (1,178.1)
Principal repayments of finance lease obligations...........c.coevevcmnenciencencnens (21.8) (48.1) (75.1)
Proceeds from sale of interest rate swap CONtraCtS.......cccovvevivicmmecceessiie s, — — 33.0
INEEIEST PAUIC....veeeeveeeereie ettt ettt e r e r et et e s ene (100.5 (108.9 (71.8
Net cash used in fiNANCING ACHIVILIE!..........cceviiieiiiiciine e (358.5 (309.8 (512.8
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalg............cceceeevieeivecccieecnieen, (8.6) 146.% 100.¢
Movement in cash and cash equivaler
Cash ad cash equivalents @ JanUary .........ccccceeieeiieeineniee e 447 .4 306.7 206.:
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equisalent...........c.ccoovveviniencreneenn. (8.6) 146.7 100.9
Effect of changes in @XChange ra ... 0.9 1.€ (0.5)
Hyperinflation impact 0N Cash ...........ccioiieiiiiii e (0.6) (7.6) —
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 DECEMDET ...ccoeeiiiiiiiiieieeieeeeeeeee e emeee 14 439.1 447 .4 306.7

(1) Comparative figures have been restated whegessary to reflect changes in accounting policjedsiled in Note 1.
The accompanying notes form an integral part cdéhmmnsolidated financial statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Basis of preparation and accounting policies
Description of business

Coca-Cola Hellenic Bottling Company S.A. (‘Cocak&dHellenic’ or ‘the Group’) is a Société Anonyme
(corporation) incorporated in Greece and foundeti9i69. It took its current form in August 2000 thgh the acquisition of
the Coca-Cola Beverages plc (‘CCB’) by Hellenic Bogg Company S.A. (‘HBC’). Coca-Cola Hellenic aitd subsidiaries
(collectively ‘the Company’ or ‘the Group’) are pcipally engaged in the production, sales andibigion of non-alcoholic
ready to drink beverages, under franchise from Cbea-Cola Company (‘TCCC’). The Company distributegproducts in
27 countries in Europe and Nigeria. Informatiorttoe Company’s operations by segment is includedate 3.

Coca-Cola Hellenic's shares are listed on the #g¢hExchange (symbol: EEEK), with a secondary Igstim the
London Stock Exchange (symbol: CCB). Coca-Colaétid’'s American Depositary Receipts (ADRs) areeliisbn the New
York Stock Exchange (symbol: CCH).

On 11 October 2012, Coca-Cola HBC AG, a Swiss compacorporated by Kar-Tess Holding, announced a
voluntary share exchange offer to acquire all antding ordinary registered shares and all Ameritgpositary shares of Coca-
Cola Hellenic. The transaction is progressing e livith Coca-Cola HBC AG’s most recent announcemant we expect
commencement of the acceptance period after ptiblicaf Coca-Cola Hellenic’'s audited full year 20fli2ancial statements
and completion of the voluntary share exchange efiey in the second quarter of 2013.

These consolidated financial statements were apgrtor issue by the Board of Directors on 1 Ma2éii3 and are
expected to be verified at the Annual General Megttb be held on 12 June 2013.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements includedhis document are prepared in accordance with datemal
Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) as issuedHsy International Accounting Standards Board (BASand IFRS as
adopted by the European Union (“EU").

IFRS as adopted by the EU differs in certain resspffom IFRS as issued by the IASB. However, tiffeiences
have no significant impact on the Group’s consaéddinancial statements for the periods presented.

The consolidated financial statements are prepareter the historical cost convention, as modiftad the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assatsl derivative financial instruments and the finahstatements of certain
subsidiaries operating in a hyperinflationary eaqagowhich are restated and expressed in terms ofrtbasuring unit
currency at the balance sheet date and transkatedro at the exchange rate of the balance sh&zt da

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiary undertakings are those companies owe&twthe Group, directly or indirectly, has contrdhe Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed thasrrights to, variable returns from its involverneith the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through poweercthe entity. Subsidiary undertakings are cadatdéd from the date on
which effective control is transferred to the Graum cease to be consolidated from the date onhwdffective control is
transferred out of the Group.

The acquisition method of accounting is used tmant for business combinations. The consideratamsferred is
the fair value of any asset transferred, shareeéand liabilities assumed. The considerationsfeared includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from antingent consideration arrangement. Identifiabdsets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed areasured initially at their fair values at the @sijion date. The excess of
the consideration transferred and the fair valueasf controlling interest over the net assets aeduand liabilities assumed
is recorded as goodwill. All acquisition relateabts are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ctinued)
1. Basis of preparation and accounting policiesontinued)

For each business combination, the Group electshehé measures the non-controlling interest ia #tquiree
either at fair value or at the proportionate stidre acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that oot result in loss of control are accounted for eagiity
transactions — that is, as transactions with theewsvin their capacity as owners. The differendsvbéen fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquoiréie carrying value of net assets of the subgid&recorded in equity.

Intercompany transactions and balances betweerupGommpanies are eliminated. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries are modified where necessary to emsumnsstency with policies adopted by the Group.

When the Group ceases to have control any retaimerest in the entity is re-measured to its failue at the date
when such control is lost, with the change in dagyamount recognised in profit or loss. The faitue is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accourtinthe retained interest as an associate, jointure or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognisedtireocomprehensive income in respect of that eatigyaccounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the relatedtassdiabilities. This may mean that amounts poesgly recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profibss.

Critical accounting judgments and estimates

In conformity with generally accepted accountimgngiples, the preparation of the consolidatedririal statements
for Coca-Cola Hellenic requires management to neslitenates and assumptions that affect the repartemlints of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and the digsio®f contingent assets and liabilities in the soidlated financial
statements and accompanying notes. Although tretsaates are based on management’s knowledge ntwevents and
actions that may be undertaken in the future, dctsalts may ultimately differ from estimates.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in nhumeratsdictions. There are many transactions and tzloas for
which the ultimate tax determination cannot be sss@ with certainty in the ordinary course of bast The Group
recognises provision for potential liabilities thetay arise as a result of tax audit issues basedssassment of the
probabilities as to whether additional taxes wél due. Where the final tax outcome on these mated#fferent from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differs will impact the income tax provision in the ipdrin which such
determination is made. The Group anticipates thatewhe final tax outcome, on the judgment areasdiffer from
management's estimates by up to 10% the Group'sxj@anse would increase (or decrease) by less£tham.

Impairment of goodwill and indefinite-lived intabig assets

Determining whether goodwill or indefinite-livedtangible assets are impaired requires an estimafithe value-
in-use of the cash-generating units to which thayehbeen allocated in order to determine the reable amount of the
cash generating units. The value-in-use calculatemuires the Group to estimate the future cashsflexpected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable distoate in order to calculate present value. Theesssumptions and a
discussion on how they are established are descirbidote 4.

Employee Benefits—Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The Group provides defined benefit pension plansa employee benefit in certain territories. Dreteing the
value of these plans requires several actuarialnmgsons and estimates about discount rates, fidala@y increases and
future pension increases. Due to the long-termraadd these plans, such estimates are subjecgtofisant uncertainty.
Details of assumptions used, including a sensjtatalysis are given in Note 17.

Joint Arrangements

The Group participates in several joint arrangesefudgment is required in order to determinerttlassification
as a joint venture where the Group has rights ¢onigt assets of the arrangement or a joint operatteere the Group has
rights to the assets and obligations for the litddl of the arrangement. In making this judgmeonsideration is given to
the legal form of the arrangement, the contradirahs and conditions as well as other facts araigistances (including the
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1. Basis of preparation and accounting policiesontinued)

economic rationale of the arrangement and the iimphthe legal framework in which the arrangemeperates). The
Group’s joint arrangements are further discussediate 6.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognised when all of the followdogditions are met: when the amount of revenuebeareliably
measured; when it is probable that future econdoeicefits will flow to the Group and when the sigraht risks and
rewards of ownership of the products have pass#tktbuyer, usually on delivery of the goods.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the deraiion received or receivable and is stated heales discounts,
value added taxes and sales taxes as applicatieg lfees and marketing and promotional incentpresided to customers.
Listing fees are incentives provided to customerschrrying the Company’s products in their stotdsting fees that are
subject to contract-based term arrangements aiitalisgd and amortised over the term of the comtesca reduction to
revenue. All other listing fees as well as markgtamd promotional incentives are a reduction oenere as incurred. The
amount of listing fees capitalised at 31 Decemi@22was €25.3m (31 December 2011 and 2010: €23rRim€31.6m
respectively). Of this balance, €16.7m (31 Decemb@tl and 2010: €13.5m and €19.5m) was classifeeduarent
prepayments and the remainder as non-current pregratg. Listing fees recognized as a reduction vemee for the year
ended 31 December 2012 amounted to €419.2m (yewtede31l December 2011 and 2010: €311.3m and €240.0m
respectively). Marketing and promotional incentiy@®vided to customers during the year ended 3leldber 2012
amounted to €185.5m (years ended 31 December 2@12C40: €131.4m and €160.3m respectively).

Coca-Cola Hellenic receives contributions from TC@ order to promote sales of brands of The CookaC
Company. Contributions for price support, marketingd promotional campaigns in respect of specifistamers are
recognised as an offset to promotional incentivesiged to those customers to which the contritngioontractually relate.
These contributions are accrued and matched texpenditure to which they relate. In the year engledecember 2012,
such contributions totaled €51.2m (years ended &@leBiber 2011 and 2010 €49.0m and €48.8m respegtivel

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividhmg net profit attributable to the owners of trergmt by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstgriliring the year. The weighted average numbeardihary shares
outstanding during the year is the number of omjisfiares outstanding at the beginning of the yadjusted by the number
of ordinary shares bought back or issued duringydaa multiplied by a time-weighting factor. Dildtearnings per share
incorporates stock options for which the averageesiprice for the year is in excess of the exenoig= of the stock option
and there is a dilutive effect.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist mainly of goodwill, tahrks and franchise agreements. Goodwill is tleesxof the
consideration transferred over the fair value efshare of net assets acquired. Goodwill and atlefinite-lived intangible
assets are not amortised but rather tested foriimpat annually and whenever there is an indicattbrimpairment.
Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible atsare carried at cost less accumulated impairfosaes.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwiklliecated to each of the Group’s cash-generatiity expected to
benefit from the business combination in which goedwill arose. Other indefinite-lived intangiblesats are also allocated
to the Group’s cash-generating units expected tefitefrom those intangibles. The cash-generatimigsitto which goodwill
and other indefinite-lived intangible assets hagerballocated are tested for impairment annuatlynore frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be imphiné the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher & talue in use and fair
value less costs to sell) of the cash-generatingisriess than the carrying amount of the unig tmpairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of gaodwill allocated to the unit and then pro-ratdhe other assets of the
unit on the basis of the carrying amount of eagdetam the unit. Impairment losses recognised agajoodwill are not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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Intangible assets with finite lives consist mainfytrademarks and water rights and are amortised their useful
economic lives.

The useful life of trademarks is determined affensidering potential limitations that could imp#u¢ life of the
trademark, such as technological and market lifitat and the intent of management. The majoritythef Group’s
trademarks have been assigned an indefinite usfefs they have an established sales historli@rapplicable region, it is
the intention of the Group to receive a benefitfritnem indefinitely and there is no indication tttas will not be the case.

The useful life of franchise agreements is usuadlged on the term of the respective franchisecaggats. TCCC
does not grant perpetual franchise rights outdideUnited States, however, the Group believesritschise agreements,
consistent with past experience, will continue ® enewed at each expiration date and have therdfeen assigned
indefinite useful lives.

The useful lives, both finite and indefinite, @gsd to intangible assets are evaluated on an bbasia.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on #eguisition of subsidiaries are treated as thetasmd liabilities
of those subsidiaries. These balances are denadiimathe functional currency of the subsidiary anel translated to euro
on a basis consistent with the other assets abiitlies of the subsidiary.

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment is initially erded at cost and subsequently measured at cgsadesimulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Subsequentnditpee is added to the carrying value of the asgedn it is probable
that future economic benefits, in excess of thgioal assessed standard of performance of therexasset, will flow to the
operation. All other subsequent expenditure is Bgpd in the period in which it is incurred. Assatsler construction are
recorded as part of property, plant and equipmedtdepreciation on these assets commences whessbts are available
for use.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line asiallocate the depreciable amount over the astidnuseful life of
the assets as follows:

Freehold buildings .........ueiii s 40 years

Leasehold buildings and improvements.........ccccccvueennnn. Over the lease term, up to dérg
Production equipment.........ccvueieierieieceecee e ee e e 4to 12 years

VERNICIES ... eerree e 5to 8 ygar

Computer hardware and software .............cececemeeeeevennns 3to 7 years

Marketing equUIPMENt ..........coovvviiiierrircmmmmm e ee e e e e e e eeaeeeeens 3to 10 years

Fixtures and fittiNgsS .......oeeeeeieeii e 8 years

Returnable CONtaiNers .........cccevveveeescccecemeeeee e 3to 12 years

Freehold land is not depreciated as it is coneities have an indefinite life.

Deposits received for returnable containers byarusrs are accounted for as deposit liabilities.

Residual values and useful lives of assets aiewed and adjusted if appropriate at each balaneetsiate.
Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and other indefinite-lived assets are atortised but rather tested for impairment anguaild whenever
there is an indication of impairment. Property, pland equipment and other non-financial assets dh& subject to
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amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenewernés or changes in circumstances indicate that#neing amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is ratsgl for the amount by which the carrying amourthe asset exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher ofdkset’s fair value less cost to sell and its valdese. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at tlestidevel of separately identifiable cash flows.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the aaition, construction or production of qualifyingsass, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial pefitohe to be prepared for their intended use oe,sate added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets astastiblly ready for their intended use or saleebiment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowingsgieg their use for qualifying assets is deductednfthe borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed as pafinahce costs in the period in which they are inedr
Investments in associates

Investments in associated undertakings are acedufdr by the equity method of accounting. Assetlat
undertakings are all entities over which the Grdwgs significant influence but not control, gengralccompanying a
shareholding of between 20% to 50% of the votights.

The equity method of accounting involves recogmjstme Group’s share of the associates’ post adprigorofit or
loss for the period in the income statement andlhitge of the post-acquisition movement in othenm@hensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income. Unradlgaens and losses resulting from transactions émtwhe Group and
the associate are eliminated to the extent ofrttezést in the associate.

The Group’s interest in each associate is cairigtie balance sheet at an amount that reflectshise of the net
assets of the associate and includes goodwill guisition. When the Group’s share of losses in sspeiate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, the Groep dot recognise further losses, unless the Graapriturred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

Investment in joint arrangements

Joint arrangements are arrangements in which tepshas contractually agreed sharing of contrdlictv exists
only when decisions about the relevant activitiequire unanimous consent. Joint arrangements lassifted as joint
operations or joint ventures depending upon thietsignd obligations arising from the joint arrangemand are accounted
for as follows:

The Group classifies a joint arrangement as a joperation when the Group has the rights to thetassnd
obligations for the liabilities, of the arrangemeartd accounts for each of its assets, liabilittesenues and expenses,
including its share of those held or incurred jlyinin relation to the joint operation.

The Group classifies a joint arrangement as a jeamture when the Group has rights to the net sigsethe
arrangement. The Group accounts for its interi@sjsint ventures using the equity method of acdmgnas described in
“Investment for associates” above.

If facts and circumstances change, the Group resssewhether it still has joint control and whetther type of
joint arrangement in which it is involved has chedhg
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Financial assets

The Group classifies its investments in debt aquitg securities into the following categories:dirtial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’), helddmaturity and available-for-sale. The classifioatdepends on the purpose
for which the investment was acquired. FVTPL andilable-for-sale financial assets are carried amt\Value. Investments
that are acquired principally for the purpose ofigyating a profit from short-term fluctuations inge are classified as
FVTPL investments and included in current assetgestments with a fixed maturity that managemesst tha intent and
ability to hold to maturity are classified as hédmaturity and are included in non-current assexsept for those with
maturities within twelve months from the balanceethdate, which are classified as current assetesiments intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time, which magy sold in response to needs for liquidity or ¢eanin interest rates, are
classified as available-for-sale and are classifigthon-current assets, unless they are expectes tealised within twelve
months of the balance sheet date.

Regular purchases and sales of investments avgmised on the trade date which is the day the ommmits to
purchase or sell. The investments are recognidgdlliy at fair value plus transactions costs, exda the case of FVTPL.
For investments traded in active markets, fair @afudetermined by reference to stock exchangeequuit! prices. For other
investments, fair value is estimated by referemcéhe current market value of similar instrumentsy reference to the
discounted cash flows of the underlying net assets.

Gains and losses on investments classified as E\&F® recognised in the income statement in thomgén which
they arise. Unrealised gains and losses on aveifabisale financial assets are recognised in atberprehensive income,
except for impairment losses and foreign excharaesgand losses on monetary financial assets teateaognised in the
income statement, until the financial assets ameabgnised at which time the cumulative gains @sés previously
recognised in equity are reclassified to the incetaéement.

Held-to-maturity investments are carried at arsedicost using the effective interest rate metf@ins and losses
on held-to-maturity investments are recognisedhénihcome statement, when the investments areaprised or impaired.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are cledsifs held for sale if their carrying amount wil principally
recovered through a sale transaction rather thaudgi continuing use. This condition is regardednas only when the sale
is highly probable and the asset (or disposal graipvailable for immediate sale in its presemtdition. In order for a sale
to be considered highly probable, management mastonmitted to the sale, an active programme tatéoa buyer and
complete the plan has been initiated, and theis&epected to be completed within one year froendhte of classification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classiiduteld for sale are measured at the lower ofrttligidual assets’
previous carrying amount and their fair value lessts to sell.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andewisable value.

Cost for raw materials and consumables is detemngither on a first-in, first-out or weighted avgeabasis,
depending on the type of inventory. Cost for warlprogress and finished goods is comprised of tis¢ af direct materials
and labour plus attributable overhead costs. Gadtides all costs incurred to bring the producitsnpresent location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling eptiic the ordinary course of business, less thanastid costs
necessary to complete and sell the inventory.
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Trade receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at ¥aiue and subsequently measured at amortisedAgstvision for
doubtful debts is established when there is objectividence that the Group will not be able toesllall amounts due,
according to the original terms of the trade reabig. Significant financial difficulties of the dml, probability that the
debtor will enter into bankruptcy or financial rganisation and default or delinquency in paymergscansidered indicators
that the trade receivable could be uncollectiblee Bmount of the provision is the difference betwé®e receivable’s
carrying amount and the present value of its esdthfuture cash flows, discounted at the origirfffdative interest rate. The
carrying amount of the receivable is reduced by dahwunt of the provision, which is recognised ag p& operating
expenses. If a trade receivable ultimately becommemllectible, it is written off initially againsany provision made in
respect of that receivable with any excess recednis part of operating expenses. Subsequent régepwd amounts
previously written off or provisions no longer réepa are credited against operating expenses.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at falugaand subsequently measured at amortised coxj thed effective
interest rate method.

Foreign currency and translation

The individual financial statements of each Graumity are presented in the currency of the primeggnomic
environment in which the entity operates (its fimtal currency). For the purpose of the consolididieancial statements,
the results and financial position of each entiyy @xpressed in euro, which is the presentatiorenay for the consolidated
financial statements.

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiades translated into euro at the exchange ratagt the balance
sheet date. The results of foreign subsidiariestrareslated into euro using the average monthhjhamnge rate, except for
foreign subsidiaries operating in a hyperinflatign@nvironment whose results are translated atctbeing rate. The
exchange differences arising on translation aregeised in other comprehensive income. On dispwofal foreign entity,
accumulated exchange differences are recognisa¢@asiponent of the gain or loss on disposal.

Transactions in foreign currencies are recordethatrate ruling at the date of transaction. Momnetssets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies ageeasured at the rate of exchange ruling at thenbalsheet date. All gains
and losses arising on remeasurement are include¢dme statement, except for exchange differendsing on assets and
liabilities classified as cash flow hedges whick deferred in equity until the occurrence of thddeal transaction, at which
time they are recognised in the income statement.

Entities operating in hyperinflationary economjgepare financial statements that are recordeddordance with
IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economie§g he gain or loss on net monetary position is reedrih
finance costs. The application of hyperinflatiom@amting includes:

¢ Adjustment of the historical cost of non-monetasgets and liabilities and the various items of ggiiom their
date of acquisition or inclusion in the balanceestie the end of the year for the changes in pwioggpower of the
currency caused by inflation.

e The various components in the income statementstatdment of cash flows have been adjusted foimtregion
index since their generation.

e The subsidiary’s financial statements are trandlatehe closing exchange rate.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balanddsighly liquid investments with an original maturof three
months or less. Bank overdrafts are classifiedhastgéerm borrowings in the balance sheet andlerpurpose of the cash
flow statement.

Borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognissdhe fair value net of transaction costs incurred

After initial recognition, all interest-bearingdons and borrowings are subsequently measured atisedocost.
Amortised cost is calculated using the effectiveeriest rate method whereby any discount, premiurtramsaction costs
associated with a loan or borrowing is amortiseth&income statement over the borrowing period.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments|uding interest rate, currency and commodity \dgives, to
manage interest, currency and commaodity price aggdociated with the Group’s underlying busineswidies. The Group
does not use its derivative financial instrumentsahny trading activities.

All derivative financial instruments are initialhgcognised on the balance sheet at fair valueasmdubsequently
remeasured at their fair value. Changes in theviine of derivative financial instruments are igsed at each reporting
date either in the income statement or in equigypehding on whether the derivative financial instent qualifies for hedge
accounting, and if so, whether it qualifies asinalue hedge or a cash flow hedge. All derivafimancial instruments that
are not part of an effective hedging relationshipdesignated hedges) are classified as assetbdities at FVTPL.

At the inception of a hedge transaction the Grdapuments the relationship between the hedginguimstnt and
the hedged item, as well as its risk managemerctitsp and strategy for undertaking the hedge &etien. This process
includes linking the derivative financial instrunmedesignated as a hedging instrument to the speasf$et, liability, firm
commitment or forecast transaction. Both at theghddception and on an ongoing basis, the Grougsass and documents
whether the derivative financial instrument usedhea hedging transaction is highly effective insetting changes in fair
value or cash flow of the hedged item.

Changes in the fair values of derivative finanagiatruments that are designated and qualify asvédiie hedges and
are effective, are recorded in the income statentegether with the changes in the fair valueshefliedged items that relate
to the hedged risks. Changes in the fair valueedfvdtive financial instruments that are designated effective as hedges of
future cash flows are recognised directly in otlwemprehensive income and the ineffective portionrésognised
immediately in the income statement. Amounts acdated in equity are recycled to the income statdrasnthe related
asset acquired or liability assumed affects thenme statement. Changes in the fair values of direséinancial instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are re¢sgphin the income statement as they arise.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedgisggument expires or is sold, terminated, or eisect, or no
longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that tiraey cumulative gain or loss on the hedging ims&nt recognised in
equity is retained in equity until the forecasnhsaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is nodoegpected to occur, the net
cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity issfarred to the income statement.

Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment, whereaifueip has substantially all the risks and rewafdswnership,
are classified as finance leases. Other leasedamsified as operating leases.

Rentals paid under operating leases are chargbeé income statement on a straight-line basis thestease term.
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Finance leases are capitalised at the inceptigheofease at the lower of the fair value of thesésl assets and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Eaabkel payment is allocated between liability andrfae charges to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balancéandisg. The corresponding lease obligations, hdinance charges, are
included in long-term borrowings. The interest ebanof the finance cost is charged to the incoratesient over the lease
period, so as to produce a constant periodic ffatgerest on the remaining balance of the liapildr each period. Property,
plant and equipment acquired under finance leadepseciated over the shorter of the useful liféhef asset and the lease
term. The useful life for leased assets correspavitts the Group policy for the depreciable life pfoperty, plant and
equipment.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group hassept obligation (legal or constructive) as a tesud past event;
when it is probable that an outflow of resourcededying economic benefits will be required to settie obligation; and
when a reliable estimate can be made of the anaduhe obligation. Where the Group expects a piowiso be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance contract, the reiggment is recognised as a separate asset onlysulcbrreimbursement
is virtually certain. If the effect of the time va of money is material, provisions are determimgdiscounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that refleatsent market assessments of the time value of ynane the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the irage in the provision due to the passage of tinmedsgnised as an interest
expense.

Offsetting financial instruments

The Group offsets financial assets and finandéddilities to the net amount reported in the baégasheet when it
currently has a legally enforceable right to offbet recognised amounts and it intends to setti@ et basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Employee benefits
The Group operates a number of defined benefitdafided contribution pension plans in its terigsr

The defined benefit plans are made up of both dédndnd unfunded pension plans and employee leaving
indemnities. The assets of funded plans are gdpenald in separate trustee-administered funds ared financed by
payments from employees and/or the relevant Grougpanies.

The liability recognised in the balance sheetespect of defined benefit plans is the presentevafuthe defined
benefit obligation at the balance sheet date leséair value of the plan assets.

For defined benefit pension plans, pension cagtassessed using the projected unit credit methatdarial gains
and losses arising from experience adjustmentschadges in actuarial assumptions are charged ditedeto equity in
other comprehensive income in the period in whiblytarise. Such actuarial gains and losses are imiB@diately
recognised in retained earnings and are not réfiab$0 the income statement in subsequent periodte defined benefit
obligations are measured at the present value efeftimated future cash outflows using interestsraif corporate or
government bonds, depending on whether or not tiseaedeep market for corporate bonds in the refegauntry, which
have terms to maturity approximating the termshef telated liability. Past service cost is recoggignmediately in the
income statement. A number of the Group’s operatiave other long service benefits in the formubilge plans. These
plans are measured at the present value of thmatstil future cash outflows with immediate recognitof actuarial gains
and losses.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribatpension plans are charged to the income statemethe
period to which the contributions relate.
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Share-based payments

Coca-Cola Hellenic issues equity-settled (stockiomg) and cash-settled (stock appreciation rightgre-based
payments to its senior managers.

Equity-settled share-based payments are measurfedt aalue at the date of grant using a binomsialck option
valuation model. Fair value reflects the parametd#frdhe compensation plan, the risk-free interege,rthe expected
volatility, the dividend yield and the early exeseiexperience of the Group’s plans. Expected Vityats determined by
calculating the historical volatility of Coca-Catellenic’s share price over previous years. Thevalue determined at the
grant date of the equity-settled share-based paynieeXxpensed on a straight-line basis over teéngperiod.

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liakitjtyal to the portion of the vested stock apprisiatights is
recognised at the current fair value determineé@asth balance sheet date using the same model pats ias used for
determining the fair value of stock options, witle &xception of the risk-free interest rate, aswesd in Note 27.

In addition, the Group operates a stock purchaae, @n equity compensation in which eligible enypks can
participate. The Group makes contributions to attfar participating employees and recognises esgeimver the vesting
period of the contributed shares. Any unvestedeshheld by the trust are owned by the Group andem@ded at cost on
the balance sheet, within equity, until they vest.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an eyepls employment is terminated before the norméeraent
date or whenever an employee accepts voluntaryndzthey in exchange for these benefits. The Growogréses
termination benefits at the earlier of the follogiidates: a) when the Group can no longer withdtaevdffer of those
benefits and b) when the Group recognises costa festructuring that is within the scope of IASR®dvisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assetsid involves the payment of termination benefitthe case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefitsraeasures based on the number of employees expeciedept the offer.

Taxes

The current income tax charge is calculated onbidms of the tax laws enacted or substantivelytedaat the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Gopgpates and generates taxable income. Managepeeiodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with resge situations in which applicable tax regulatoare subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions wherea@pjate, on the basis of amounts expected to liktpdhe tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability methfor all temporary differences arising between tire bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying valuesfiimancial reporting purposes. However, the deférrax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recogmitiof goodwill; deferred tax is not accounted fbitiarises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transantdther than a business combination that at the &f the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Tabes enacted or substantially enacted at the talkstmeet date are those that
are expected to apply when the deferred tax assetlised or deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extanittis probable that future taxable profit vl available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differeneesing on investments in subsidiaries, associatas joint

ventures, except where the timing of the reversahe temporary difference can be controlled by @mup, and it is
probable that the temporary difference will notenese in the foreseeable future.
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Tax is recognised in the income statement, extepthe extent that it relates to items recognisedother
comprehensive income or in equity. In this casettx is recognised in other comprehensive incormdirectly in equity
respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities cdfset if a legally enforceable right existsset off current tax
assets against current income tax liabilities dreddeferred taxes relate to the same taxation atytlam either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities whtrere is an intention to settle the balances oet &asis.

Franchise incentive arrangements

TCCC, at its sole discretion, provides the Grouithwarious incentives, including contributions g the
purchase of cold drink equipment. Payments are nuadelacement of coolers and are based on francéhizntive
arrangements. The terms and conditions of thesegements require reimbursement if certain conttistipulated in the
agreements are not met, including minimum volunteugh-put requirements. Support payments receivaa TCCC for
the placement of cold drink equipment are dedufited the cost of the related asset.

Share capital

Coca-Cola Hellenic has only one class of shamebnary shares. When new shares are issued, teeyeorded in
share capital at their par value. The excess o price over the par value is recorded tskia@e premium reserve.

Incremental external costs directly attributaldethiie issue of new shares or to the process ofniaty capital to
shareholders are recorded in equity as a deductairgf tax, in the share premium reserve.

Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the Group’s consolidéiteghcial statements in the period in which they approved by
the Group’s shareholders, with the exception ofsthéutory minimum dividend.

Under Greek corporate legislation, companies aauired to declare dividends annually of at leds¥% 3of
unconsolidated adjusted after-tax IFRS profits.sTétatutory minimum dividend is recognised as hilltg at the balance
sheet date.

Comparative Figures

Comparative figures have been reclassified andséeljuvhere necessary to conform with changes septation in
the current year and account for the change im¢ieeunting policies discussed below.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures:

The Group has early adopted IFRSCénsolidated Financial StatementBRS 12Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities and consequential amendments to IAS I28estments in Associates and Joint Ventuaed IAS 27 Separate
Financial StatementsAt the same time, the Group has early adopt&8BIE1Joint Arrangements The Group assessed that
the adoption of IFRS 10 did not result in any cleamgthe consolidation status of its subsidiaries.

The adoption of IFRS 11 resulted in the Group cirapgs accounting policy for its interest in joiatrangements.
Under IFRS 11, investments in joint arrangemengschassified either as joint operations or joinhtuees depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investa, hather than the legal structure of the joinaagement. Interests in joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity metmatiinterests’ in joint operations are accountedbfprecognizing the

Page 22 of 98



Coca-Cola

Al

e

>assion for Excellence

Annual Report 2012
Coca-Cola Hellenic

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ctinued)

1. Basis of preparation and accounting policiesontinued)

Group’s share of assets, liabilities, revenuesexenses. The Group has assessed the naturganfititsrrangements and

classified them as either joint operations or jeiehtures. The adjustments on application of IFRSelate primarily to a
change in accounting for Brewinvest S.A. and Bre@¥irB.V., from proportionate consolidation to equitycounting, and
recognizing our share of assets, liabilities, remenand expenses in the Romerquelle joint arrangemMene of the Group’s
other joint arrangements were materially affectedhe application of IFRS 11.

In addition, the Group has early adopted the relvis& 19Employee Benefitd his resulted in the Group changing
its accounting policy for defined benefit plansndér the revised IAS 19, past service costs amgrézed immediately in

the income statement and the expected return @tsaasd interest costs have been replaced withiateeest amount.

The Group has also early adopted the IASdsentation of Items of Other Comprehensive incoAraendments to
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statemeritse amendments change the grouping of items miex$én other comprehensive
income between items that may be reclassified ¢oithome statement at a future point in time am$éhthat will not be

reclassified.

The Group has applied the above mentioned chamgascounting policies at the beginning of the eatlperiod
presented in accordance with transitional provisiohthe amended standards. The impact from thpteaoof IFRS 11 and
IAS 19 revised is presented in the tables below:

Assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Equity method investments
Available-for-sale financial
assets

Derivative assets
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Inventories.

Trade receivables

Other receivables and assets
Derivative assets

Current tax assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Short-term borrowings
Cross currency swaps
Trade payables

Other payables
Current tax liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term borrowings
Cross-currency swap contracts
Deferred tax liabilities
Non-current provisions

Impact of change in accounting policies on consolided Balance Sheet

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Change in Change in Change in
Before accounting As Before accounting As Before accounting
adjustments policies presented adjustments policies presented adjustments policies As presented
1,956.9 (12.3) 1,944.6 1,947.7 (12.3) 1,935.4 1,966.9 12.3) 1,954.6
3,093.8 (52.4) 3,041.4 3,051.5 (53.4) 2,998.1 3,122.9 50.6) 3,072.3
43.7 124.8 168.5 429 98.8 141.7 41.1 50.7 91.8
1.9 (0.2) 1.7 14 (0.2) 12 1.8 (0.2) 16
35.8 35.8 69.5 — 69.5 73.1 — 73.1
40.6 (0.5) 40.1 35.2 (0.2) 35.1 35.0 0.2) 34.8
39.8 74 47.2 36.9 105 47.4 40.4 8.9 49.3
5,212.5 66.8 5,279.3 ,186.1 43.3 5,228.4 5,281.2 3.7) 5,277.5
460.6 (2.6) 458.0 4515 (3.8) 447.7 481.7 (4.3) 477.4
802.1 (0.8) 801.3 855.2 (0.5) 854.7 870.2 0.3 870.5
234.7 0.8 235.5 2315 (1.6) 229.9 2335 1.4 234.9
13.6 — 13.6 15.7 — 15.7 4.2 — 4.2
23.3 — 23.3 20.0 (0.3) 19.7 13.8 — 13.8
446.4 (7.3) 439.1 476.1 (28.7) 447.4 326.1 (19.4) .306
1,980.7 (9.9) 1,970.8 2,050. (34.9) 2,015.1 1,929.5 (22.0) 1,907.5
7,193.2 56.9 7,250.1 7,235.1 8.4 ,243.5 7,210.7 (25.7) 7,185.0
560.3 (5.3) 555.0 3215 — 3215 535.1 (3.9) 531.2
67.8 — 67.8 — — — — — —
441.9 (6.1) 435.8 4235 (5.7) 417.8 384.7 (5.9) 378.8
1,135.0 (4.5) 1,130.5 1,118.0 3.7) 1,114.3 1,079.4 4.5 1,083.9
33.3 (0.1) 33.2 58.4 (0.9) 57.5 37.2 (0.6) 36.6
2,238.3 (16.0) 2,222.3 1,921.4 (10.3) 1,911.1 2,036.4 (5.9) 2,030.5
1,542.2 62.5 1,604.7 1,934.5 5.3 1,939.8 1,656.4 6.4 1,662.8
75.6 75.6 130.8 — 130.8 136.1 — 136.1
176.7 0.7 177.4 1715 0.6 172.1 162.9 2.3 165.2
146.9 2.1 149.0 149.5 59 155.4 144.2 1.6 145.8
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Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Equity

Share capital

Share premium

Treasury shares

Exchange equalisation reserve
Other reserves

Retained earnings

Equity attributable to owners
of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

Annual Report 2012
Coca-Cola Hellenic

14.6 14.6 14.2 (0.1) 14.1 13.9 (0.4) 135
1,956.0 65.3 2,028 2,400.5 117 2,412.2 2,1135 9.9 2,123.4
4,194.3 49.3 4,243.6 4,321.9 14 43233 4,149.9 4.0 4,153.9

3702 — 370.2 549.8 — 549.8 183.1 — 183.1
569.3 — 569.3 569.2 — 569.2 1,119.2 — 1,119.2
(54.3) — (54.3) (55.5) — (55.5) (57.2) — (57.2)
(166.2) (1.9) (168.1) (197.9) (1.8) (199.7) (129.2) (1.8) 131.0)
381.1 (4.5) 376.6 389.0 (9.0) 380.0 375.4 (9.0) 366.4
1,880.3 14.7 1,895.0 1,640.7 19.9 1,660.6 1,460.8 4.2 1,465.0
2,980.4 8.3 2,988.7 2,895.3 9.1 2,904.4 2P52 (6.6) 2,945.5

18.5 (0.7) 17.8 17.9 2.1) 15.8 108.7 (23.1) 85.6
2,998.9 7.6 3,006.5 2,913.2 70 29202 3,060.8 (29.7) 3,031.1
7,193.2 56.9 7,250.1 7,235.1 8.4 7,2435 7,210.7 (25.7) 7,185.0

The impact to equity as at 1 January 2010 fromatteption of IFRS 11 and IAS 19 Revised was a réduocf €24.0
million and € 0.5 million respectivel{.he adjustments in the table above comprise thadtipom the adoption of IFRS 11
and IAS 19 revised. The impact from the adoptbhAS 19 revised in 2010 was an increase in “narrent provisions” of
€0.5m; the remaining adjustments in 2010 are dudéocadoption of IFRS 11. The impact from the ddwopof IAS 19
revised in 2011 was an increase in “non-currenvipions” of €0.4m; the remaining adjustments in 2@te due to the
adoption of IFRS 11. The impact from the adopdriAS 19 revised in 2012 was a reduction of “Dedertax assets” of
€0.4m, and a reduction in “non-current provision§€1.7m; the remaining adjustments in 2012 aretdufe adoption of

IFRS 11.

Impact of changes in accounting policies on consoéited Income Statement

Net sales revenue
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit .

Operating expenses
Restructuring costs

Operating profit

Finance income

Finance costs
Loss on net monetary
position

Total finance costs, net
Share of results of equity
method investments

Profit before tax

Tax

Profit after tax.

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Basic and diluted earnings
per share (€)

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Change in Change in Change in
Before accounting As Before accounting As Before accounting As
adjustments policies presented adjustments policies presented adjustments policies presented
7,078.3 (33.6) 7,044.7 6,854.3 (30.0) 6,824.3 6,793.6 32.Q) 6,761.6
(4,531.6) 9.4 (4,522.2) (4,258.8) 4.1 (4,254.7) (4,048.6) 95  (4,042.7)
2,546.7 (24.2) 2,522.5 2,595.5 (25.9) 2,569.6 2,745.0 26.1) 2,718.9
(2,090.2) 12.1 (2,078.1) (2,055.6) 7.4 (2,048.2) (2,058.4) 0.01 (2,048.4)
(106.4) (0.3) (106.7) (71.5) 04 (71.1) (36.7) 0.2 (36.5)
350.1 (12.4) 337.7 468.4 (18.1) 450.3 649.9 (15.9) 4.63
10.7 (0.3) 10.4 9.8 (1.1) 8.7 7.4 (0.5) 6.9
(98.3) 0.3 (98.0) (96.1) (96.1) (83.1) 0.3 (82.8)
(3.1) — (3.1) (7.8) — (7.8) — — —
(90.7) — (90.7) (94.1) (1.1) (95.2) (75.7) (0.2) (75.9)
2.4 9.2 11.6 1.2 8.2 9.4 25 7.9 10.4
261.8 3.2 258.6 3755 (11.0) 364.5 576.7 (8.2 568.
(66.7) 15 (65.2) (102.7) 3.9 (98.8) (138.0) 0.2 (137.8)
195.1 1.7) 1934 272.8 (7.1) 265.7 438.7 (8.0) 430.7
192.0 (1.6) 190.4 268.9 (4.5) 264.4 426.6 (5.6) 421.0
3.1 (0.1) 3.0 3.9 (2.6) 1.3 12.1 (2.4) 9.7
195.1 1.7 193.4 272.8 (7.1 265.7 438.7 (8.0) 430.7
0.53 (0.01) 0.52 0.74 (0.01) 0.73 117 (0.01) 1.16
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The adjustments in the table above comprise thednfrom the adoption of IFRS 11 and IAS 19 revised he
impact from the adoption of IAS 19 revised in 20&8s an increase in “Cost of Goods sold” of €0.7m,irecrease in
“operating expenses” of €2.7m and a reduction iax"Tof €0.7m; the remaining adjustments in 2010dre to the adoption
of IFRS 11. The impact from the adoption of IASr&®ised in 2011 was an increase in “Cost of Goadl$’ ©f €0.8m, an
increase in “operating expenses” of €3.1m and aatésh in “Tax” of €0.7m; the remaining adjustmeims2011 are due to
the adoption of IFRS 11. The impact from the awopbf IAS 19 revised in 2012 was an increase insiof Goods sold”
of €0.1m, an increase in “operating expenses d&r@&nd a reduction in “Tax” of €0.2m; the remainadjustments in 2012
are due to the adoption of IFRS 11.

Impact of changes in accounting policies on consolited Statement of Comprehensive income

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Change in Change in Change in
Before accounting As Before accounting As Before accounting As
adjustments policies presented adjustments policies presented adjustments policies presented

Profit after tax 195.1 1.7) 193.4 272.8 (7.1) 265.7 438.7 (8.0) 430.7
Other comprehensive
income:
Items that may be
subsequently reclassified
to income statement
Available-for-sale financial
assets 0.2 — 0.2 (0.4) — (0.4) (2.3) — (2.3)
Cash flow hedges (13.4) — (13.4) 8.4 — 8.4 (9.3) — (9.3)
Foreign currency translation 315 0.9 32.4 (54.2) (0.2) (54.4) 181.5 0.5 182.0

Share of other

comprehensive income of

equity method investments 0.1 (0.9) (0.8) (0.8) 0.2 (0.6) 1.4 (0.5) 0.9

Income tax relating to items

that may be subsequently

reclassified to income

statement 2.9 — 2.9 (2.6) — (2.6) 0.3 — 0.3
21.3 — 21.3 (49.6) — (49.6) 171.6 — 171.6

Items that will not be

subsequently reclassified

to income statement

Actuarial (losses) / gains. (17.9) 2.7 (15.2) (31.8) 4.1 (27.7) 2.7 3.4 6.1
Income tax relating to items

that will not be

subsequently reclassified to

income statement 3.2 (0.6) 2.6 6.5 (0.8) 5.7 (0.6) (0.7) (1.3)
Other comprehensive

income for the year,

net of tax 6.6 2.1 8.7 (74.9) 3.3 (71.6) 173.7 2.7 176.4
Total comprehensive
income for the year 201.7 0.4 202.1 197.9 (3.8) 194.1 612.4 (5.3) 607.1

Total comprehensive
income attributable to:

Owners of the parent 198.6 0.5 199.1 189.0 (1.2) 187.8 596.2 (2.9) 593.3
Non-controlling interests 3.1 (0.1) 3.0 8.9 (2.6) 6.3 16.2 (2.4) 13.8
201.7 0.4 202.1 197.9 (3.8) 194.1 612.4 (5.3 607.1

The adjustments in the table above comprise theadnfstom the adoption of IFRS 11 and IAS 19 revisEde
impact from the adoption of IAS 19 revised in 2048s an increase in “Actuarial gains” of €3.4m, acréase in “income
tax relating to components of other comprehensim®me” of €0.7m, the remaining adjustments in 2@i® due to the
adoption of IFRS 11. The impact from the adoptibhA&s 19 revised in 2011 was a reduction in “Acfablosses” of €4.1m,
a reduction in “income tax relating to componerft®ther comprehensive income” of €0.8m, the renrmgjradjustments in
2011 are due to the adoption of IFRS 11. The imfram the adoption of IAS 19 revised in 2012 waseduction in
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“Actuarial losses” of €2.7m, a reduction in “incortex relating to components of other comprehensizeme” of €0.6m,
the remaining adjustments in 2012 are due to tbetath of IFRS 11.

Impact of changes in accounting policies on consdéted cash flow statement

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Change in Change in Change in
Before accounting As Before accounting As Before accounting
adjustments policies presented  adjustments policies presented  adjustments policies As presented

Net cash from
operating activities 774.2 (20.6) 753.6 845.7 4)7. 828.3 987.9 (17.5) 970.4
Net cash used in
investing activities (390.6) (13.1) (403.7) (336.4 (35.4) (371.8) (365.5) 8.8 (356.7)
Net cash (used
in)/from financing
activities (413.3) 54.8 (358.5) (353.3) 435 (®9. (527.7) 14.9 (512.8)
Net
(decrease)/increase in
cash and cash
equivalents (29.7) 21.1 (8.6) 156.0 (9.3) 146.7 794 6.2 100.9

The adjustments in the table above comprise thadmipom the adoption of IFRS 11. There was no ichpa the cash flow
statement from the adoption of IAS 19 revised.

Accounting pronouncements adopted in 2012

In the current period, in addition to the new aevised standards the Group early adopted as dedcabove under
“changes in accounting policies and disclosurebe Group has adopted all of the new and reviseddatds and
interpretations which were issued by the IASB drallhternational Financial Reporting Interpretasi@ommittee (‘IFRIC’)
of the IASB, that are relevant to its operations affective for accounting periods beginning oratiuary 2012. None of
these standards and interpretations had a signifiefiect on the consolidated financial statemeritthe Company. The
revised standard and interpretation is as follows:

Amendment to IFRS Financial Instruments: DisclosuresTthe amendments require additional disclosures ef th
full or partial derecognition of financial assetat are transferred to a counterparty under cecanditions.

Accounting pronouncements not yet adopted

At the date of approval of these consolidatedrfoia statements, the following standards and jm&gations
relevant to Company’s operations were issued buyeiceffective and not early adopted:

IFRS 9, Financial Instrumentsaddresses the classification, measurement andymitiom of financial assets and
liabilities. IFRS 9 was issued in November 2008 &rctober 2010 and it replaces parts of IASF8ancial Instruments:
Recognition and Measuremetitat relate to the classification and measureméninancial instrumentsThe standard
introduces new requirements for classifying andsugag financial assets and eliminates the availédn-sale and held-to-
maturity categories. It separates financial agsétstwo categories; those measured at amortisstdaral those measured at
fair value. For financial liabilities the standamgtains most of the IAS 39 requirements, the maiange is that, in cases
where the fair value option is taken for finandiabilities, the part of a fair value change duetoentity’s own credit risk is
recorded in other comprehensive income rather thamncome statement, unless this creates an aegunismatch. IFRS
9 will be effective for annual periods beginningamafter 1 January 2015. The standard has ndig@n adopted by the EU.
The Group is currently evaluating the impact théndard will have on its consolidated financiatetaents.

In May 2011 the IASB issued IFRS Fair Value Measurementhich is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013. The new standard defiaigsvllue and establishes a single framework foasueng fair value
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1. Basis of preparation and accounting policiesontinued)

where that is required by other standards anddotres consistent requirements for disclosures ioivdéue measurements.
The standard applies to both financial and nonrioie assets and liabilities which are measurddiatvalue. The Group is
currently evaluating the impact this standard hél/e on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2011 the IASB issued an amendment RSIF Financial Instruments: DisclosuresOffsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilitieshich is effective for annual reporting periodgimming on or after 1 January,
2013. The new disclosures will require entitiesdisclose gross amounts subject to rights of detasfiounts set off in
accordance with the accounting standards, andeflaged net credit exposure. The amendment willhaste a significant
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial staets.

In December 2011 the IASB issued an amendment 8f3AFinancial Instruments: Presentatiomhich is effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or aftefanuary 2014. This amendment to the applicatiodagce in IAS 32
clarifies some of the requirements for offsettingahcial assets and financial liabilities on thetestnent of financial position.
The Group is currently evaluating the impact theadments will have on its consolidated financiateshents.

In May 2012 the IASB issued its annual improvementdFRS (2009-2011 cycle). The effective datetuf
amendments is 1 January 2013. The Group is cuyremtlluating the impact the amendments will havét®iconsolidated
financial statements. The amendments, which hatvgetdeen adopted by the EU, are outlined below:

Amendment to IAS 1Presentation of Financial Statement<Clarification of the requirements for comparative
information: The amendment clarifies the difference betweenntaly additional comparative information and the
minimum required comparative information. Generathe minimum required comparative period is thevigus
period. An entity must include comparative inforioatin the related notes to the financial statememhen it
voluntarily provides comparative information beyotitce minimum required comparative period. The aoladltl
comparative period does not need to contain a cete@et of financial statements. In addition, tiperong
statement of financial position (known as the thiedance sheet) must be presented in the followirogimstances:
when an entity changes its accounting policies;anaktrospective restatements or makes reclasgfisaand that
change has a material effect on the statemennhafdéial position. The opening statement would kbetbeginning
of the preceding period. For example, the beginoifihe preceding period for a 31 December 2014-gad would
be 1 January 2013. However, unlike the voluntampgarative information, the related notes are nquired to
accompany the third balance sheet.

IAS 16 Property, Plant and EquipmentClassification of servicing equipment: The ach@ent clarifies that major
spare parts and servicing equipment that meetdfigition of property, plant and equipment are imventory.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation Tax effect of distributions to holders of equitystruments: The
amendment clarifies that income taxes arising fdistributions to equity holders are accounted foaccordance
with IAS 12 Income Taxes. The amendment removestiagi income tax requirements from IAS 32 and rezqi
entities to apply the requirements in IAS 12 to aropme tax arising from distributions to equityldrs.

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting Interim financial reporting and segment inforioat for total assets and
liabilities. The amendment clarifies the requiremsein IAS 34 relating to segment information fotal assets and
liabilities for each reportable segment to enhaswsistency with the requirements in IFRS 8 Opega8egments.
Total assets and liabilities for a particular reépble segment need to be disclosed only when theuai® are

regularly provided to the chief operating decisioaker and there has been a material change irothleamount

disclosed in the entity’s previous annual finanstattements for that reportable segment.

In June 2012 the IASB issued amendments to IFRSC&fsolidated Financial Statementd=RS 11 Joint
Arrangementsand IFRS 12Disclosures of Interests in Other Entitiesat are applicable from 1 January 2013. The
amendments change the transition guidance to peaelief from full retrospective application sudtat the requirement to
provide adjusted comparative application is limitedhe immediate preceding period only. The ameardmwill not have
an impact on the Group’s consolidated financiaiesteents as these standards have been early aduigtefdll retrospective
application. The amendments have not been adoptételEU.
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2. Exchange rates

The Group’s reporting currency is #uro (€). Coc&ola Hellenic translates the income statementsibsgigian
operations to the euro at average exchange ratetharbalance sheets at the closing exchangeat8idecember, exce
for subsidiaries operating in hyperinflationary gamment as explained in Note 1. The principal exae rates used -
transaction and translation purposes in respeashefeuro are:

Average Average Average Closing Closing Closing
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
US dollar .....ooooeiiieee e 1.29 1.40 1.32 1.33 1.31 1.31
UK StEIING .ooeeeieeiiieiicciee e 0.81 0.87 0.85 0.82 0.83 0.85
POlISh ZIOtY ..o 4.18 412 4.01 4.09 4.40 3.99
NIQEMAN NAUIE ....veviieieiieieee et eee e 200.65 212.90 196.41 206.72 204.79 196.01
Hungarian forint ..........cccccciiiiinieeeee e, 288.38 279.76 276.38 291.50 306.54 279.30
SWISS franC .......cvvveviiiieei i e 1.21 1.23 1.38 1.21 1.22 1.25
Russian rouble ........ccoccviviiiiee e 39.84 41.04 40.11 40.42 41.27 39.95
Romanian U ..........c.ouvviivviveees e senene e 4.46 4.23 4.22 4.43 4.30 4.29
Ukrainian hryvnia .........ccccccviiiieiiineeereeee e 10.28 11.11 10.49 10.57 10.44 10.50
CZECN CrOWN ..ooviiveiece e 25.15 24.65 25.31 25.08 25.75 25.27
Serbian dinar.........cccocveieieiee e 113.08 101.99 103.40 113.46 102.65 105.88

3. Segmental Analysis

Coca-Cola Hellenic has one business, being thdugtion, sale and distribution of non-alcoholicadg-to-drink
beverages. The Group operates in 28 countries @néinancial results are reported in the followittgee reportable
segments:

Established countries: Austria, Cyprus, Greece, Italy, Northern IrelanepRblic of Ireland and Switzerland.

Developing countries: Croatia, Czech Republic, Estonia, Hungary, Latiithuania, Poland, Slovakia and
Slovenia.

Emerging countries: Armenia, Belarus, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Bulg&¥ROM, Moldova,

Montenegro, Nigeria, Romania, Russia, Serbia anid&.

The Group’s operations in each of these segmeane kimilar levels of political and economic staypiland
development, regulatory environments, growth opputies, customers and distribution infrastructuréee accounting
policies of the Group’s reportable segments aresdmme as those described in Note 1 . The Groupisf @perating
Decision Maker is its operating committee, whictaleates performance and allocates resources baseolume, net sales
revenue and operating profit.

There are no material amounts of sales or tramdbetween the Group’s segments. In addition thegena
customers who represent more than 5% of the tatahbe of revenue for the Group.
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3. Segmental analysis (continued)

2012 2011 2010
Year ended 31 December Note € million € million € million
Volume in unit cas&s
EStabliSNed.......oooiiiii e 679.4 713.5 731.8
DEVEIOPING. ...ttt e e e e e e s 3935 399.7 391.7
EMEIGING. ..ottt e e e 1,011.8 974.2 981.5
Total VOIUME iN UNIt CASES.....ccciiiiiiiieiiiiieie ettt 2,084.7 2,087.4 2,105.0
Net sales revenue
EStabliShed........cooiiiiiii e ———— 2,701.8 2,834.8 2,861.6
DEVEIOPING. ... ettt e et s 1,148.1 1,161.5 1,140.0
EMEIGING. .. oottt e e e e 3,194.8 2,828.0 2,760.0
Total Net SAlES FEVENUE........coiiieiie et 7,044.7 6,824.3 6,761.6
Adjusted EBITDR’
EStabliSNed.....cooiieiiie e 231.9 343.2 405.0
DEVEIOPING ..ttt et e et e s 76.5 141.1 163.9
EMEIGING ..ttt 449.2 367.9 460.1
Total adjusted EBITDA .....coooi o ee e ae e 757.6 852.2 1,029.0
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant aaglipment
Established (136.3 (237.7 (134.3)
Developing . (83.4) (80.4 (73.0)
EMEIGING ..ttt (188.6 (171.2 (173.9)
Total depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment .... 5 (408.3 (389.3 (381.2)
Amortisation of intangible assets
EStabliSNed....ccoiieiiii i (0.6) (0.8) (4.5)
DEVEIOPING ...vveiiiiiiiiie ettt . (0.3) (0.4) (0.5)
EMEITING ettt e e (2.1) (2.0) (2.1)
Total amortisation of intangible asSetS..........ccevveiiiiiiiii i, (3.0) (3.2) (7.1)
Other non-cash itenff
EStabliShed........ooooiiiii e (2.5) (3.3) (2.4)
DEVEIOPING. ... eteiii ittt (1.5) (1.9 (1.2)
EMEIGING. .. ot (4.6) (4.2) (3.1)
Total other NoN-cash IteMS.............ooviiiiiii e, (8.6) (9.4) (6.7)

1) One unit case corresponds to approximd&edy8 litres or 24 servings, being a typically useelasure of volume. Volume data is derived fromuditac

operational data.

(2) We define adjusted EBITDA as operating pprioéfore deductions for depreciation (includedhbiot cost of goods sold and in operating expenseggimmen
of property, plant and equipment, stock option cengation, impairment of intangible assets, amditisaf and adjustments to intangible assets ahdratoneast

items.

(3) Other no-cesh items comprise adjustments to intangible asgetdich were nil in 2012 (2011 and 2010 : nil)féreto Note 20), loss on availabl-for-sale
financial assets reclassified to the profit and lfsem equity of which were nil in 2012 (2011 ar@ll@: nil) (refer to Note 20), stock option expenge€6.3m (2011

€8.1m. 2010: €6.7m) (refer to Note 26) and otremg of €2.3m (2011: €1.3m . 2010:1
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3. Segmental analysis (continued)

Year ended 31 December

Operating profit

EStablished........ooo e s
(DY 71 [o] o1 T SR UUORRPRPPPN
g 1= (o 11 T S
Total operating Profit ..o

Interest expense and finance charges

EStablished........ooo e s
D1V 71 [ o1 T TP
Emerging v
(070 ]¢ o l0] £-1 L= TSP
Inter segment iINtEreSt EXPEINSE. .....ccieiiiiiieei e e et

Total interest expense and finance charges............cccccvvvviivieeeeeeeee e,

Finance income

EStabliShed. ...
D1V 71 [ o1 T RS
(=g L] (o 1 T PR URUPPPRPPPTPN
(07014 ol0] 7= 1 {= TSR

Inter segment finance income
Total fiNnANCE INCOME......ciiiiiii i e a e e

Income tax expense

EStablished.... ..o s
D=1V o1 Vo PSSR
g 1= (o 11 T S
[O70] 1 o Jo] £- 1= TP PT PRSPPI
Total iINCOME taX EXPENSE. ....ciiiie i i e v

Reconciling items
Net foreign exchange translation I0SSES.........ccooeeveeiieivieeeviiiiccciee e,
Share of results of equity method investments...............ococcvieeeevvvieeennnn.

Profit @ftEr TAX ..eveeeeiiiiiiii et e e e e

Expenditure on non-current asséts
EStabliSNed........oooie e

DEVEIOPING. ..ttt ettt e a et e e e ta e —
EMEIGING. . etieiiiiiiiee et a e e e e ————

Total expenditure 0N NON-CUMTENt ASSELS.......cuvviieeeeeiiiiiiermeeeieieeeeeeeens

2012 2011 2010
Note € million € million € million
925 201.4 263.8
(8.7) 58.4 89.2
253.9 190.5 281.0
337.7 450.3 634.0
(76.3) (94.3) (106.2)
(2.5) (2.2) (2.0
(32.1) (34.8) (21.4)
(131.3 (146.7 (153.1)
141.4 173.5 200.3
21 (100.8 (1045 (82.4)
16.9 38.9 49.5
1.2 14 24
25.5 22.9 15.6
108.2 119.0 139.7
(141.4 (173.5 (200.3)
21 104 8.7 6.9
(29.5) (49.1) (73.6)
(3.3) (12.6) (22.4)
(26.9) (29.0) (39.8)
(5.5) (8.1) (2.0)
22 (65.2) (98.8) (137.8)
21 (0.3) 0.6 (0.4)
6 11.6 9.4 10.4
193.4 265.7 430.7
123.5 117.1 117.9
46.4 46.5 61.0
225.6 200.3 203.4
395.5 363.9 382.3

(_4) Total additions of property, plant and guoent for the year ended 31 December 2012 were. £4682011: €396.2m, 2010: €436.4m).

Corporate line refers to holding, finance and oti@r-operating subsidiaries of the Group.
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3. Segmental analysis (continued)

The net sales revenue from external customerstaentdlance of lonived assets attributed to Greece (the Group’s g
of domicile), Russia, Italy and Switzerland (whaosgenues from external customers or long-lived tasage significat
compared to the combined Group revenues from eatteustomers or lonljved assets) and the total of all other count

as well as the entire Group, were as follows ferytbars ended 31 December:

2012 2011 2010
Year ended 31 December € million € million € million
Net sales revenue from external customers
(] (= o7 P 450.8 526.9 604.9
RUSSIAL .t iii e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e bbb —————— e 1,461.4 1,201.4 1,138.6
EIY et e e s —————— s 1,099.0 1,133.1 1,135.2
SWItZEIANG ... .eeieeic e e o—— 426.1 434.8 379.8
All countries, other than Greece, Russia, Italy Sadtzerland..................... 3,607.4 3,528.1 3,503.1
Total net sales revenue from external CUStOMErS..........cccoeeeeeviiiiieieeenne. 7,044.7 6,824.3 6,761.6
2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Non-current assefd
L] (=TT ot ST 159.8 175.2 194.2
RUSSIAL .. . iieiieeiee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeaaens 840.0 817.6 850.5
17 Y SRRSO 1,059.8 1,072.3 1,091.6
SWILZEFIANG... .ot e e e e e e s 516.6 520.6 501.2
All countries, other than Greece, Russia, Italy Sadtzerland 2,455.4 2,393.6 2,437.0
Total NON-CUITENT ASSELS.......ccieiiiieiieieeiece e ee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeaeees 5,031.6 4,979.3 5,074.5

(5) Excluding financial instruments, equity mad investments and deferred tax assets.
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4. Intangible assets

Other
Franchise intangible
Goodwill agreements Trademarks assets Total
€ million € million € million € million € million

Cost

As at 1 January 2012........cccccvvveeieiiieeeeeeeeeee e 1,880.7 156.8 78.8 241  2,1404
Foreign currency translation ...........cccccceeevviieeeiiiinnnnn, 11.1 (0.2) 1.3 — 12.2
As at 31 December 2012 ..........cccvvveievimeee e 1,891.8 156.6 80.1 241  2,152.6
Amortisation

As at 1 January 2012........cccocvvveiieieimmeeee e 182.4 — 7.8 14.8 205.0
Charge for the year ........cccccceeeii i ceem e, — — 1.1 1.9 3.0
As at 31 December 2012 ..........cccvvviivivmeee e 182.4 — 8.9 16.7 208.0
Net book value as at 1 January 2012 .......ccccceeevvvnnneen 1,698.3 156.8 71.0 9.3 1,935.4
Net book value as at 31 December 2012.................... 1,709.4 156.6 71.2 7.4 19446
Cost

As at 1 January 2011.........cuuvuvuvmimiiimmrrreneeeiiiniienies 1,895.4 157.7 80.5 27.2 2,160.8
Disposal of subsidiary............ccccvrvivammmereeceiiiiieeeen, (13.5) — — (2.9) (16.4)
Intangibles assets arising on current year acdipisit...... 2.7 — 0.2 — 2.9
Foreign currency translation ...........ccccccevevivieneiiiennnnn, (3.9) (0.9) (1.9) (0.2) (6.9)
As at 31 December 2011 .......cceveeeeiiiiiiiee e 1,880.7 156.8 78.8 24.1  2,140.4
Amortisation

As at 1 January 2011.......cccccviviiiiiiimereeeeeeee e 185.3 — 7.2 13.7 206.2
Charge for the year ..........coovvvviiiviivemmeemee e — — 0.6 2.6 3.2
Disposal of subsidiary............ccccvvvivammmes e, (2.9) — — (1.5) (4.4)
As at 31 December 2011 .......ccveeeeiiiiiicee e 182.4 — 7.8 14.8 205.0
Net book value as at 1 January 2011 .......ccccceeevvvnnnen 1,710.1 157.7 73.3 13.5 1,954.6
Net book value as at 31 December 2011.................... 1,698.3 156.8 71.0 9.3 1,935.4
Cost

As at 1 January 2010.........cuuuiiurmimiiimmrrreeeeeiiiniienis 1,829.7 136.7 75.2 226 2,064.2
AdItIONS ... e e — 21.8 — 5.9 27.7
DISPOSAIS......ciiiiiiiiiiiiie e — — — (1.3) 1.3)
Foreign currency translation ...........ccccccevevviieeeeiiinnnnn, 65.7 (0.8) 5.3 — 70.2
As at 31 December 2010 ..........ccvvvviieiiceee e 1,895.4 157.7 80.5 27.2 2,160.8
Amortisation

As at 1 January 2010.......cccccveviiiiiiimereee e 185.3 — 6.6 10.5 202.4
Charge for the year ........cccccceee e ceeeeee e, — — 0.6 3.6 4.2
DISPOSAIS ...ttt e e — — — (0.4) (0.4)
As at 31 December 2010 .......ccueeeeeiiiiiiiee e 185.3 — 7.2 13.7 206.2
Net book value as at 1 January 2010 ........cccceeerveveeees 1,644.4 136.7 68.6 121 1,861.8
Net book value as at 31 December 2010.................... 1,710.1 157.7 73.3 135 1,954.6
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4. Intangible assets (continued)
Goodwill is allocaténl each of the Group's cagknerating units expected to benefit from the ms

combination in which the goodwill arose. Other ifigi¢e-lived intangible assets are also allocatedhite Group’s cash
generating units expected to benefit from thosanigibles.

The following table sets forth thanying value of intangible assets subject to avidsnbject to amortisation:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Intangible assets not subject to amortisa
(€T oo o 11 1| OSSR PRPPPPRP 1,709.4 1,698.3 1,710.1
Franchise agreements 156.6 156.8 157.7
TPAAEMAIKS ..eeiiiitiiii ettt ettt e s r bt e s e e e e e nbe e e e, 71.0 69.9 72.3

1,937.0 1,925.0 1,940.1
Intangible assets subject to amortisa

TrAOEMAIKS ...ttt ettt et e e e e e e e e s e n e e ese e eeeaaaeaaeeans 0.2 1.1 1.0
J T L] g o | 1P PP PPRP TR 6.7 6.9 7.4
Other intangible ASSELS ........uiiiiiiieecce e 0.7 2.4 6.1

7.6 104 14.5
Total INtaNgIbIE ASSEIS ...ivviiiiiiii et e e e 1,944.6 1,935.4 1,954.6

The following table sets forth the carrying valuegoodwill and other indefinite lived intangiblesass for thos
cash-generating units that are considered significa comparison with the Group’s totahreying value of goodwill ar
other indefinite-lived intangible assets, as aD&tember 2012.

Franchise
Goodwill agreements Total
€ million € million € million
EAIY e —————————————— e e e e e e et ettt e e e ——————r e r b 625.2 126.9 752.1
SWILZEIANG ..ottt e e e e e e b ae e ee e 381.0 — 381.0
TOtal IFElANG ..o 288.9 — 288.9
TOUAL vttt ettt et emeam et ee et et et et et et e et ee et et et ettt e eeeee et et ettt er e eneee 1,295.1 126.9  1,422.0

The Group conducts a test for impairment of godldanid indefinite-lived intangible assets in acamde with
IAS 36 Impairment of Assetmnnually and whenever there is an indication gfdinment. No impairment was indicated from
the impairment tests of 2012, 2011 and 2010.

The recoverable amount of each operation was mé&ted through a value-in-use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based oanfiral budgets approved by the Board of Directorsedng a three-year
period and cash projections for two additional geaash flow projections for years four to five weprojected by
management based on operation and market spedfficlédvel assumptions including growth rates, distorates and
forecasted selling prices and direct costs.

Page 33 of 98



Caca-Cola Annual Report 2012
‘C Coca-Cola Hellenic
SR R

>assion for Excellence

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ctinued)

4. Intangible assets (continued)

Management determined gross margins based on edstrpance, expectations for the development ofhtheket
and expectations about raw material costs. The throates used in perpetuity reflect the forecasiine with management
beliefs. These forecasts exceeded, in some cémse expected for the industry in general, dué¢ostrength of our brand
portfolio. Management estimates discount ratesgusates that reflect current market assessmeritedfme value of money

and risks specific to the countries of operation.

For those countries that are considered significacomparison with the Group’s total carrying welof goodwill
and other indefinite-lived intangible assets, a8laDecember 2012, cash flows beyond the five-pesiod (the period in

perpetuity) have been extrapolated using the fofigvestimated growth and discount rates:

Growth rate in Discount
perpetuity (%) rate (%)
2012 2011 2012 2011
EAIY e ————————— et aaaa— e e e aaaataaaeaaan 2.5 3.0 8.5 9.9
SWILZEMANG ... e e 1.0 15 6.4 6.2
TOA IFEIANG ... 2.0 2.0 8.2 9.0

In Italy, the recoverable amount oédted based on value in use exceeded carrying@\®l€226.1 m. Any one of
reduction in the average gross profit margin ofA4,.a fall in the revenue growth rate in perpetoityl.6%, or a rise inhE
weighted average discount rate of 1.3% would rembgeemaining headroom. In Ireland, the headro@s€¥4.7 m. An'
one of a reduction in the average gross profit iman§1.7%, a fall in the revenue growth rate impeuity of 1.4% or aise

in the weighted average discount rate of 1.0% woedove the remaining headroom.
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Land and Plant and Returnable Assets unde

buildings equipment containers construction Total

€ million € million € million € million € million
Cost
As at 1 January 2012........cccceieeiiiiicaeae e 1,459.6 3,691.5 359.0 156.6  5,666.7
AdAItIONS ..o e 7.5 160.6 45.2 255.1 468.4
DISPOSAIS ...cccoeieeciiiiiiie e e (6.7) (151.8 (18.9) — (177.4)
Classified to assets held for sale (refer to N&e.1... (9.4) — — — (9.4)
Reclassifications ... 51.7 225.0 0.2 (276.9 —
Foreign currency translation ..........cccccccevevcieeennnn. 12.8 24.8 (1.2) 0.2 36.6
Effect of hyperinflation..............ccooov i, 0.5 3.8 — (0.2) 4.1
As at 31 December 2012 ........ccceeeiiiiiiimee e, 1,516.0 3,953.9 384.3 134.8  5,989.0
Depreciation and impairment
As at 1 January 2012...........euvvureeniiimmmrreeeeeiiiniieninnns 305.3 2,211.7 151.6 — 2,668.6
Charge for the year .......cccccceeeeiiii oo 38.6 308.8 27.9 — 375.3
IMPAIMMENT....eiiiiiiiiiie e e 17.6 13.4 2.0 — 33.0
DISPOSAIS ...cccoeeeeciiiiieiie e (4.4) (127.0; (17.1) — (148.5)
Foreign currency translation ..........ccccccceevevciieeennnn. 2.7 13.7 (0.3) — 16.1
Effect of hyperinflation..............ccoooviiceceiiiinnnn, 0.1 3.0 — — 3.1
As at 31 December 2012 .........ccoceoiiviiimmmmnee e, 359.9 2,423.6 164.1 — 2,947.6
Net book value as at 1 January 2012...................... 1,154.3 1,479.8 207.4 156.6  2,998.1
Net book value as at 31 December 2012................ 1,156.1 1,530.3 220.2 134.8 3,041.4
Cost
As at 1 January 2011 .......coocoeieeeiiiiceeee e 1,437.0 3,584.3 337.8 162.4 5,521.5
AdItIONS ..o e 7.5 162.9 45.3 180.4 396.1
Arising on acquisitions ..........ccccvvviviierremeee e e 0.7 — — — 0.7
DiSPOSAIS ...vvvviviiiiiiiiii e (8.0) (112.3 (18.5) — (138.8)
Disposal of subsidiary............ccccvvvivammmereeesciiiene (0.2) (9.1) — — (9.3)
Reclassified from assets held for sale (refer tteNI8) — 5.9 — — 5.9
Reclassifications .......cccccccoeviviiiiiceeec e 48.5 134.8 0.2 (183.5; (0.0)
Foreign currency translation ...........ccccccceevvvieeennnnn. (26.8) (83.9) (5.8) (2.9) (119.49)
Effect of hyperinflation...........ccccviiviccece s 0.9 8.9 — 0.2 10.0
As at 31 December 2011 ........c.ceeeviiviiimmmmeee e, 1,459.6 3,691.5 359.0 156.6  5,666.7
Depreciation and impairment
As at 1 January 2011 .......cooooiiieiiiiiceeeee e 274.4 2,040.7 134.1 — 2,449.2
Charge for the year .......cccccceveeeennn. 38.8 296.4 33.1 — 368.3
IMPAIMMENT.. ettt e e 25 15.2 3.3 — 21.0
DiSPOSAIS ...vvvvvviiiiiiiiii e (4.8) (100.4 (16.7) — (121.9)
Disposal of subsidiary..........ccccccoeeiiiceceee e (0.12) (2.7) — — (2.8)
Reclassified from assets held for sale (refer tteNI8) — 4.1 — — 4.1
Foreign currency translation ...........cccccccevevvvienennnnn. (5.7) (47.0) (2.2) — (54.9)
Effect of hyperinflation...........ccccvviviccecere s 0.2 5.4 — — 5.6
As at 31 December 2011 ........c.ceeeiiiiiiimmmmeee e, 305.3 2,211.7 151.6 — 2,668.6
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Land and Plant and Returnable Assets unde

buildings equipment containers construction Total

€ million € million € million € million € million
Net book value as at 1 January 2011...................... 1,162.6 1,543.6 203.7 1624  3,072.3
Net book value as at 31 December 2011................ 1,154.3 1,479.8 207.4 156.6  2,998.1
Cost
As at 1 January 2010..........uuuvvuriimiiimmrrrereieiiinieenienns 1,258.9 3,252.7 289.2 250.9 5,051.7
AdAItIONS ..o e 155 161.6 40.9 218.4 436.4
DISPOSAIS ...cccoeieeciiiieie e (8.5) (139.7 (6.5) — (154.7)
Reclassified from assets held for sale (refer ttel8) — 1.5 — — 15
Classified to assets held for sale (refer to N&e.1... (1.3) (0.7) — — (2.0)
Reclassifications .......cccccccoeviiiiiiiiceeece e 130.7 198.8 0.1 (329.6 —
Foreign currency translation ............cccccceevviieeennnnn, 41.7 110.1 14.1 22.7 188.6
As at 31 December 2010 ..........ceeeiiiviiimmmmnee e, 1,437.0 3,584.3 337.8 1624 5,521.5
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2010.......ccocceiieeiiiiciaeen e 232.8 1,818.4 91.1 — 2,142.3
Charge forthe year ..........ccoovvvvvvivvemmmm e 38.9 298.2 44.1 — 381.2
DiSPOSAIS ...vvvivviiiiiiiiii e (5.7) (134.5 (6.6) — (146.8)
Reclassified from assets held for sale (refer ttel8) — 0.5 — — 0.5
Classified to assets held for sale (refer to N&g.1... (0.1) (0.1) — — 0.2)
Foreign currency translation ..........ccccccceevevciieeeennnn. 8.5 58.2 5.5 — 72.2
As at 31 December 2010 ..........ceeeiiiviiimmmmnie e, 274.4 2,040.7 134.1 — 2,449.2
Net book value as at 1 January 2010...................... 1,026.1 1,434.3 198.1 250.9 2,909.4
Net book value as at 31 December 2010................ 1,162.6 1,543.6 203.7 162.4 3,072.3

Assets under construction at 31 Decenfd? include advances for equipment purchase§26f8m (2011
€16.5m, 2010: €46.8m). Impairment of Property, Pkamd Equipment of €33.0m (2011: €21.0m) relatesetructurin
initiatives of €11.5m, €20.1m and €1.4m in the lelished, developing and emerging segments respdei{?011:€11.5m
€8.9m, €0.6m respectively). Refer also to note R0(c
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5. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Included in property, plant and ¢umént are assets delinder finance leases, where the Group is thedess

follows:
2012 2011 2010

€ million € million € million
As at 1 January 161.0 235.0 251.5
F N 011 o] ST PP PP PPP R PPPPPP 42.0 4.3 62.8
DISPOSAIS .ttt et e e e e e e s et e e e b e e (36.8) (53.5) (47.8)
DEPreCiation CRAIGE ...ttt e e et e e e e e e s e e e s e e e e e e e e ae e s (15.6) (22.4) (31.4)
Foreign currenCy tranSIation ...........c..oeoiiiiie i e 7.1 (2.4) (0.1)
AS At 3L DECEMDET ...ttt ettt e e e mr e e 157.7 161.0 235.0

Assets held under finance leaseg h@en pledged as secyiiit relation to the liabilities under the finaneases
The net book value of land and buildings held urfireance leases as at 31 December 2012 was €420b1:€44.7m
2010: €42.0m). The net book value of plant and mgent held under finance leases as at 31 Decenfi@r\@as €108

(2011: €116.3m, 2010: €193.0m).

6. Equity method investments and joint operations
€)) Investments in associates

Summarised financial informationoofr investments in associates is as follows:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Carrying @mMOUNT ......ccooiiiiiiiii et imnmr e e e e e e e et e e e e e e s enreaeeaaaeas 16.6 16.5 15.4
Share Of Profit ... 2.0 1.7 2.4
Share of other comprehensive iINCOME .......cccoeeaiiiiiiiiiiiii e (0.1) (0.6) 1.0
Share of total cCOMPrenensIiVe INCOME ..........cemmerniiiiiiniieeiee e 1.9 1.1 3.4

Included in investment in associasethe Group's investment in Frigoglass Industtiesited. Nigerian Bottling
Company plc holds an interest in Frigoglass of 23(2011 and 2010: 23.9% respectively). The Group&na00%2011.
100% and 2010: 66.4%) intereist Nigerian Bottling Company plc therefore the Gpohas an effective interest
Frigoglass of 24% (2011 : 24% and 2010: 16%) r&laee restrictive controls on the movement of fuodt of Nigeria.

Changes in the carrying amountsieéstments in associates are as follows:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
AS AL L JANUATY ..coieiiiiiiiiiiiiit e s e e e e e e e e e s e eere e e aeesae e 16.5 154 13.8
Share of results of equity method iNVeStMeNtS . .occoviiiiiieiiceeiieee 2.0 1.7 2.4
Return of capital from asSOCIates..........ccaeeaaiiiiiii e e (1.8) — (1.8)
Foreign currency translation ............c.eeeviiieiiiniiee e (0.1) (0.6) 1.0
F - L R =Yo7 =T o1 o 1= 16.6 16.5 15.4
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(b) Investments in joint ventures

The Group has a material joint veatwith Heineken that is conducted through a nunabfdegal entities, beir
the Brewinvest S.A. Group of companies and the Bk B.V. Group of companies. As such the joint ventur
structured through separate vehicles and provigesGroup with rights to their net assets. The Bneast S.A.Group o
companies is engaged in the bottling and distrilputf beer in Bulgaria. Brewinvest S.i&.incorporated in Greece and
Group owns 50% (2011 and 2010: 50% respectivelyitsobhare capital. The BrewTech B.@roup of companies
engaged in the bottling and distribution of sofhlds and beer in FYROM. In 2010, 2011 and up upitil 2012 Brewlect
B.V. Group formed part of the Brewinvest S.A. GrolggewTech B.V.is incorporated in the Netherlands and the G
owns 50% of its share capital.

Summarised financial information of our materiahjoventure is as follows (the information belovfleets the
amount presented in the IFRS financial statemefritsegoint venture, and not our share in those &ams):

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million

Summarised balance sheet:

Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS ........uuuiiiiiieeeeee e e 11.4 55.2 36.0
Other current assets (eXClUAING CASN) .....uceeeeeereiiiiiiiiiiiie e, 15.4 17.4 20.6
TOLAl CUITENE @SSELS ...eiiieiiiiiei it mmmmmn ettt et e e s 26.8 72.6 56.6
Financial liabilities (excluding trade payableS)..........ccccceeevieiiieeiciiiiiienieeeee, — — (7.8)
Other current liabilities (including trade payables...............cccevvvvieeeiciciieeeennn. (27.2) (26.6) (26.2)
Total current labilitiesS............ovvvviiieeme e e (27.2) (26.6) (34.0)
NON - CUIMENTE ASSEIS......cciiiiiiiiiiiiiiet ceeemme ettt e e e e e e et e et e eeeeeeeeereaneerebennsines 215.2 113.4 117.8
Non - current financial liabilities ..........cccce i e — (0.2) (0.2)
Non - current other lIabilitieS ........coouvieeee i e e (0.2) (1.0) (1.0)
Total non - current abilities..............scomvvvire e (0.2) (1.2) (1.2)
NET ASSEIES. .. teiiiiieeeee it e e e e e e e e e 214.6 158.2 139.2

Summarised statement of comprehensive income:

REVENUE ...ttt e 126.4 117.2 118.2
Depreciation and amortiZation .............ccccceeeeeieeciiieee e emem e (11.6) (12.8) (15.8)
INEEIESE INCOME ..ottt ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e ne e e e e s 1.8 2.6 1.2

INTEIEST EXPENSE .vvtiuriiiie i iee e e e e st e et ee et ran e e e e e e aeaa e s (1.0) (0.2) (0.6)
Profit DEfOre 1aX ......coieiiieiiie et 24.4 22.8 25.0
INCOME tAX EXPENSE ... uieiiiiiiieieie e e e e s e e ereeae e e e e e e sttt et e aeaeeeses s sntntnrnnaeaeeesesanas (3.0) (2.7) (2.6)
Profit @fter T8X ...t e 21.4 20.2 22.4
Other comprenensive INCOME .........uuiiiiiieree e — — —

Total comPrehensSIiVe INCOME............oivieei e e er e e e e e e e e s e s aeees 21.4 20.2 22.4

Reconciliation of net assets to carrying amount

ClOSING NEL ASSELS....ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeerrrer et e e e e e e teeaeaeeeereaeaeeessesan s 214.6 158.2 139.2
INtEreSt iN IV @ 5090......ueeieiiiiiiieeeeeeee et e e 107.3 79.1 69.6
[0 ToTo 11| PO T PP 16.9 16.9 —
N\ oT ol oo ] 1470] | TTaTo [N a1 1=T =T U (2.0) (2.1) (23.0)
(O 141 o IR 7= 111 1= SRRSO 122.2 93.9 46.6
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Summarised financial information of our investmentother joint ventures is as follows:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Carrying @mMOUNT .......oooiiiiiiiiiieiieitieeimnmr e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e s enraaeeaaaeas 29.7 31.3 29.8
Share of Profit .......c.oeovioi e (2.0 0.2 (0.7)
Share of other comprehensive iINCOME .......ccccceaiiiiiiiiiiiii e (0.7) — (0.1)
Share of total cCOMPrenensIive INCOME ..........cummeeniiiiiieiieeiee e (1.7) 0.2 (0.8)

Changes in the carrying amountsieéstments in joint ventures are as follows:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
AS Al L JANUAIY .eeiiieei et e b a et e e ae e e aea e 125.2 76.4 74.4
(O o] =1 I T ] [=Tox 170 o 1SR — 1.6 2.8
Purchases of additional SNAre.............m i 20.8 39.8 —
1Y o0 1= 1L SO S — (0.3) —
Share of results of equity method INVESIMENTS .o eeieviiiiiiiiiiieee e 9.6 7.7 8.0
Return of capital from joiNt VENTUIES .......commmeeeieieeeeiiiisiiiiiiiirineee e e e — — (8.7)
DY/ To 1= oo £ (3.0) — —
Foreign currencCy translation ... e (0.7) — (0.1)
AS At 3L DECEMDIET ..oueiiie i ettt e e e et e e e b e aaaaan 151.9 125.2 76.4

Purchases of additional share relates to nurchfsen-controllina interest in A.D. Pivara Skopie. the beer
beveraaes subsidiz of BrewTech B.Vin FYROM.

(c) Investments in joint operations

The Group has a 50% interest in thdtdh Z.A.O. Group of companies (“Multon”). Multois engaged in tt
production and distribution of juices in Russia @dlassified as a joint operation as the arraregergives the Group i
to the assets and obligations for the liabilitielating to the joint arrangement.

Other joint operations of the Group comprise maofla 50% interest in each of several wadiiesinesses includin

Romerquelle, Fonti Del Vulture, Dorna, Multivitagléer and Vlasinka which are engaged in the prii@lu@and distributio
of water in Austria, Italy, Romania, Poland, Switaad and Serbia respectively.

7. Available-for-sale financial assets

Movements in available-for-sale fio&l assets are as follows:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
AS AL JANUANY ..cooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiit st e e e e e e e e e e e eenreee e e e e e aeenanes 1.2 1.6 17.5
PUICNASES ... e et ettt bbb eeeee e e e e as 0.4 0.1 0.3
DISPOSAIS ..ottt e et aaaaeeeas 0.1) (0.2) (16.7)
Unrealised gains/(losses) on available-for-salarfaial assets .............cccccveeiiieee 0.2 (0.4) 0.5
AS at 31 DECEMDET ..ottt 1.7 1.2 1.6

Available-for-sale financial assedtate to listed equitie61.0m (2011: €0.7m and 2010: €1.3m respectiveld
other unlisted equities of €0.7m (2011: €0.5m a@#(2 €0.3m respectively). The fair values of avdéafor-sale financie
assets are based on quoted market prices, wheitabd®aor discounted cash flow projections whewnetqd market price
are unavailable.
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8. Financial Instruments

Categories of financial instruments at 31 Decemize as follows:

2012
Derivatives
Loans anc Assets a used for Held-to- Available-
receivables  FVTPL hedging maturity for-sale Total
Assets € million € million € million € million € million € million
INVESTMENLS ..o — — — 1.6 1.7 3.3
Derivative financial instruments..............ccccceeennn. — 1.0 48.4 — — 49.4
Trade and other receivables excluding prepaym 964.5 — — — — 964.5
Cash and cash equivalents ..........cccccceeeeeeeeennn, 439.1 — — — — 439.1
TOtaAl oo 1,403.6 1.0 48.4 1.6 1.7 1,456.3
Liabilities
held at Derivatives
amortised  Liabilities used for
Liabilities cost at FVTPL hedging Total
€ million € million € million € million
Trade and other payables excluding provisions amivative liabilities....... 1,468.3 — — 1,468.3
BOITOWINGS oottt ettt e ettt et e e e e e e s e s ben e e eaeeeesesensnnnnnmnnes 2,159.7 — — 2,159.7
Derivative financial iINStrumMents ...........cceeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiee e e — 74.4 79.7 154.1
o] 2= | SO UPRSUUPPPPP 3,628.0 74.4 79.7 3,782.1
2011
Derivatives
Loansand  Assets at used for Held-to- Available-
receivables  FVTPL hedging maturity for-sale Total
Assets € million € million € million € million € million € million
INVESIMENIES ..vvviiiiiiiee e — — — 1.6 1.2 2.8
Derivative financial instruments.............cccccceenn. — 3.9 81.3 — — 85.2
Trade and other receivables excluding prepaym  1,017.7 — — — — 1,017.7
Cash and cash equivalents ..........cccccceeeeeeeeennnn, 447 .4 — — — — 447.4
TOtAl v ———— 1,465.1 3.9 81.3 1.6 1.2 1,553.1
Liabilities
held at Derivatives
amortised  Liabilities used for
cost at FVTPL hedging Total
Liabilities € million € million € million € million
Trade and other payables excluding provisions amivative liabilities....... 1,482.7 — — 1,482.7
BOITOWINGS wvvieiiiiiiii ettt ettt r s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeemenes 2,261.3 — — 2,261.3
Derivative financial iINStrumMents ...........ccoeeeiiiiiiiiii e e — 63.6 71.4 135.0
TOAL ettt ettt emet et et e ettt et ettt et 3,744.0 63.6 714  3,879.0
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8. Financial Instruments (continued)

2010
Derivatives
Loans and Assets at used for Held-to- Available-
receivables  FVTPL hedging maturity for-sale Total
Assets € million € million € million € million € million € million
INVESTMENES ..o e — — — 1.7 1.6 3.3
Derivative financial instruments.............cccccceennnn. — 0.7 76.6 — — 77.3
Trade and other receivables excluding prepaym  1,006.3 — — — — 1,006.3
Cash and cash equivalents ..........cccccoeeeeeeeeennn, 306.7 — — — — 306.7
TOtAl woveiiiiiiiee e ———— 1,313.0 0.7 76.6 1.7 1.6 1,393.6
Liabilities
held at Derivatives
amortised  Liabilities used for
cost at FVTPL hedging Total
Liabilities € million € million € million € million
Trade and other payables excluding provisions amiyative liabilities....... 1,427.0 — — 1,427.0
BOITOWINGS wovieiiiiiii e ettt s e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeaeemenes 2,194.0 — — 2,194.0
Derivative financial inStruments ...........cooociiiii i — 72.7 67.5 140.2
LI - | NP 3,621.0 72.7 67.5 3,761.2
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The derivative financial instrumeats included in the Group's balance sheet asaislio
As at 31 December 2012

Asset: Liabilit ies

€ million € million
Current
Current
Foreign currency fOrward CONLIACES ........cccceeeiieieieeiieiiiii i es e e e e e e e aaaeaeaeenes 1.4 4.9
Foreign currenCy OPLiON COMNITACES ...........mmmmreeeereesesisisrirneeerereteeeessssssnnneereeseeeeseesnsnsnsssmnns 0.9 —
CroSS-CUITENCY SWAP CONIACES ....iiivevesiemmmmmmssssennseessaeeeaseaessseeseeesesssrssrnssssssnnssnn o anseesssmmenes — (67.8)
COMMOItY SWAP CONIACTS ... .uuuiiiiieeee s eeeeeeesesesnettrreaeeeeaeaeesessssnsnranereeeaeesesanneeeesanannns — (5.8)
INterest rate SWaP CONIIACES .........uiiieeeeeieii et e e e e e e e e eeeereas 11.3 —
TOAI CUITENT ettt ettt et e e e e e et bbbttt e e e e e e e s s s bt bebebeeeaeaaeeesee e sannrne 13.6 (78.5)
Nor-current
INterest rate SWaP CONIIACES ........uuiiiieeeeeeii et e e e e e et e e e e et s rmmr e e e eeae s 35.8 —
CrOSS-CUITENCY SWAP CONTFACES .....uvviiisiecccceees e s setieieteeeeeeeeesssssssnntrnrneeeeeessessnnnnssss e ans — (75.6)
QLI ] =L g o] o o 1= o PSPPSR 35.8 (75.6)
At 31 December 2011
Current
Foreign currency fOrward CONTIACES .........cccceeiieieeeeiiiiiiii e es s e e e e e e e aaaeaeaeeaes 13.9 (2.4)
Foreign currency option contracts 1.8 (0.4)
ComMMOAIty SWAP CONTIACES ... ... iiee et e s e e e e e et ee e e e et e b e e e s s aeaaeeaeeaeeeeeann e eas — (1.4)
B O] = I o UL (=] o) SRR 15.7 (4.2)
Non-current
Interest rate swap contracts 69.5 —
CrOSS-CUITENCY SWAP CONIFACES .....uvviiisiercccee e s e s seteeeeereeeeeeeesssssssnsetrnrneeeeeesssssnnnnssss e ees — (130.8
JL 0] = U g1 o Eor UL =T o | USROS 69.5 (130.8
At 31 December 2010
Current
Foreign currency fOrward CONEIACES ....... e iieieeeeiiiiiiii it es e e e e e e e aaanaeseenes 2.6 4.1)
Foreign currenCy OPLiON COMNITACES ...........ummmmreeeereeeesisinrerneerrereeeeeessansnnneereeseeeeseansssnsssmnns 1.6 —
Total current 4.2 (4.1)
[N (o] gl ol U 4 =T o PO PO PPPPFPPPPPPPPPN
Interest rate swap contracts 73.1 —
CroSS-CUITENCY SWAP CONMIACES .....iivveiicceeeee e e eetit s e e e ettt e e e ee et s e e e e eeeesta s e eeeeana e s e aes — (136.1
JL 0 = U g1 o Eo UL =T o | OSSPSR 73.1 (136.1

As at 31 December 2012, other reafdies 0f€23.5m (2011: €26.3m, 2010: €11.6m) served asteodlafor ne
open position of interest rate and cross currenegpsderivative financial instruments. The collateesets monthly ar
earns interest based on Euro Overnight Index Awe(B@NIA) rate.
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8. Financial Instruments (continued)
Net fair values of derivative financial instruments
(@) Cash flow hedges

The fair values of derivative fin&aldnstruments as at 31 December designated asfloas hedges were:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million

Contracts with positive fair values
Foreign currency forward CONLIACES .........oeumumeeeieeeeieeieiiiiiiiieiieiiisieni e eeneeens 0.6 9.8 0.6
Foreign currency OPtioN CONTACES ..........cummmmeeeerrrreeesasisinnnnnenrnrereeeessmmmmaensnes 0.7 1.4 1.2
Interest rate SWap CONIIFACES .......uuuiiieeeeeeeii et eeneme e e e e 35.8 43.8 37.7
37.1 55.0 39.5

Contracts with negative fair values
Foreign currency forward CONLIACES .........ceumumeeeieeeeeeeieiiiiiieieiieiiisiiiiaeeaneeens (3.6 (1.5 (3.4)
CrOSS CUITENCY SWaAP CONIACES .........e. . o e e eeeeesesnnnnntntenereeaeeessmmmmessesnnnsnnnns (75.6 (69.9 (63.5)
(79.2 (711.4 (66.9)

Cash flows from the Group’s cash flow hedges ab&tember 2012 are expected to occur and, accoydliatiec
profit or loss in 2013, except for the combineckiBst rate/cross currency swap hedging contraetd fos the US$400r0
bond for which cash flows are expected to occuraffett profit or loss up to 2015.

(b) Fair value hedges

The fair values of derivative fin&aldnstruments at 31 December designated as &irevhedges were:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Contracts with positive fair values
Foreign currency forward CONtraCtS .........ecceeeeeiiicirimieiireeeees e emeneees — 0.6 1.7
Interest rate SWap CONIIACTS ........uuu i ieeeeeeiii e eereee e e eeaeas 11.3 25.7 35.4
11.3 26.3 37.1
Contracts with negative fair values
Foreign currency forward CONIACES .........occmmrrieeiirieiniien oo eeeeneen, (0.5) — (0.6)
(©) Undesignated hedges
The fair values of derivative fingaldnstruments at 31 December for which hedge @aeting hasot been applie
were:
2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Contracts with positive fair values
Foreign currency forward CONLIACES .........oeumumeeeeieeeeeeeieiiiieiiieiieiiisiini e eeeeees 0.8 35 0.3
Foreign currency OPtioN CONTACES ..........cummmmeeeerrreeeesesisinnnnnennnreressessmmmmaessnes 0.2 0.4 0.4
1.0 3.9 0.7
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8. Financial Instruments (continued)

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million

Contracts with negative fair values
Foreign currency forward CONLIACES .........oeumumeeeieeeeeeeieiiiieiiiiiieiiisiiniaeeaeeeens (0.8 (0.9 (0.1)
Foreign currency OPtioN CONTACES ..........cummmmeeeerrrreeesesisinnnnennnrereseessmmmmaensnes — (0.4 —
CroSS-CUITENCY SWAP CONTACES ...iivivvvesieememmmsersenniaesiesseeeeeeaeassesesesmmmmressessnnnns (67.8 (60.9 (72.6)
ComMmMOdity SWAP CONIACTS .. ..uevviieieeee s eeeeeseeeseeinterereeeesmmmneenneeereeaeeeeas (5.8 (1.4 —

(74.4, (63.6, (72.7)

Foreign currency forward contracts and foreign currency option contracts

The Company uses a combination of foreign currdocward contracts and foreign currency option cacts to
hedge foreign exchange transaction exposures. dtienal principal amounts of the outstanding foreurrency forward
contracts at 31 December 2012 totaled €339.7m (2119.3m, 2010: €246.0m). The notional principaloants of the
outstanding foreign currency option contracts aD&@tember 2012 totaled €108.2m (2011: €64.3m, 201588.0m)

Commodity swap contracts

The Group purchases sugar and aluminium on anigdoasis to meet its operational needs. The isecta
volatility in commodity prices led to the decisitmenter into commodity swap contracts since Augo4tl.

These contracts which economically hedge sugamimdinium can purchases, are expected to reduedlitg of
cash flows (in respect of sugar and aluminium pasels attributable to the fluctuation of the sugeat @uminium price) for
a period up to 36 months in accordance with theu@go risk management policy (see Note 30).

The notional principal amounts of the outstandingymodity swap contracts at 31 December 2012 wt@i6.4m
(2011: €40.9m, 2010: nil).

Interest rate swap contracts

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts toehiésiggxposure to changes in the fair value ofiébt (refer to
Notes 15 and 30), as well as to hedge the foreighange cash flow exposure on the $400.0m fixezl dabt. The notional
principal amounts of the outstanding interest stap contracts totaled $900.0m (2011: $900.0m, 2$900.0m). In June
and July 2010 the Group adjusted its interestpedéle by unwinding the euro denominated interast swap contracts with
an aggregate notional principal amount of €792 maturing in 2011 and 2014. As a result an amouitlofm was credited
to the income statement, in the interest expenseg it 2010.

The interest rate swap contractstaatling at 31 December 2012 can be summarisedl@ass:

Amount Receive Pay
Currency million Start date Maturity date fixed rate floating rate
IS (o] - 500.0 17 September 20C 17 September 20! 5.125% Libor + margin
US dollar........evevveeiiiiiiiniieenn, 400.0 17 September 20( 17 September 20! 5.500% Libor + margin
900.0

Repricing dates for all US dollamdeninated interest rate swap contracts are the df7/March andthe 17th ¢
September annually until maturity.
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Cross-currency swap contracts

The Group entered into cross-currency swap comtrémt cover the currency risk related to its US aloll
denominated debt (refer to Notes 15 and 30). AD8&ember 2012 the fair value of the cross-curreswigp contracts
represented a liability of €143.4m (2011: €130.201.0: €136.1m). The cross-currency swap contraetsexorded as both
short-term and long-term liabilities to match thatarities of the underlying notes. The €12.6m I(&311: €5.3m gain,
2010: €39.3m gain) on the cross-currency swap aotgrduring 2012 was almost fully offset by the 642 gain, (2011:
€21.1m loss, 2010: €44.9m loss) recorded on tslkaton of the US dollar- denominated debt to euro

Part of the restructuring of the Group's interast profile which took place in June and July 2@/B8 the change of
the interest rate conditions of the paying leghef tross currency swap contracts maturing in 2€drd £uribor plus margin
to a fixed rate.

The notional principal amounts of the outstandimgss-currency swap contracts at 31 December 20tEketb
€803.9m (2011: €803.9m, 2010: €803.9m). The crassency swap contracts outstanding at 31 DecembéR 2are
summarised as follows:

Receive
US$ million € million Start date Maturity date floating rate Pay rate
500.0 446.8 17 September 20( 17 September 20.  Libor + margin Euribor + margin
250.0 223.2 17 September 20( 17 September 20.  Libor + margin 2.718%
100.0 89.3 17 September 20( 17 September 20.  Libor + margin 2.750%
50.0 44.6 17 September 20( 17 September 20.  Libor + margin 2.675%

900.0 803.9

Repricing dates for all US dollandeinated cross currency swap contracts are thedfmarch and the 17tbf
September annually until maturity.

Fair value
Ineffectiveness and undesignated Losses Cash flow
charged/ hedges charged/ released hedges losses/
(credited) to the (credited) to the from equity to (gains) taken
profit and loss profit and loss the profit and loss to equity
31 December 2012 € million € million € million € million
Derivatives
Interest rate swap contracts for fair value heg: 0.7 14.4 — —
Interest rate and Cross currency swap contrac
for cash flow hedging ............ocv v s e 7.2 — 1.2 8.2
Foreign currency forward contracts /
Foreign currency option contracts.................. — 3.5 8.3 14.7
Commodity swap CONtracts .................ccummmmees . — 4.4 — —
Hedged items
BOIMOWINGS .vvvveieei e eeaaeeeaens — (14.4) — (15.4)
Forecast transactions — — — (14.7)
Other foreign currency assets / liabilities........ — (1.1) — —
TOtal ..o ——————— 7.9 6.8 9.5 (7.2)
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31 December 2012

Debited/(credited) in
Operating eXPeNSES.......c.uvvveeriirreeieemmeeme e e
Cost of goods sold..........ccvvveveviiiecemmme
INtErest EXPENSE ....oovveeiiiieeeeeii e

31 December 2011
Derivatives
Interest rate swap contracts for fair value heg:
Interest rate and Cross currency swap contrac
for cash flow hedging...
Foreign currency forward contracts /
Foreign currency option contracts..................
Commaodity swap CONtracts .................ccummmmees .
Hedged items
BOIMOWINGS .vvvviieei et a e aeeeeaens
Forecast transactions .........ccccovuveeeesssmmiieneenn,

Debited/(credited) in
Operating eXPeNSES........uvvveeriirreeieemmeemeee e
Cost of goods sOld .........coevvvivvviiviieemmmmc e,
INtErest EXPENSE ....covveeiiii e

31 December 2010
Derivatives
Interest rate swap contracts for fair value heg:
Interest rate and Cross currency swap contrac
for cash flow hedging ... .
Foreign currency forward contracts /
Foreign currency option contracts..................
Hedged items
BOIMOWINGS .vvvviiieii e eeeaeeaaens
Forecast transactions .........ccccoccveeeeesmmeveneens,

(Credited)/debited in
Operating eXPEeNSES. .......coovviuuriieiremaa e
INtErest EXPENSE .....cvveeeiiiieeeeeii e

Ineffectiveness
charged/
(credited) to the

Fair value
and undesignated
hedges charged/
(credited) to the

Losses
released
from equity to

Cash flow
hedges losses/
(gains) taker

profit and loss profit and loss the profit and loss to equity
€ million € million € million € million

— 2.4 9.5
— 4.4
7.9 —
7.9 6.8 9.5
1.1 9.7 —
55 — 9.7
— (1.5) 3.1 (15.0)
— 1.4 —
— (9.7) (15.2)
— — 15.0
— (0.5) —
6.6 (0.6) 3.1 (5.5)
— (2.0) 3.1
— 1.4
6.6 —
6.6 (0.6) 3.1

(3.8) 27.7 —
2.8 — 8.3
— (0.9) 2.0 3.0
— (27.7) (11.1)
— — (3.0
— 0.3 —

(1.0) (0.6) 2.0 (2.8)
— (0.6) 2.0

(1.0) —

(1.0) (0.6) 2.0
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset wtteere is a legally enforceable right to offsetrent tax assets
against current tax liabilities, when the defertaxkes are levied by the same fiscal authority dineeithe taxable entity or

different taxable entities, and there is an intemtio settle the balances on a net basis. Thewfmltp amounts, after off-
setting balances within the same tax jurisdictidrere applicable, are shown in the consolidatedhoalaheet:

2012 2011 201¢
€ million € million € million
Deferred taX ASSELS .......cii it ————— 40.1 35.1 34.8
Deferred tax liabilities ..........cooiiiiii e (177.4 (172.1 (165.2)

Total deferred tax

(137.3  (137.0  (130.4)

The gross amounts of deferred taetgsand liabilities are as follows:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Deferred tax assets

To be recovered after more than 12 months.............c.oooooieeeiiieiiieeeee, 66.7 72.4 68.8
To be recovered within 12 MONthS .....coeeeviiiiii e, 99.4 86.5 94.6
166.1 158.9 163.4

Deferred tax liabilities
To be recovered after more than 12 Mmonths..........cccveeeiicee e, (296.0 (288.8 (286.5)
To be recovered within 12 MONENS ... (7.4) (7.1) (7.3)
(303.4 (295.9 (293.8)
Deferred tax llabilitieS (NEL) ........ouveviiiimiie e e er e eeee s (137.3 (137.0 (130.4)

The movements in deferred tax asaedsliabilities during the year, after afétting balances within the same
jurisdiction where applicable, are as follo

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million

AS AL JANUATY ..ottt oottt bbb e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaaaeneeeaeaeaaaeaaenes (137.0 (130.4 (102.1)
Taken to the income statement (refer to NOte 22)..........c..ceeeviivieeiiiiiieeiniiiieeee (4.8) (13.5 (31.2)
TAKEN O @QUILY .oeeeeiieeiiieie et sttt e et et ettt e s e e e e e bee e e s annbe s 5.5 4.3 (1.0
Pre-acquisition deferred tax assets in connectitim acquisition of CCB,

recognised subsequent to business combination

(refer to Note 20 and NOLE 22) ......uvuiimememmieeieeeeieiceee e e e e e e e e e e aaaean — — 10.2
Arising on prior year aCqUISItIONS ........coccccivioiieiiiiiieie e eeeee e e e s mmmnnceeeeee e e — 0.1 —
Arising on disposal Of SUDSIAIAY ..o ieeeiiiiiieir e e e e e, — 0.7 —
Foreign currencCy tranSIation ............ccoooociiiiieiiiie e eeemie e (1.0) 1.8 (6.3)
e L R DT o7 =T 1 01 1= P PUPUPPR (137.3 (137.0 (130.4)
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9. Deferred Tax (continued)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liakildiging the year, without taking into considenatibe offsettin
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction whegpplicable, are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

As at 1 January 2010

Taken to the income statement.....................
Taken to equity
Transfers between assets/liabilities...............

As at 31 December 2010

Taken to the income statement....................
Taken to equity
Arising on disposal of subsidiary...................
Transfers between assets/liabilities...............
Foreign currency translation............ccccc........
As at 31 December 2011

Taken to the income statement.....................
Taken to equity
Transfers between assets/liabilities...............
Foreign currency translation..................c.......

As at 31 December 2012

Tax in exces:t Capital Other
of book Assets investment Derivative  deferred tax
depreciation  impairment incentives  instruments liabilities Total
€ million € million € million € million € million € million

(240.4 (2.9) (2.2) 0.6 (11.5) (256.4)
(26.9) (0.2) — — (0.6) (27.7)

— — — 0.2 (0.4) (0.2)

— — — — 2.6 2.6
(11.3) 0.1 — — (0.9) (12.1)
(278.6 (3.0) (2.2) 0.8 (10.8) (293.8)
(13.9) 3.0 — — 2.9 (8.0)
— — — (2.8) (0.8) (3.6)

0.7 — — — — 0.7

0.5 — — — 2.8 3.3

4.9 — — — 0.6 55
(286.4 — (2.2) (2.0) (5.3) (295.9)
(8.2) — — (1.0) — (9.2)

— — — 1.0 (0.2) 0.8

4.3 — — — (1.0) 3.3

(2.4) — — — — (2.4)
(292.7 — (2.2) (2.0) (6.5) (303.4)
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9. Deferred Tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Taken to the income statement..
Taken to equity.......ccveveveeeeeiiennnes

Transfers between assets/liabiliti
Foreign currency translation.......

As at 31 December 2010

Taken to the income statement..
Taken to equUity.......cceveeeveeinicennen,
Arising on current year acquisitic
Transfers between assets/liabiliti

As at 31 December 2011

Taken to the income statement...
Taken to equUity.......cceveeererinicennen,
Transfers between assets/liabiliti
Foreign currency translation........

As at 31 December 2012

Book in Pensions Other
excess of tax Tax losses and deferred
depreciation  Provisions  carry-forward Leasing benefit plans  tax assets Total
€ million € million € million € million € million € million € million
1.5 65.5 18.4 13.7 20.1 35.1 154.3
(0.1) (6.6) 10.3 45 1.6 (3.0) 6.7
— (0.1) — — (0.9) 0.2 (0.8)
— (2.5) — — (1.1) 1.0 (2.6)
— 2.8 1.1 — 0.6 1.3 5.8
1.4 59.1 29.8 18.2 20.3 34.6 163.4
0.4 (8.4) 8.3 (4.0) (3.4) 1.6 (5.5)
— — — — 6.5 1.4 7.9
— — — — — 0.1 0.1
(0.5) (0.1) — — (2.6) (0.1) (3.3)
(0.5) (1.4) — (0.2) (0.2) (1.4) (3.7)
0.8 49.2 38.1 14.0 20.6 36.2 158.9
5.0 4.5 (7.1) 4.2 (2.0) (0.2) 4.4
— — — — 3.0 1.7 4.7
(2.9) (1.8) — — (0.1) 1.5 (3.3)
— 0.6 0.7 0.1 0.3 (0.3) 1.4
2.9 52.5 31.7 18.3 21.8 38.9 166.1
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9. Deferred Tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax |asmeg-forward to the extent that realisation of thlated tax benefit
through the reduction of future taxes is probalblee Group has unrecognised deferred tax asseitsugdtsle to tax losses
that are available to carry forward against futtagable income of €0.5m (2011: €0.9m, 2010: €1.38@)5m of this
unrecognised deferred tax asset is attributablexttosses that expire between 2013 and 2017.

The aggregate amount of temporary differencescissd with investment in subsidiaries and interestjoint
arrangements, for which deferred tax liabilitievdnaot been recognised amount to €1,856.3m (202,438.5m, 2010: €

2,143.6m ). It is not practicable to compute tht@ltamount of the potential income tax consequetitaswould result from
the payment of dividends to shareholders.

10. Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets consisteldeofollowing at 31 December:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
NON-CUITENT PrEPAYMENTS ....oevvirririirieitmmmmmmm e e eere e e e mmmn e e e e e e e e aeenens 30.8 32.8 31.3
Loans to related parties (refer t0 NOte 34) .....cviviiiiiiiiiiiieee e 13.7 10.6 11.8
Loans to NON-related PArtieS ............oiceeeecciiiiie e 1.1 24 4.5
Held-to-maturity investments ............... 1.6 1.6 1.7
Total other non-current assets 47.2 47.4 49.3
11. Inventories
Inventories consisted of the follagriat 31 December:
2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
FINISNEA QOOAS ...t e e 186.0 163.6 195.5
Raw materials and WOrk in ProgreSS ........ooocecuururiiiiieieeee e e eemmmm e 175.6 179.7 180.3
CONSUMADIES ...ttt a4 ettt et e e e e e e e e e s bnn e abbreeeeaaaeeeans 96.4 104.4 101.6
B0 = LT 01Y/=T a1 (0] [P 458.0 447.7 477.4

The amount of inventories recognizl an expense during 2012 wé3,709.4m (2011: €3,355.8m, 20
€3,863.3m). During 2012 provision of obsolete ineeies recognised as an expense amounte.2m (2011: €2.7m
2010: €1.1m), whereas provision reversed in thiogemounted to €0.1m (2011: €1.3m, 2010: €2.6m).
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12. Trade receivables

Trade receivables consisted of the following aD&tember:

2012 2011 2010

€ million € million € million
Trade rECEIVADIES ..........ovviiiiit et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e et e ee b ae st a s semeeaeesenes 878.2 929.0 937.3
Less: Provision for doubtful debts ..........cccceiiiiiiiiii e (76.9) (74.3) (66.8)
Total trade reCeIVADIES ........coveiiie e e 801.3 854.7 870.5

The credit period given to customers ranges fratays to 105 days depending on the country and icesttype
In most territories, interest is not charged fde lpayment.

The Group provides for all receivabthat are considered noalectible on a specific basis after considering
circumstances of each case. Before accepting awycnedit customers, the Group investigates the risiecustomer’s
credit quality (usually through external agents)l a@efines credit limits for each customer. Cust@rare reviewed on
ongoing basis and credit limits adjusted accorgindhere are no customers who represent more tBarofsthe tots
balane of trade receivables for the Group. The Grougfsosure to credit risk is managed by establishditips anc
procedures regarding financial risk managementasribed in Note 30.

The trade receivables are as follows

2012 2011 2010

€ million € million € million
Due WIthin dUE Jate ........cceviiiiiiiiiiiiieieee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ae e e aee e eeaee 655.5 715.6 706.2
Less: Provision for doubtful debts within due date...............coooiiiemiiiiiie, 1.3) (1.2) (3.5)
TS A o T PSRRI 222.7 213.4 231.1
Less: Provision for doubtful debts past due ... (75.6) (73.2) (63.3)
Total trade reCeIVADIES .......uuuiiiiiii i e 801.3 854.7 870.5

As at 31 December 2012, the Group held collatémahe form of mortgages, bank guarantees, billsxathang
and credit insurance, as security against tradeivaloles with a carrying amount 620.9m (2011 and 2010: €23.1m .
€22.0m respectively).

As at 31 December 2012, trade redsas of €147.1m (2011 and 2010: €140.2m and €@r6ve8petively) were
past due but not impaired. The ageing analysibexd trade receivables is as follows:

2012 2011 2010

€ million € million € million
UP 10 3 MONENS. ...ttt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ans 128.2 116.4 140.9
BH0 B MONENS Loeieiiiiiei e ——— 5.4 11.6 16.9
L3 (o e I 0 To 1 1 1= 2.7 4.9 5.8
More than QO MONENS ... e e 10.8 7.3 4.2
147.1 140.2 167.8

As at 31 December 2012, trade rextdes of€75.6m (2011 and 2010: €73.2m and €63.3m respdoitivere pas
due and impaired or provided for. The ageing atslykthese receivables is as follows:
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12. Trade receivables (continued)

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
UP 10 3 MONENS . ...ttt e et e et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ans (2.0) (11.2) (4.0)
I (ol G2 410 11 1 £ T PP PP TP PP (6.9) (6.0) (11.5)
B 10 9 MONTNS ..ot e e e e et e e e e 38.7) (3.3 (4.5)
More than 9 MONTNS ........eeiiiii e (63.0) (52.7, (43.3)
(75.6) (73.2) (63.3)
The movement in the provision fouldtful debts during the year is as follows:
2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
AS AL L JANUBIY coeeeiiiiiiiiiiiieiee et es e e e s et e e e e e e e e e s e e e ee e s e en e e eeeeeas (74.3) (66.8] (63.2)
Amounts written off during the Year ... 18.0 6.1 6.8
Amounts recovered during the YEar ... ereee e 15 4.5 11.2
Increase in allowance recognised in profit Or laSS...........covcviieiiecceniiieee e, (22.1) (18.5] (20.9)
Foreign currency translation ...............eecreeeiiciiiiiier e see e s ae e — 0.4 (0.7)
AS At 31 DECEMDET ..iuiiiiiiiiiiiei e et s e e e e s e e e e e e et e e e e eeeeeeeeeeaeeeees s (76.9) (74.3) (66.8)
The recording and release of provigor impaired receivables are classified withire@ating expenses.
13. Other receivables and assets
Other receivables and assets consisted of thafioly at 31 December:
2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
PrePAYMENTS.....coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiite e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e ee e 72.3 66.9 99.1
Receivables from related parties (refer to Note.34).......ccoveeeeiiiiiiicemniiiiiiienen. 57.0 65.6 58.2
Collateral for interest rate swap contracts (rédalote 8) .........ooovvvvvveeeeiiins s, 23.5 26.3 11.6
VAT and other taxes receivable............ e 21.0 19.6 20.1
Loans and advances to employees 13.6 11.9 8.2
Assets classified as held for sale.........coeceeeiiiiiii e 10.4 — 1.8
Receivables from sale of property, plant and eqeipm...........cccccccevvveeereveeeeenn. 8.0 0.8 4.0
Other reCeIVabBIES ........coo i 29.7 38.8 31.9
Total other receivables and aSSetS .......cccieveeeiieiieiiiiii e 2355 229.9 234.9
The related party receivables, ri¢ghe provision for doubtful debts, are as follows:
2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Due WIthin dU@ date .........eeeeiiiiiiieei e a e 48.7 61.5 54.2
PASE HUB ...ttt et e 8.3 4.1 4.0
Less: Provision for doubtful debts ..........cccceriiiiiiiiii e — — —
Total related party reCeivables ..........cooiiiceeiiiiii e e 57.0 65.6 58.2
Collateral held against related party receivables.............ccoceeeieiiiieeciiiiiiienen. — — 0.3
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13. Other receivables and assets (continued)

As at 31 December 2012, relatedypadeivables of €8.3m (2011 and 2010: €4.1m andn€4espectively) were
past due but not impaired. The ageing analysibexfe related party receivables is as follows:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
UP 10 3 MONENS. ...ttt et e e bbb ee e e e e e e e e e aaaaeas 4.8 2.4 2.3
B0 B MONINS .o e 1.4 0.5 0.5
BLO O MONINS ..o e 0.5 0.4 0.1
More than 9 MONENS ... e 1.6 0.8 1.1
0] - | P 8.3 4.1 4.0
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13. Other receivables and assets (continued)

During 2010, non-current assets with a net bookievaf €1.8m were reclassified from property, plamd
equipment to assets held for sale. The amount égfn€koncerns land and buildings in our establistmagkets of which
€0.4m was sold during 2010 and the amount of €@@&ncerns a plant in our emerging markets.

During 2011, no assets were classified as helgdte. Additionally, non-current assets with a pedk value of
€1.8m were reclassified to property, plant and gopeint, and the depreciation charge for the year adjssted for the
depreciation that would have been recognized hada#isets not been classified as held for saleubedhe criteria for
continued classification as held for sale wereamgér met.

During 2012 non-current assets with a net bookevalf €9.4m were reclassified from property, plami equipment
to assets held for sale. The amount of €9.4m cosckuilding in our established markets of €4.7m hoiding in our
developing markets of €4.7m respectively. In additiright to use of land of €1.0m, in our develgpmarkets was classified
to assets held for sale during 2012.

14. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December compedellowing:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Cash at bank, in transit and in hand .......cccccccooo oo, 79.7 89.8 69.0
ShOrt-termM AEPOSITS ...t eeeeeer e s 359.4 357.6 237.7
Total cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS............ovvceeeeriiiiiiiiers e, 439.1 447.4 306.7
Cash and cash equivalents are heldei following currencies: 2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
T T o T PP PPPRPRRRN 377.3 356.1 268.5
N [To [T = T I o =Vl CE TR OO URRTP 39.2 51.7 3.0
Belorusian roUbIE.............uuuiiii s 4.9 6.6 7.6
RUSSIAN FOUDIE ....uviiiiec ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4.2 9.6 3.7
(O oY= U F=T o T (U] = P RRRPPRP 3.2 5.0 4.0
ROMANIAN JQU ...eeeiiiiee et e e e e rre e e e e neees 24 2.0 1.3
S T LTSI 1 =g o 1.4 1.5 1.2
Bosnia and Herzegovina convertible mark ............ccooooiiiiiiiic e 1.4 0.5 0.9
L 1S3 (0] = T PP SRRt 1.3 1.9 0.6
UK SEEIIING .ottt ettt e e et e e e s e e e e e sannreee e e 1.1 0.2 0.1
[ To] [0 [o Y= T TN 1=V PRSP PP 0.7 0.7 0.1
BUIGAIIA IV ... 0.7 3.6 2.0
UKIainian NIYVNIA ..ot ee e 0.5 2.2 1.6
0] 1153 T4 (o Y2 PP 0.3 0.6 0.4
Serbian AINAC .. ....ueiiii i ————————— — 3.9 10.7
(11 1= OSSP 0.5 1.3 1.0
Total cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS ...........uieeeciiiiiiir e e 439.1 447.4 306.7

Under Nigerian naira currency, amieglent amount 0€£29.8m relates to the outstanding balance of thk
account held for the repayment of the former mizahareholders' of the Company's subsidiary NageBotting Compan
plc (refer to Note 28).

The amount of dividends payableh® €ompany by its operating subsidiaries is subb@gamong other
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14. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

restrictions, general limitations imposed by therpovate laws and exchange control restrictiaisthe respectiv
jurisdictions where those subsidiaries are orgaha®l operate. Also, there are fund transfer migtris in certain couries
in which we operate, in particular Nigeria. Thesstrictions do not have a material impact on theu@is liquidity, as th
amounts of cash and cash equivalents held in soohtges are generally retained for capital expemeiand workin
capital purposes. Intra group dividends paid byadermf our subsidiaries are also subject to wittiimgy taxes.
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The Group held the following borrowings at 31 Daber:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million

BanK OVEITIaflS.....coii it ettt e ee e e e 16.6 375 40.4

BANK T0BNS ... e e — 9.8 8.9

Current portion of long-term bonds, bills and unsed notes ................cccviviiieeee. 391.3 — 304.9

COMMEICIAI PAPEI ...ttt ettt et e e e e e e e s b e e e e e e e e e ananbsbeeees 129.5 250.0 127.0

Loan payable to related parties (refer to Note.34)..........c.oevvvvivivimemriiiiierieneiiiiinnns — 2.3 1.2

537.4 299.6 482.4

Obligations under finance leases falling due withiie year.............cccccceeviivieeennnn 17.6 21.9 48.8

Total borrowings falling due within ONe Year......c.ccccoovviiiiiiiiiiii e, 555.0 321.5 531.2
Borrowings falling due within one to two years

Bonds, bills and UNSECUred NOLES ... eeeeitieiieeiiiiiee et seeme e 505.3 411.1 —
Borrowings falling due within two to five years

Bonds, bills and UNSECUred NOLES .........ouummrreeeeiieeeeee e emmmnebe e 923.8 1,446.5 1,259.7

Loan payable to related parties (refer to NOE.34........cooovvieiiiiiiieene e 62.5 9.7 9.6
Borrowings falling due in more than five years

Bonds, bills and UNSECUred NOLES .........ouummrrreeeieeeeeee e mmmn e — — 298.4

1,491.6 1,867.3 1,567.7

Obligations under finance leases falling due inertban one year................cceeueeee 113.1 72.5 95.1

Total borrowings falling due after ONe Year .............uuvviiiiiisiv e e 1,604.7 1,939.8 1,662.8

TOtal DOITOWINGS ...eevviitiiii it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaeaaeaaae s 2,159.7 2,261.3 2,194.0

Commercial paper programme and committed credit fadities

In March 2002, Coca-Cola Hellenic established &1 global commercial paper programme to furttseergify its
short-term funding sources. The programme consists euro commercial paper facility and a US deflanominated US
commercial paper facility, of which the later isr@ntly not active. The commercial paper notes tajssued either as non-
interest bearing notes sold at a discount or &est bearing notes at a fixed or at a floating,rat by reference to an index
or formula. All commercial paper issued under thegpamme must be repaid within 1 to 365 days. Tiitetanding amount
under the euro commercial paper facility at 31 Daloer 2012 was €129.5m (2011: €250.0m, 2010: €127.0m

In May 2011, Coca-Cola Hellenic replaced its eérgpt€500.0m syndicated loan facility expiring on Décember
2012, with a new €500.0m syndicated loan facilisgued through various financial institutions, exm on 11 May 2016.
As a result, an amount of €1.9m was charged tintmme statement, in the finance costs line. Tamdity can be used for
general corporate purposes and carries a floatitegest rate over Euribor and Libor. The facilitipars the Company to
draw down, on three to five days notice, amountsanches and repay them in periods ranging fromtorsix months, or
any other period agreed between the financialtintgins and Coca-Cola Hellenic. No amounts haven lwgawn under this
syndicated loan facility since inception. There modinancial covenants applicable to this facility

Euro medium-term note programme (‘EMTN")

In 2001, the Group established a €2.0bn euro medénm note programme. Bonds issued under the anoge
through the 100% owned subsidiary Coca-Cola HBGiide B.V. are fully, unconditionally and irrevocglguaranteed by
Coca-Cola Hellenic, as well as Coca-Cola HBC Fiegpic (for issues prior to 2009), and are not stthje any financial
covenants.
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In July 2004, Coca-Cola Hellenic completed theiéssf a €500.0m 7-year euro-denominated fixed lpated. In
December 2010 Coca-Cola Hellenic finalized a caskér offer through its subsidiary Coca-Cola HBGaFice B.V. for the
repurchase of its existing €500m. 4.375% fixed radges due on 15 July 2011. On 14 December 2016a-Cola HBC
Finance B.V. purchased an aggregate amount of €4B8vhich was almost 40% of the total issued €50Qmo-e
denominated bond. As a consequence, an amourt.@mévas charged to the income statement, in tizadie costs line.

In December 2008, Coca-Cola Hellenic completeddbee of a €500.0m 5-year euro-denominated fizge bond.
Proceeds from the bond offering were partly usegap for the acquisition of Socib S.p.A. and pattiyefinance a floating
rate bond that matured in March 2009.

In November 2009, Coca-Cola Hellenic completediskae of a €300.0m 7-year euro-denominated fiage lpond.
Proceeds from the bond offering were used to fimeddapital return payment (refer to Note 18) analldwed Coca-Cola
Hellenic to extend its debt maturity profile.

In March 2011, Coca-Cola Hellenic completed thecsssful offering of an additional €300.0m 4.25%ed rate
notes to be consolidated and form a single serifsthe existing €300.0m 4.25% fixed rate notes tieeNovember 2016
issued on 16 November 2009. The new notes bringptagoutstanding amount of the series to €600Tme. proceeds of the
issue were used to repay the maturity of the exgs£301.1m notes due on 15 July 2011.

No bond offerings took place in 2012.

In April 2012, Coca-Cola Hellenic successfully apetl the Euro Medium Term Note Programme (EMTN) and
increased the programme from €2.0 bn to €3.0 lpmdwide for future new issuances.

As at 31 December 2012, a total of €1.1bn in sdagued under the €3.0bn EMTN programme wereandsig. A
further amount of €1.9bn is available for issuafdeese bonds are not subject to financial covenants

Notes issued in the US market

On 17 September 2003, CoCala Hellenic successfully completed, through i@% owned finance subsidiary
Coca-Cola HBC Finance B.V., a $900.0m (€682.0mlab8cember 2012 exchange rates) global offerinyivhtely placed
notes with registration rights. The first tranchensisted of an aggregate principal amount of $560(8378.9m at
31 December 2012 exchange rates) due in 2013 anddbond tranche consisted of an aggregate prinaipaunt of
$400.0m (€303.1m at 31 December 2012 exchange) rdtes in 2015. The net proceeds of the offeringemesed to
refinance certain outstanding debt, the leveragechpitalisation of the Group and the acquisitibRomerquelle GmbH. In
December 2003, an exchange offer was made by ColzaH&llenic in order to effect the exchange of phieately placed
notes for similar notes registered with the Semgiand Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Acceptanceuthe offer, which
was finalised in February 2004, were $898.1m. Totes are fully, unconditionally and irrevocably edgl guaranteed by
Coca-Cola Hellenic. These notes are not subjefbémcial covenants.

Summary of bonds and notes outstanding

Start date Maturity date Fixed coupor
$500m notes 17 September 201 17 September 20. 5.125%
€500m bon 17 December 20( 15 January 201 7.875%
$400m notes 17 September 200 17 September 20. 5.500%
€300m bon 16 November 20C 16 November 201 4.250%
€300m bon 2 March 201 16 November 201 4.250%

The fair value of bonds and notegapée, including the current portion, €1,898.3m (2011: €1,926.3m, 20
€1,919.0m) compared to their book v, including the current portion, of €1,820.4m (20£1,857.6m, 2010: €1,863.0m).
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The present value of finance leédgilities at 31 December was as follows:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
LESS thAN ONE YA ......ciiiiiiie ettt e s e e e 17.6 21.9 48.8
Later than one year but less than tWo Years.......c....cvvveeviiiiiieeiiiiee e 13.4 13.7 20.7
Later than two years but less than three YearS.....ccccovvveeiiiiiiciniiiie e 7.7 11.3 14.6
Later than three years but less than four years...............cccceeiininiiiiiiiieieeeeeen, 6.0 4.9 11.3
Later than four years but less than five YearS......ccoooveiiie e, 6.4 3.2 4.5
Later than fIVE YEAIS .......oii et 79.6 39.4 44.0
Present value of finance lease liabilitieS ....cccc..oeiiiiiiiiiii e, 130.7 94.4 143.9

The minimum lease payments of firalease liabilities at 31 December were as follows:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million

LESS thAN ONE YA ......ciiiiiiie ettt e e e 22.7 24.8 53.2
Later than one year but less than tWo Years.......c....cvvvveviiiiiieeiiiiee e 18.7 16.8 24.3
Later than two years but less than three YearS. . ..cccccccceeviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 12.4 13.8 17.0
Later than three years but less than four yearS...........ccccovvieeeiiiiiie e, 10.6 7.3 13.8
Later than four years but [eSs than fiVe YearS...cccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e, 11.2 55 6.7
Later than fiVe YEAIS ......cooiiieee et 93.1 41.4 46.8

168.7 109.6 161.8
Future finance charges on fiNANCe [ASES .. vveeririeiiiiie e e (38.0) (15.2) (17.9)
Present value of finance lease labilitieS ....cccc..vviiiiiiiiiii e, 130.7 94.4 143.9

Finance leases are mainly for lamdl lauildings as well as plant and equipment. Tharfce leases do not contain
contingent rent payments or escalation clauses.

The borrowings at 31 December wedld In the following currencies:

Current Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current
2012 2012 2011 2011 2010 2010

€ million € million € million € million € million € million
BUIO e, 143.2 1,225.1 269.8 1,164.7 487.7 887.6
US Dollar......ueeeeviiiiiiiiiiiieiiieeeeiiiiiienn 3915 324.7 — 749.4 — 744.1
Nigerian Nair ........ccovveeeriiieee i 11.0 19.3 45.6 — 23.6 —
Polish ZIOtY ........oovveiiiiiiiie e 5.8 19.3 3.1 8.3 3.2 12.4
UK Sterling.....c.cveeerievieeeeiniiieeee e 1.2 15.8 1.8 16.7 6.0 18.1
Ukrainian hryvnia ..........cccooooviiiinnans 0.9 0.5 0.7 0.7 9.4 0.6
Serbian Dinar........cccoccvveeeiiiiieeeee, 0.9 — — — — —
Other ..o, 0.5 — 0.5 — 1.3 —
BOIOWINGS .coovvvvevviviiiiiii v 555.0 1,604.7 321.5 1,939.8 531.2 1,662.8
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The carrying amounts of the borraygiteld at fixed and floating interest rate a8laDecember 2012, as well as
the weighted average interest rates and matudfiéged rate borrowings were as follows:

Fixed rate Weighted

liabilities average

Fixed Floating weighted maturity for
interest rate interest rate Total average which rate is
€ million € million € million interest rate  fixed (years)
BUMO oot 1,262.3 106.0 1,368.3 5.3% 2.4
US DOlAI ... 716.2 — 716.2 5.3% 1.6
NIgerian Nair ........c.uvvvviiiiireeee e semee e — 30.3 30.3 — —
Ukrainian hryvnia ..........cccceeeceiiiniissemnme e, — 1.4 1.4 — —
UK Sterling ......eeieeeieei e — 17.0 17.0 — —
POlISh ZIOtY ...ccvvvveeeeee e — 25.1 25.1 — —
Serbian dinar.......ccccooveiii — 0.9 0.9 — —
101 T PSSP 0.5 — 0.5 — —
Financial liabilities..........ccccocviveee e, 1,979.0 180.7 2,159.7 5.3% 2.1

Financial liabilities represent fixed and floatirege borrowings held by the Group. The Group'sqyadk to hedge
exposures to changes in the fair value of debtiatedest rates by using a combination of crossenay swap contracts,
fixed to floating rate interest rate swap contramtsl interest rate option contracts. In order tdgeethe foreign exchange
cash flow exposure on the $400.0m US dollar fixaie debt, a combination of floating to fixed ratess currency swap
contracts and fixed to floating rate interest sat@p contracts is used.

The $500.0m US dollar fixed rate debt has beery falapped into a euro floating-rate obligation tigl a
combination of interest rate and cross-currencypswaith no residual currency risk for the lifetbk respective bond. In
June and July 2010 the $400.0m US dollar fixed detiet which was initially swapped into a euro flngtrate obligation
was restructured to a €357.0m fixed-rate liabiligfer to Note 8).

Floating rate debt bears interest based on thewWoiy benchmark rates:

BUFO ot errrer s e 6 month EURIBOR (European inter-bank offer rate)
Serbian dinar...........ooooiiiii e 1 month BELIBOR (Serbian inter-bank offer rate)
[T [T g F= T I g -Vl - 3 month NIBOR (Nigerian inter-bank offer rate)
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16. Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables consistédeofollowing at 31 December:

2012 2011 2010

€ million € million € million
Trade PAYADIES ........ueiiiiiii i e e e e e 435.8 417.8 378.8
AcCrued IabIlItIES .......coiuiiiiieiit ettt 581.2 601.0 596.0
Payables to related parties (refer to0 NOte 34) . veeiiiiiiiiiniiiieee e, 188.5 188.3 187.1
DepOSit IADIILIES ... 111.1 107.7 106.4
Current portion of provisions (refer t0 NOtE 17) .. .ueueeiiiiieiiiiiiiieiiiiiie e 94.0 52.0 38.4
Other tax and social security lIabilIties ... .vvveeiiiiiiii i 80.0 83.5 77.0
Salaries and employee related payable 51.3 57.4 61.7
Derivative liabilities (refer to NOte 8) ......cccoieiiiiiiiiiee e, 10.7 4.2 4.1
Deferred INCOMIE .....coiiiiii ettt e e e e e 0.9 8.7 2.2
Other PAYADIES ..ot e e e 12.8 11.5 11.0
Total trade and Other PAYaADIES .........coiii it s 1,566.3 1,532.1 1,462.7
17. Provisions

Provisions consisted of the following at 31 Decemb
2012 2011 2010

€ million € million € million
Current
EMPIOYEE DENETILS ..o 50.4 23.9 22.3
Restructuring and Other............cooiiii e 43.6 28.1 16.1
Total CUMTENT PIrOVISIONS .....uvviiiiiieeee e s e i cmeeiie e ie e e e e e e e e ss s e e e s enesnrereeereeaeees, 94.0 52.0 38.4
Non-current
EMPIOYEE DENETILS ..ot 142.1 146.8 130.9
(01 1= TP PP PP P PUPPPPPPIOY 6.9 8.6 14.9
Total NON-CUITENt PrOVISIONS ....ccoiiiieeeeiecs e e e e e et ee e aesaenrennnnnes 149.0 155.4 145.8
QL0 = U o] (0 1Y/ ] o 243.0 207.4 184.2

The movements in restructuring atieboprovisions comprise:
2012 2011 2010

€ million € million € million
AS AL L JANUATY .....cceiiiiiiiiiiiiiitre st e et e e e e e e e e e s e e s eeseeseeeeansannnns 36.7 31.0 38.8
AriSING AUNNG thE YEAI ....eeiiiiiiiiii e ereeet e 72.3 50.3 34.8
Utilised during the YEaI.........oou i (57.3) (44.0) (43.1)
UNused amMOUNE FEVEISE..........uvvereee s ettt e sttt e e e e s err e e e e snnnee e s (1.5) (0.2) 0.1
Foreign currency tranSIation ............cc.eeeieiiiieiiiiic e 0.3 (0.4) 0.4
AS At 3L DECEMDEN ..ttt 50.5 36.7 31.0

Restructuring and other provisiomsnprise outstanding balances relating to restrimguof €41.3m (2011:
€23.9m, 2010: €9.6m) that is expected to be coreglat 2013 (see note 20c ), a provision for onemrgract in Russia
of €5.7m (2011: €5.7m, 2010: €5.9m), expected tatieed in over 5 years and a provision for lalegm supply contracts
in Italy of nil in 2012 (2011: €3.2m, 2010: €10.7n) addition, 2012 included other items of €3.22011: €3.9m, 2010:
€4.8m).

Page 60 of 98



Caca-Cola Annual Report 2012
‘C Coca-Cola Hellenic
SR R

>assion for Excellence

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ctinued)
17. Provisions (continued)
Employee benefits

Employee benefits consisted of tikfving at 31 December:

2012 2011 2010

€ million € million € million
Defined benefit plans
Employee leaving iINdeMNILIES ..........euiiiiiirieeiiiie e e e 94.0 95.0 99.9
PENSION PIANS ....eeiiiiiiiie et et e e e e 42.4 41.4 195
Long service benefits—jubilee plans........ccceeee i 8.2 7.9 7.7
Total defined benefits PIANS ........coviviiiiiceee e 144.6 144.3 127.1
Other employee benefits
ANNUAT TEAVE ...ttt ittt ettt ettt e e s e e s et e e e nbenee e 9.1 9.2 9.6
Other employee DENETItS .........c.uiiiii i et 38.8 17.2 16.5
Total other employee BeNefitS .......ocoeeiiii i 47.9 26.4 26.1
Total employee benefits obligations ...........cceeiiiii i 192.5 170.7 153.2

Employee benefit obligations at 3dcBmber were split between current and non-cuaefdllows:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
LA T [ 4 7= o | PP 50.4 23.9 22.3
I ToT o R ot U (= o | RSP PPTRRY 142.1 146.8 130.9
Total employee benefits obligations ...........cceeiii i 192.5 170.7 153.2

Employees of Coca-Cola Hellenic’'s subsidiarief\ustria, Bulgaria, Croatia, Greece, Italy, MonteredNigeria,
Poland, Romania, Serbia and Slovenia are entitleentployee leaving indemnities, generally baseccach employee’s
length of service, employment category and remuiugra

Coca-Cola Hellenic’'s subsidiaries in Austria, GeseNorthern Ireland, the Republic of Ireland andt&rland
sponsor defined benefit pension plans. Of the thlaes in the Republic of Ireland, two have plasess, as do the two plans
in Northern Ireland, one plan in Greece and ona piéSwitzerland. The Austrian plans do not haanmssets. The defined
benefit pension plans in Austria, Greece, Repuddfliceland and Northern Ireland are closed to neswiers.

Coca-Cola Hellenic provides long service benéfitthe form of jubilee plans to its employees insfiia, Croatia,
Nigeria, Poland, Slovenia and Switzerland.

Defined benefit obligation by segrisras follows:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Defined Benefit obligation: 144.6 144.3 125.7
EStabliSNed........ooeiiiii e 110.9 112.0 96.2
EMEITING .eeeiieiii ittt s ettt e et e e e s 31.3 30.2 27.6
DEVEIOPING.....ci ittt rereeea et e e e a e e e e e 2.4 21 1.9
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17. Provisions (continued)

The average duration of the defined benefit plan$7 years and the total employer contributionseetgd to be
paid in 2013 are €22.7m. Through its defined bempédins the Group is exposed to a number of risksudlined below:

The Northern Ireland, the Republic of Irelaand Swiss plans hold a significant portion of itgs, through
investment funds, which are expected to outperfoorporate and government bonds in the long termilewgroviding
volatility and risk in the short term. The Grougdibees due to the long term nature of the planilités the level of equity

investments held by the plans are appropriate.

A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities and the sensitivity of the ideld benefit
obligation to changes in the discount rate andratlgmificant actuarial assumptions is as follows:

Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase
Rate of pension increase

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumptions assumption assumption
0.50% decreas of 7.81% increas of 8.62%
0.50% increase of 2.029 decrease of 1.87%
0.50% increas of 2.46% decreas of 1.63%

The above sensitivity analysis isdzhon a change in assumption while holding ako#ssumptions constant.

Reconciliation of defined benefit igllion:

Present value of defined benefit obligation atduday ....................
CUITENE SEIVICE COSL .iiiiiiiiiic et ceeeeeerc st e e e e e e e s e aeeaaees
INTEIESE COST...ovtiiiiiieiie et e e e
Plan participants’ contribUtionsS ... oo eee e e
PaSt SEIVICE COSE....uuuiiiiiiiiiiieiee et ceeeeee e e e e e e e s erre e e e e e e e e e e
Curtailment/settlement.............ouviiiiiiceeiee e
BENEFitS PaAId ....evveiiieeeeeeiieiiete o e e

Remeasurements:

- (Gains)/Loss from change in demographic assumati...............
- Loss from change in financial assumptions..............cccccevvv e,
- Experience adjustments .........cccvvviummeriiiiir e e
Actual taXeS PAIQ.......uvuviuriiiis i e e
Foreign currency translation .............ccccceveei e
Present value of defined benefit obligation at 31 &ember...........
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2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million

......... 390.5 374.6 352.9
......... 13.4 13.0 13.3
......... 15.8 15.8 16.9

4.7 5.0 4.6
......... (2.1) 0.2 (2.3)
......... 8.0 (5.1) 4.7
......... (42.5) (31.6) (38.9)
.......... (4.0) 3.5 5.2
.......... 37.1 12.9 4.3
......... (5.7) (1.6) (12.3)
.......... (0.1) — (0.3)
......... — 3.8 26.5
......... 415.1 390.5 374.6
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Reconciliation of plan assets:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Fair value of plan assets at 1 January...........cccccvveieeeeieieeeeee e 246.2 248.9 207.1
Interest income 0N Plan aSSEtS.............ccueeeemeerieeeee et eemme e 8.2 9.3 8.7
Return on plan assets excluding interest iNCome.............ccccveeveeennneen. 12.4 (12.4) 3.7
Actual employer’s contributions.............ccececiieni, 9.7 10.0 10.5
Actual participant’s contributions 4.7 5.0 4.6
Actual benefits paid ............cccc...e. (12.8) (11.1) (11.7)
SEHEMENT ... e — (8.3) —
AAMIN EXPENSES ....eeieieiieie ettt ettt e bbbaeaeeeeeaaeas — — (0.3)
Foreign currency translation ..o 2.1 4.8 26.3
Fair value of plan assets at 31 DECEMDEr .....ccceereviiiiiiiiiiernieiiiiieeeen, 270.5 246.2 248.9
The present value and funded status of definedftiabligations were as follows at 31 December:
2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Deficit of funded PIaNS .........ceviviiiiee e 310.1 285.2 264.6
Fair value of plan aSSetsS...........oooiiiceeeeae e (270.5) (246.2) (248.9)
39.6 39.0 15.7
Present value of unfunded obligations..........cccccooiiieiiiiiiiie e 105.0 105.3 110.0
Defined benefit obligations...............ouvvmmmm e 144.6 144.3 125.7
Plus: amounts recognised within long term assetS.......ccccccovvviiievininnen. — — 1.4
Total defined benefit 0bligations ............coeeeeviiiicii e e 144.6 144.3 127.1
The movement in the defined berddiigation recognised on the balance sheet wasllasvk:
2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Defined benefit obligation as at 1 January..........ccccoovevvvimmeereeeesiieee e, 144.3 125.7 145.8
Expense recognised in the income statemMent.............ccuvvviemeeieer s 26.6 22.4 235
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognised iN OCl.......ccccuviiiiiiiiiiinecniieeee e 15.2 27.7 (6.1)
Employer contributions 9.7) (10.0) (10.5)
BeNefitS PAI .......oeeiiiiiiiii et s e (29.7) (20.5) (27.2)
Foreign currency translation ... e e (2.1) (1.0) 0.2
Defined benefit obligation as at 31 DeCember ...........ccovvvvivivvvvmmmeeieeeeeeen, 144.6 144.3 125.7

The assumptions used in computiegditfined benefit obligation comprised the follogvfior the years ended 31

December:
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2012 2011 2010
% % %
DISCOUNE FALE ...evteieeeiii e e e e e et e e e e et e e e e eea e e e e e e e ennaneaaanns, 35 4.2 4.4
Rate of compensation INCrEASE............iicoumeeiiiieie et e e 2.8 3.1 3.1
PENSION INCIEASES .....ciiiiiie e eeeeeeees et 0.9 0.9 0.7

The expense recognised in the incstat@ment comprised the following for the yeardegh31 December:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
SBIVICE COST..uttiiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e eam e e e e 19.3 16.4 15.7
Net interest cost on defined benefit liability $¢at) 7.5 6.5 8.2
ACTUANAL QAN e e e e e e (0.2) (0.5) (0.4)
10 ] = | USROS 26.6 22.4 23.5
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17. Provisions (continued)

Defined benefit plan expenditureniduded in staff costs and presented in cost ofigsold and operating
expenses.
Plan assets are invested as follows:

2012 2011 2010
% % %

Asset category

EqQUItY SECUITIES = EU ....uiiiiiiiiiiiiie et 15 14 15
Equity securities - NON - EU ......oooviiiiiicenne e 25 26 27
Government Debt Securities - NON - EU ......commmmeeeeeeriiiieieeeiiiiens 18 12 12
Government Bonds - EU...........uvviiviiiiiimme e e 12 11 7
Corporate Bonds - EU.......cocuiiiiiiiiiii e 2 8 8
Corporate Bonds - NON - EU......coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiee e 13 14 14
REAI BSTALE . .uuti i ettt e a e 10 10 10
CASI e 2 2 2
L1 1= SRR 3 3 5
TOUAL .t 100 100 100

Plan assets relate predominatetyutated financial instruments.
Equity securities were not investedrdinary shares of the Company as at 31 DecegliE2, 31 December
2011 and 31 December 2010.

Defined contribution plans

The expense recognised in the incstatement in 2012 for the defined contributiompa€20.9m (2011
€20.5m, 2010: €15.5m). This is included in staftscand recorded in cost of goods sold and opegratipenses.

18. Share capital and share premium

Number of
shares Share Share

(authorised Capital Premium Total

and issued) € million € million € million
As at 1 January 2010.........uuuuuuuunmiimmmmmmn e e ——— 365,539,07¢ 182.8 1,113.8 1,296.6
Shares issued to employees exercising stock optians.......... 597,365 0.3 5.4 5.7
Balance as at 31 December 2010.........ccciieeeeemeeriniiineeeeeenn. 366,136,44( 183.1 1,119.2 1,302.3
Shares issued to employees exercising stock optians.......... 405,568 0.2 4.5 4.7
Capitalisation of share premium reserve ......ccccccccvvevevieennes — 549.7 (549.7 —
Expenses related to share capital increase (nakaff €1.2m)... — — (4.8) (4.8)
Return of capital to shareholders .........cocccevviiiiimneeieiiiinnnnnn, — (183.2) — (183.2)
Balance as at 31 December 2011 .........cooiieeceemiiriniiiieneeeenn. 366,542,00¢ 549.8 569.2 1,119.0
Shares issued to employees exercising stock optians.......... 11,499 — 0.1 0.1
Reduction of share capital to extinguish accumdlate

losses of the parent company ... e eemeeveveeinninnnn, — (55.0) — (55.0)

Return of capital to shareholders .........coccceveiiiiimneeiiiiiinnnnnn, — (124.6) — (124.6)
Balance as at 31 December 2012...........ccoccceeeivivieieeeeniiinennn. 366,553,507 370.2 569.3 939.5
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18. Share capital and share premium (continued)

During 2010, Coca-Cola Hellenic’'s Board of Direstoesolved to increase the share capital of the gaom by
issuing 163,354, 161,663, 102,700 and 169,648 meimary shares, on 26 February, 17 May, 24 Augndt2b November
2010 respectively following the exercise of stogkions by option holders pursuant to the Compasyek option plan.
Total proceeds from the issues of the shares weire

During 2011, Coca-Cola Hellenic’'s Board of Direstoesolved to increase the share capital of the gaom by
issuing 354,512, 21,994, 28,749 and 313 new ordishares as announced on 16 March, 24 June, 1r3egteand 13
December 2011 respectively, following the exer@$estock options by option holders pursuant to @@npany’s stock
option plan. Total proceeds from the issues oftieres were €4.7m.

During 2012, Coca-Cola Hellenic’'s Board of Direstaesolved to increase the share capital of the gaomby
issuing 5,334 and 6,165 new ordinary shares asummwed on 21 March and 27 September 2012 respegtiediowing the
exercise of stock options by option holders purstarthe Company’'s stock option plan. Total prosefdm the issues of
the shares were €0.1m.

On 6 May 2011, the Annual General Meeting of shalddrs resolved on the reorganisation of its sbapital. The
Group’s share capital increased by an amount &qué&b49.7 million. This increase was effected bpitising the share
premium reserve and increasing the nominal valueagh share from €0.50 to €2.00. The share cap#al subsequently
decreased by an amount equal to €183.2 million diyrahsing the nominal value of each share fromOERCEL.50, and
distributing such €0.50 per share difference taoedmalders in cash.

On 25 June 2012, the Annual General Meeting of edf@ders resolved to decrease the share capitéheof
Company by the amount of €124.6 million by decregshe nominal value of the Company’s share by£@& share, from
€1.50 to €1.16 per share, and the return of theuainaf the decrease to the Company’s shareholdezash, i.e. a return of
€0.34 per share. Furthermore, on the same datasitresolved to decrease the share capital of tinep&ny by the amount
of €55.0 million by decreasing the nominal valughlef Company’s share by €0.15 per share, from €b.83..01 per share,
in order to extinguish accumulated losses of themacompany Coca-Cola Hellenic Bottling Compan.Sn an equal
amount.

After the above changes, the share capital on 3fmber 2012 amounts to €370.2 million and is cosegriof

366,553,507 shares with a nominal value of €1.GcheBkach share provides the right to one vote aeigd meetings of
Coca-Cola Hellenic and entitles the holder to divids declared by Coca-Cola Hellenic.
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19. Reserves

The reserves of the Group at 31 Ddxr were as follows:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
TrEASUINY SNAIES....uutitiiiiii it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e ee e aaeaenens (54.3) (55.5) (57.2)
Exchange equaliSation FESEIVE ........ciiiiiiieeeee et nrrmr e e e e (168.1 (199.7 (131.0)
Other reserves
Shares held for equity compensation plan ............... (1.2) (1.2) (0.8)
Hedging reserve (net of deferred tax of €3. Om1 @ﬁ)ll €2 7m expense
P20 KO (0 2 4 o =1 o ) TP (15.1) 4.7 (10.3)
TAX-TIEE FESEIVE ...ttt e mn e e 251.6 251.6 251.6
SEALULOTY TESEIVE ...ttt e e e e e e et e e et eeeeeeeeeeeeessaes e reernnne 76.7 76.2 75.7
SEOCK OPLION FESEIVE. ...ciiiiiiiii ittt eeeeet ettt e e e e e e e s e s e e eeee e e s 51.9 45.6 375
Available-for-sale financial assets valuatioreree
(net of deferred tax of €0.1m expense; 2011t®0yain; 2010: €0.1m gain)........ 0.6 0.5 0.8
L@ T PO PRPTUOPPSR 12.0 12.0 11.9
TOLAl OtNET FESEIVES ... ittt ettt e e e e et e e et e s b s e e et e e saaaes 376.6 380.0 366.4
Total reserves 154.2 124.8 178.2

Treasury shares

On 30 April 2009, the Board of Directors of CocakBlellenic resolved to buy-back a maximum of 5%t®paid-
in share capital during the period that is 24 merftbm the date of the Extraordinary General Megtif 27 April 2009
which approved a share buy-back programme purdoaftticle 16 of Codified Law 2190/1920 (i.e. un#ib April 2011).
Based on the Company’s capitalisation at that tithe, maximum amount that may be bought back putstanhe
programme was 18,270,104 shares. Purchases umdpraframme were subject to a minimum purchase @fi€1.00 per
share and a maximum purchase price of €20.00 pee shhis programme expired on 26 April 2011.

Applicable law does not require any actual useuzhsapproved share buy-back programmes. The Compagy
therefore, in its sole discretion, decide not ty back any shares or to buy fewer shares than #rénmum permissible
number approved under the programme. The purcHasleaces pursuant to the share buy-back programasedependent
upon a number of factors including, without limidtet, the relative attractiveness of alternativeestiment opportunities and
the availability of funds. As at 31 December 203,230,135 shares had been held by the Group pursudme share buy-
back programme of a total value of €54.3m, bringhgyshares in circulation to 363,123,372 (20143@3,135 shares held of
a total value of €55.5m, 2010: 3,430, 135 shar&$ dfea total value of €57.2m).

Exchange equalisation reserve

The exchange equalisation reserve comprises a@ldiorexchange differences arising from the traiwiadf the
financial statements of entities with functionafremcies other than the euro.
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19. Reserves (continued)
Other reserves
Shares held for equity compensation plan

Shares held for the Coca-Cola Hellenic Stock Pwehtan, which is an equity compensation plan iichvbligible
employees may participate. The movement for shasedb payment transactions in 2012 was a credid.ah€ (2011: €0.4m
debit, 2010: €0.2m credit)
Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve reflects changes in the fdiregaof derivatives accounted for as cash flow bedget of the
deferred tax related to such balances. The movefoe2012 relates to the movement in cash flow leedaf €10.4m debit,
net of tax gain of €3.0m (2011: €5.6m credit, nfdiaa expense of €2.7m, 2010: € 9.1m debit, neawigain of €0.2m).
Tax-free reserve

The tax-free reserve includes investment tax ineerdnd other tax-free or partially taxed resergéshe Group.
The tax-free reserve may be distributed if taxedere applicable. There was no movement in therexfeserve in 2012
(2011: nil, 2010: €10.5m credit for the establishinaf additional reserves).
Statutory reserves

Statutory reserves are particular to the variousntriees in which the Group operates. The amounstafutory
reserves of the parent entity, Coca-Cola Hellemith restrictions on distribution is €55.7m (20EE5.7m, 2010: €55.7m).
The movement in the statutory reserves for 2012av88.5m credit (2011: €0.5m credit, 2010: € 0.4adit) and relates to
the establishment of additional reserves.

Other reserves

Other reserves are particular to the various casin which the Group operates. There was no mewéin other
reserves for 2012 (2011: €0.1m credit, 2010: €Cciexit).

Stock option reserve

The stock option reserve represents the cumulathage to the income statement for employee stgtloro
awards. The movement for the stock option reseasw@®12 was a €6.3m credit (2011: €8.1m credit02@86.7m credit).

Available-for-sale financial assets valuation reser

The available-for-sale financial assets valuatieserve reflects changes in the fair values of abkilfor-sale
financial assets. Amounts in this reserve are sstiad to profit or loss upon sale or impairmehthe related investments.
The movement for available-for-sale financial assetluation reserve for 2012 was a € 0.1m creditoheéax expense of
€0.1m (2011: €0.3m debit net of tax gain of €0.2810: €2.2m debit net of tax gain of €0.1m) anctes to revaluation
impact of listed and unlisted equities held.
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20. Total operating costs

Total operating costs for the years ended 31 Deeectdimprised:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
OPEratiNg EXPENSES ....uveeeiiiiiiieie et e raeeat e e s ettt e e s e abr e et e e s et e e st b e e e s abreeeesamreeee s 2,078.1 2,048.2 2,048.4
RESIIUCTUING COSES ....iiiiiiiiiiieit it teemer ettt e s rn e e s 106.7 71.1 36.5
Total OPErating COSLS ..uuuuuuiiiiii i e s 2,184.8 2,119.3 2,084.9
a) Operating expenses
2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
SelliNG EXPENSES. ...ttt 4ottt e e e e e e e e e s e bnraneeeeaeaanannnrere 995.6 998.5 1,021.1
DEIIVEIY EXPENSES ...ceiiiuiiiiiee ettt smmreeee et e et e e e et e e s st e e st eeee e e s e 649.6 632.1 630.2
AdMINISLrAtiVE EXPENSES .....eiiiiiiiieeei i emmee ettt e e e e e e e e e s bbb e eeeeeaaeaeasneareeeean 423.6 406.3 383.6
Stock option expense (refer to NOte 26) ......oeeoeiviiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 6.3 8.1 6.7
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer to Note.4)............eeveiiiiiiiocniiiiiiiciie 3.0 3.2 6.8
OPEIALING EXPENSES ..vuvtuuiesiieeeeeeeee st mmmr e eeesteaseas s aaeseaeaaeeaaeeteeeaeeeaeessss e s 2,078.1 2,048.2 2,048.4

In 2012, operating expenses inclutedosses on disposal of property, plant andpgent of €6.9m
(2011: €3.2m losses, 2010: €13.0m losses).

(b) Adjustments to intangible assets

During 2010, the Group recognized deferred taetasen losses that had previously not been recednis
acquisition of CCB by HBC. Correspondingly, a defertax credit of €10.2m had been included witlaix on the income
statement. Based on the revised IFR8(siness Combinationgoodwill is no longer adjusted when deferred dagets on
losses have not been recognised on acquisitioraeEndubsequently recognized. Therefore no chargééan included in
the operating expenses of 2010. For the creditithsibeen included in taxes please refer to NofEaR2

(c) Restructuring costs

As part of the effort to optimise its cost basel austain competitiveness in the market place, Gbepany
undertook restructuring initiatives in 2012 whicln@unted to €106.7m (2011: €71.1m, 2010: €36.5mpreefax. The
Company recorded during 2012 €65.8m (2011: €478m0: €25.7m), €34.8m (2011: €17.6m, 2010: €2.3ng) €6.1m
(2011: €5.9m, 2010: €8.5m) of restructuring chaiigeiss established, developing and emerging markespectively. The
restructuring concerns mainly employees’ costs fete 17) and impairment of property, plant andigment (see note 5).
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20. Total operating costs (continued)

(e) Staff costs

Staff costs included in the incortegesment in operating expenses and in the costadgysold lines are analysed
as follows:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
WagesS and SAlANES. ... ...oiiiiiiiiii i ireeeeee e 819.2 821.6 833.1
SOCIAl SECUILY COSES ...iiiiiiiiiieiit i ieeeee ettt 181.3 175.2 160.4
Pension and other employee benefitS.........cccciiiiiiiiiii e 131.3 129.7 123.7
Termination DENETItS ..........uiii i e 67.5 48.6 32.6
TOtal StAff COSES .iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s e e e e s ee e e e e e e e emae e 1,199.3 1,175.1 1,149.8

Staff costs included in operatinpexses amounted to €945.0m in 2012 (2011: €9220&Q: €906.0m).
Staff costs included in cost of geadld amounted to €254.3m in 2012 (2011: €2472010: €243.8m).

The average number of full-time eqlént employees in 2012 was 39,736 (2011: 41,2010: 42,044).

U) Fees and other services of the statuyoauditor

Audit and other fees charged in the income statém@mcerning the statutory auditor of the consaoéddinancie
statements, PricewaterhouseCoopers S.A and &filiatere as follows, for the years ended 31 Decembe

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
AUGIT FEES .t eeaa e as 9.1 6.1 6.1
AUdit related fEES .....coi e e 0.5 0.4 0.2
(011 [T g (T S TSP PP PP PPPPUPRTTN 0.1 0.1 0.2
Total audit and all other fEES .........uviii i, 9.7 6.6 6.5
21. Finance costs
Net finance costs for the years engie December comprised:
2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
INEEIESE INCOIME ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e e neaes 10.4 8.7 6.9
INEEIEST EXPEINSE. ..ttt et (89.2) (87.2) (68.1)
Other fINANCE COSL.....uiiiiiiiii et e e e e e e e mnaees (1.6) (3.9 (8.2)
Net foreign exchange remeasurement gainSESYSS. ........vvevrvrrieeeriieeeeniiineeens (0.3) 0.6 (0.4)
Finance charges paid with respect to finapagds ...............cccvvviiiiicececeneenenn, (6.9) (5.6) (6.1)
Finance costs (98.0) (96.1) (82.8)
Loss on net monetary position (3.1) (7.8) —
Total finance costs (101.1 (103.9 (82.8)
Total finance costs, net (90.7) (95.2) (75.9)
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Other finance cost includes commiiinfees on loan facilities, notralvn down, other similar fees and wil
applicable premium on debt buy back.

Belarus has been considered to be a hyperinflafoeeonomy since the fourth quarter of 2011 asethrea
cumulative inflation exceeded 100% and thereforéafBe is consolidated in terms of the measuring unithatbalanc
sheet date and translated at the closing exchaige The restatement was based on conversion sagésived from th
Belarusian Consumer Price Index (CPI) as compilethb National Stastical Committee of the Republic of Belarus.
conversion factor used for December 2012 was 1\@Bigh resulted in a net monetary loss for 2012 8fi. The
conversion factor used for December 2011 was 2lii8hwresulted in a net monetary loss for 2011 08gil

Capitalised borrowing costs in 2GAounted tc€1l.4m (2011: €1.6m, 2010: €1.4m). The interest esed t
capitalise borrowing costs of the Group for 2012 886% (2011: 3.83%, 2010: 3.16%).
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22. Tax

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differsrfr the theoretical amount that would arise usirgiatutory ta
rate in Greece as follows:

2012 2011 201(
€ million € million € million

Profit before tax per the income statemMent ..o 258.6 364.5 568.5
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 20% (2011: 20%20MD: 24% ).......ovvevvvvreeerninnnn 51.7 72.9 136.4
Effect of different tax rates in foreign jurisdi@hiS .............ooooiiiiieiiiiee e 8.3 5.3 (24.1)
Additional local taxes in foreign juriSAICHIONS e ....vvviieiiiiieeeiiiee e, 11.6 13.6 13.2
S o L=Tol Tz U = M| Y=o R — — 21.2
Tax holidays in foreign jurisdictions 1.7) (2.4) (2.0)
Expenses non-deductible for taX PUrPOSES ......ceueiiiiiieiiiiiiiee e 33.3 51.0 41.1
INCOME NOt SUDJECT 10 TAX ...ttt ettt eee et e e e e e e e (33.6) (30.3) (20.7)
Changes in tax [aws and FateS ............occeemeeeeiiiiiie e smmne e (1.5) 0.4 2.7)
Current year tax |0SSeS NOt reCOGNISEU.....cceeieriiiiiieiiiiiiiiiie et eeeee e 2.1 0.2 0.5
Recognition of pre-acquisition deferred tax assets.........cccccvvvvvvvieeneeieieececvieiinnns — — (10.2)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised post-acaiiosi tax |0SSes...........cccceeeeeeeeeenn (0.2) (0.2) (6.2)
Recognition of previously unrecognised post-actjoisitax l0SSes.............ccceeueeee. (0.7) (7.9) (6.5)
(01 T SRR (4.2) (3.9) (3.2)
Income tax charge per the income statement .............ccccoe oo evvimee e 65.2 98.8 137.8

Nordeductible expenses for tax purposes include miatketnd advertising expenses, service fees, bat
provisions, entertainment expenses, certain emplogaefits and stock options expenses and othmes itlkeat partially or ir
full, are not deductible for tax purposes in certafi our jurisdictions.

Special tax in Greece

On 6 May 2010, the Greek Governneracted the ‘Extraordinary Contribution of SocigsRonsibiliy’ (Law Nr.
3845/2010). According to article 5, the ‘Extraomlin Social Contribution Tax’ was applied retrospegly on the parer
Company's 2009 total net income. The amount of sHgtraordinary Social Contribution Tax’ applicable 2009 wa
€21.2m. As a result the Group recorded a tax chafr§21.2m in 2010.

The income tax charge for the yesrded 31 December is as follows:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
CUITENT tAX CHAIGE ...ttt e e e e e e e eeee e 60.4 85.3 116.8
Deferred tax charge (refer to NOte 9) .....coeiriieiiiiiiiiie e 4.8 135 31.2
Pre-acquisition deferred tax assets recognisecegulesit to acquisition of CCB
(refer t0 NOLE 20) ..ivviiiieieie e e s et eemmmr et e e e e e e s e r e e e e e e s e s e s s errreeeeee e e s e e ens — — (10.2)
Total INCOME taX ChAIGE ...uviiiiiiee e e e e e e e e e 65.2 98.8 137.8
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23. Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earningisghare attributable to the owners of the paretittyds based c

the following data:

2012 2011 201¢

Net profit attributable to the owners of the par(€ million) ...........ccoccvieiiriiir e 190.4 264.4 421.0
Weighted average number of ordinary shares foptiiposes

of basic earnings per share (MillioN) ....ceoeooiiiiiiii e 363.9 363.0 363.3

Effect of dilutive stock options (MIllioN) ... 0.6 0.8 0.2
Weighted average number of ordinary shares fopthiposes

of diluted earnings per share (Million) ..o oo 364.5 363.8 363.5

Basic and diluted earnings per share (€) .....ccceuvvvieiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeceeeeee 0.52 0.73 1.16

Given the effect of rounding, basic and dilutech@ags per share are equal. Outstanding stock aptioat have ¢
anti-dilutive effect and therefore excluded frortutiéd earnings per share in 2012 were 6.0m (208#m42010: 3.4m).

24. Components of other comprehensive income

The components of other comprehensive income fy#ars ended 31 December comp

2012 2011 2010
Tax Tax Tax
Before-tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax Before-tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax Before-tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount benefit amount amount benefit amount
€ million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million € million
Available-for-sale
financial assets........... 0.2 (0.1) 0.1 0.4) 0.1 (0.3 (2.3) 0.1 (2.2)
Cash flow hedge............ (13.4) 3.0 (10.4) 8.4 2.7) 5.7 (9.3) 0.2 (9.1)
Foreign currency
translation................... 324 — 324 (54.4) — (54.4) 182.0 — 182.0
Actuarial (losses) / gains (15.2) 2.6 (12.6) (27.7) 5.7 (22.0) (1.3) 4.8
Share of othe
comprehensiv
income of equity
method investments...... (0.8) — (0.8) (0.6) — (0.6) — 0.9
Other comprehensive income.... 3.2 5.E 8.7 (74.7 3.1 (71.6 1774 (1.0 176.£

Page 73 of 98



Caca-Cola Annual Report 2012
‘C Coca-Cola Hellenic
SR R

>assion for Excellence

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ctinued)
25. Shares held for equity compensation plan

The Group operates a stock purchase plan, the Colza-Hellenic Stock Purchase Plan, which is an tgqui
compensation plan in which eligible employees mayigipate.

Under the terms of this plan, employees have thgodpnity to invest 1% to 15% of their salary indiorary
Coca-Cola Hellenic shares by contributing to trenpinonthly. Coca-Cola Hellenic will match up to aximum of 3% of
the employee’s salary by way of contribution. Enyglocontributions are used to purchase matchingeshan a monthly
basis on the open market, currently the Athens &xgh. Shares are either held in the employees warhg a trust, The
Coca-Cola Hellenic Employee Stock Purchase TrusttcMng shares vest one year after the purchassevs, forfeited
shares are held in a reserve account of the plamad revert back to the Company and may be useeduoce future
employer contributions. Dividends received in respe shares held by the trust are used to purchddiional shares and
accrue to the employees.

In order to adapt the plan to the Greek legal fraork in the case of employees resident in Greece,
Coca-Cola Hellenic matches the contribution ofdéheployees resident in Greece with an annual emplmymribution of up
to 5% of the employee’s salary, which is made icddber, and matching shares purchased in Decerabeinvmediately.

During the year of 2012, 188,545 shares were pseathldy Coca-Cola Hellenic (2011: 346,996, 2010272 as
matching shares to employee investments. The chiartiee income statement totaled €4.1 m (2011:r852010: €5.2m).
Of this amount, €0.6m represented employer cortidha accrued for Greek resident employees (2011L1rg,
2010: €1.1m). The cost of unvested matching shiedd by the trust at the end of December 2012, rbefioey vest to
employees, was €3.5m (2011: €4.1m, 2010: €4.1mg.tdtal number of shares held by the trust at Déeer@l, 2012 was
2,536,061 (2011: 2,701,979, 2010: 2,428,353). Ttal tcontributions made by employees to the trustng 2012 were
€3.9m (2011: €6.1m, 2010: €6.0m).

No provision is made for any increase or decreasalue of these shares, as they will vest to eyags, and the
risks and rewards of fluctuations of the shareepére borne by those employees.

The shares held under the equity compensationgkaincluded in other Reserves (refer to Note 1@l dgeducted
from equity.

26. Stock option compensation plans

Coca-Cola Hellenic operates an equity compensatian, under which senior managers are granted awafrd
stock options, based on performance, potentiafiti lavel of responsibility. Options are grantediatexercise price equal to
the closing price of the Company’s shares tradimghe Athens Exchange on the day of the drabptions vest in one-third
increments each year for three years and can lreigad for up to ten years from the date of awsvtien the options are
exercised, the proceeds received, net of any tctingacosts, are credited to share capital (atnbrainal value) and share
premium.

! From December 2008 the exercise price of stoclonpis determined by reference to the share pfitee Company’s
share at the close of trading on the date of taatgnstead of the weighted average share prideglthie ten working days
prior to the date of the grant.
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26. Stock option compensation plans (continued)

The following table summarizes imf@tion regarding outstanding stock options exebtésat December 31, 2012 and

stock options exercised during 2012:

Annual Report 2012
Coca-Cola Hellenic

Exercise Vesting Number of
price after Vesting dates for End of stock
the capital status further option options
return (€) 2012 increments period outstanding

2003-2004 Stock Option Plan/2003 Grant.. 8.83 fully vested - - 14.12.2013 3,250
2003-2004 Stock Option Plan/2004 Grant.. 10.08 fully vested - - 02.12.2014 86,827
2005-2009 Plan/2005 Grant...........ccoccvereenne 13.19 fully vested - - 01.12.2015 571,883
2005-2009 Plan/2006A Grant..................... 14.23  fully vested - - 20.03.2016 50,001
2005-2009 Plan/2006 Grant..............cccceveeee. 16.37 fully vested - - 12.12.2016 1,050,401
2005-2009 Plan/2007 Grant...........ccoccverienne 26.41 fully vested - - 12.12.2017 1,274,450
2005-2009 Plan/2008A Grant..............c.c.... 22.20  fully vested - - 19.06.2018 30,000
2005-2009 Plan/2008 Grant...............cc.cuee... 9.02 fully vested - - 10.12.2018 1,333,341
2009-2011 Plan/2009 Grant..............ccceeuenee 15.70  fully vested - - 09.12.2019 1,646,967
2009-2011 Plan/2010A Grant.. 19.16 two thirds 18.03.2013 - 17.03.2020 30,000
2009-2011 Plan/2010 Grant..... 19.31 two thirds ~ 09.12.2013 - 08.12.2020 1,913,100
2009-2011 Plan/2011A Grant.. 18.53 one third  16.03.2013  16.03.2014 15.03.2021 75,000
2009-2011 Plan/2011B Grant.. 18.16 one third  24.06.2013  24.06.2014 23.06.2021 3,333
2009-2011 Plan/2011 Grant. 11.98 one third  16.12.2013  16.12.2014 15.12.2021 1,632,500
TOAl oo e 9,701,053
A summary of stock option activity2012 under all plans is as follows:
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
Number exercise price  exercise price Number exercise price  exercise price
of stock before the after the of stock before the after the
options capital return capital return options capital return capital return
2012 2012 (€) 2012 (£) 2011 2011 (€) 2011 (€)
Outstanding at January.1............ 9,767,302 16.55 n/a 8,759,862 17.65 n/a
Granted ..., n/a n/a n/a 1,717,500 n/a 12.64
Exercised .......ccccccviiiiieeeieieeen. (11,499) 9.36 9.02 (405,568 11.69 11.19
EXpired ......cccovviiiiiiiii, n/a n/a n/a (3,151) 8.19 7.69
Forfeited ..........coiieveeeee e (54,750) 21.81 21.47 (301,341 19.48 18.98
Outstanding at December 31...... 9,701,053 n/a 16.19 9,767,302 n/a 16.55
Exercisable at December 31....... 7,914,981 n/a 16.50 6,192,606 n/a 17.04
Number Weighted
of stock average
options exercise price
2010 2010 (€)
Outstanding at January.l............ 7,415,442 16.33
Granted ......ccccooieiiiiii e, 2,010,100 20.15
Exercised (597,365, 9.59
Expired .....cccovvevereeenn. (1,453) 8.29
Forfeited (66,862) 18.08
Outstanding at December 31...... 8,759,862 17.65
Exercisable at December 31....... 5,001,036 17.77
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26. Stock option compensation plans (continued)

The charge to the income statement for employesk siption awards for 2012 amounted to €6.3m (2@811m,
2010: €6.7m respectively).

As a result of the capital return (refer to notetd®ur consolidated financial statements) of €0a&3dorresponding
€0.34 reduction was made to the exercise priceach @inexercised stock option under each plan. Todifitation to the
exercise price ensured the intrinsic value of edobk option was retained and did not result imeéneental fair value for any
of the unexercised stock options. Incremental faiue is calculated using the binomial stock optatuation model and
represents the difference between the fair valienadption immediately after the modification ahd triginal fair value of
the respective option, measured immediately befarenodification.

The Company adopted the employee stock option ghah3 December 2001. Previously, the Company hackds
stock appreciation rights to certain of its empksgjeincluding employees who previously held optiamsCCB. Upon
adoption of the stock option plan, all such righescept those held by retirees and employees lddateountries where
granting and exercising stock options was impratiic not permitted, were converted into stock amicarrying over the
same exercise prices, vesting periods and expirdebes.

Equity settled share based paymardsmeasured at fair value at the date of gramgusibinomial stock option
valuation model. For the year of 2012 there hawanb® grants. For prior years, the inputs intontloelel are as follows:

2011 2010
Weighted average fair value of options granted.............ccceeviiicerieie e, €29 €52
RiSK free INtErest rates ........cceviiiiiiieeccm e 2.4% 3.0%
EXpected VOIALIILY ...........uuueieiiiiiie e 33.2% 32.2%
DIVIAENd YIEIA ..ot ettt r e e e e aanees 2.5% 1.5%
EXPECLEA lIf@ .oeiiiiiieii e 4.1 years 4.0 years

The weighted average remaining contractual lifsludre options outstanding under the stock optionpemsation plans at
December 31, 2012 was 6.5 years (2011: 7.5 yeat®): 7.8 years).

27. Stock appreciation rights
Effective January 1, 2012 the Company does notabpemy stock appreciation rights.

The Company operated in the past a stock-based eswgafpion plan, under which certain key employeesewe
granted stock appreciation rights (‘SARS’), basedan employee’s performance, potentiality and lefetesponsibility.
There were some stock appreciation rights that imedaunexercised from grants that occurred in . prhese remaining
stock appreciation rights were exercised duringl2@he terms of the SARs were based upon the bexsits and conditions
of stock option grants, except that instead of shathe holders received a payment equal to thigiyeodifference between
the market price of Coca-Cola Hellenic's sharethatclosing time of the Athens Exchange at the datexercise and the
exercise price. SARs vested in one-third incremeath year for three years and could be exercizedpfto ten years from
the date of award.

After the remaining SARs from previous grants werercised in 2011, on December 31, 2012, there were
outstanding stock appreciation rights.
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27. Stock appreciation rights (continued)

A summary of stock appreciation t&ghctivity under all plans is as follows:

Weighted Weighted
average average
Weighted exercise exercise
average price before price after
Number of exercise Number of the capital the capital
SARs price SARs return return
201z 2012 €) 2011 2011 €) 2011 €)
Outstanding on 1 January..........cccccvveeeernn, — — 13,950 8.19 n/a
EXErcised ......o.ouvvvviiviiiiiiiiieeeeeiiiiin — — (13,950) 8.19 7.69
Outstanding and exercisable on 3
December ... — — — — —
Weighted
average
Number of exercise
SARs price
2010 2010 (£)
Outstanding on 1 January.............ccceeveeeen, 77,250 9.60
| (C] (o] 1= o (63,300) 9.91
Outstanding and exercisable on 31
December ... 13,950 8.19

The inputs used for the valuatiorséiRs are the same as those used for equity setthe@ based payments with
the exception of risk-free interest rates. In 28i&e was no expense recorded in the income staterlating to SARS,
compared to debit of €0.1 million and a credit 8f%million recorded in 2011 and 2010, respectively
28. Business combinations and acquisition of non-atrolling interests

During 2012, the Group paid thedaling amounts in respect of non-controlling intésejuired in 2011:

Amount of
consideration

€ million

Payment for acquisition in 2011 of non-controllingerests in
Nigerian Bottling Company plc 13.9
Cash outflow included in cash flow 13.9
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During 2011, the Group acquired oolling interests or increased its controlling igst in the following entities:

Net tangible asset Goodwill Acquisition Amount of
applicable arising of trademarks consideration
Location € million € million € million € million
Acquired business:

MS Foods UAB Belarus (0.4) 2.7 0.2 25

Acquisition of non-controlling interests:
Nigerian Bottling Company plc  Nigeria - - - 100.2
Coca -Cola HBC-Srbija d.o.0.  Serbia - - - 17.7
Total acquisitions as at 31 December 2011 (0.4) 2.7 0.2 1204
€ million
Total consideration 120.4
Less: payment deferred (43.7)
Cash outflow included in cash flow 76.7

Acquisition of MS Foods UAB

On 20 April 2011, the Group, along with TCCC, acqdi through Multon ZAO, the Russian juice joint
arrangement, all outstanding shares of MS Foods @& mpany that owns 100% of the equity of VlanpgK"VIanpak"),
a fruit juice and nectar producer in Belarus. Chare of the acquisition consideration was €3.9ruiting an assumption of
debt of €1.4m. Acquisition related costs recogniasdn expense in income statement, under opeeatpenses, amounted
to €0.3m.

Details of the acquisition are as follows:

Acquiree's carrying Fair Value
amount before combination Adjustments Fair values
€ million € million € million
Property, plant and equipment ...........ccceeeeeeeeviceeeeeenn. 0.6 0.3 0.9
Deferred taX asSets ........cccccvvvvvvvvvvvieeeeeee e — 0.1 0.1
INVENTOMIES ..vvviiiiiiieeeee e e s et s 0.1 — 0.1
Short-term bOrrOWINGS .....oovvvviviiiiiiii e (0.9) (0.5) 1.4)
Accounts payable ..........cccovvviiiiiiiiienee e, (0.1) — (0.1)
Fair value of net tangible assets acquired.................... (0.3) (0.2) (0.4)
TrademMarksS ........ceueiiiiiiniieeeee e — 0.2 0.2
(7o o o 11 1| SRR — 2.7 2.7
Fair value of net assets acquired .........ccocccceeeeeeevrvmmennns (0.3) 2.8 2.5
Consideration paid to former SNAr€NOIAEIS . ccaceeeeeiiiiiieie e e 2.5
QI ] = LI oo £ 1= > o o USSR 2.5

The contribution of MS Foods UAB to the resultsttod Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 axante
of €1.3m and a profit of €1.2m. The revenue anditpittat MS Food UAB would have contributed to tBeoup for the year
ended 31 December 2011 if the acquisition dateHerbusiness combination had been as of the begjrofi the annual
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28. Business combinations and acquisition of narentrolling interests (continued)

reporting period would have been €1.4m and €1.Zpetively. The acquisition resulted in the Groapording €2.7m of
goodwill and €0.2m of trademarks in its emergingrddes segment.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of MS FoddlaB is attributed to synergies that the Group exp¢o realize
by combining operations with those already existmgelarus. None of the goodwill recognized is eoed to be deductible
for income tax purposes.

Acquisitions of non controlling interests
In 2011 the Group acquired non adglitrg interests as follows:

On 8 June 2011, the Board of Directors of the Cowjsasubsidiary Nigerian Bottling Company plc (“NBC
resolved to propose a scheme of arrangement betBEnand its minority shareholders, involving thencellation of part
of the share capital of NBC. The transaction wasreyed by the Board of Directors and General AssgrabNBC on 8
June 2011 and 22 July 2011 respectively and residtecquisition of the remaining 33.6% of the wugtishares of NBC
bringing the Group’s interest in the subsidiarl@®%. The transaction was completed in Septemhkt a6d NBC was de-
listed from the Nigerian Stock Exchange. The coarsition for the acquisition of non controlling irgsts was €100.2m,
including transaction costs of €1.8m, out of whét0.4m was paid as of 31 December 2012 (2011: £5§6.Bhe remaining
amount of €29.8m has yet to be paid in respechafes acquired as the sellers have yet to claimable consideration. This
amount is currently held in a separate bank accouiigeria awaiting claim (see note 14). The difece between the
consideration and the carrying value of the inteaegjuired (€60.1m) has been recognized in retagsedings while the
accumulated components recognized in other compséheincome have been reallocated within the gaufithe Group.

On 25 June 2010, the Group initiated a tender affggurchase all of the remaining shares of thegantrolling
interest in Coca-Cola HBC — Srbija d.o.o0. (“CCHI8at). The tender offer was completed on 2 Aug2@10 and resulted in
the Group increasing its stake in CCH Serbia t®%ilas of 31 December 2010. In 2011, the Group aeduall the
remaining interest in the subsidiary. The consitignapaid for the acquisition of non controllingiénest acquired in 2011
was €17.7m, including transaction costs of €0.401L(R2 €3.7m) and the carrying value of the additiongerest acquired
was €11.4m. The difference between the consideratia the carrying value of the interest acquirasl ireen recognized in
retained earnings.

Disposal of Eurmatik S.r.|
In February 2011, the Group sold all of its intésesr Eurmatik S.r.l., the vending operator in ytalThe
consideration was €13.5m and the cash and caslvateptis disposed were €0.4m. The disposal resittetie Group

derecognising €12.0m of intangible assets and €12 net assets. The disposal of Eurmatik S.riilted in a gain of
€0.8m in the Group’s established segment.
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29. Dividends

The reported net results of the parent companytutsry accounts do not allow for 2012 and 201ustay
minimum annual dividend payment. As a result theuprhas not recorded a dividend liability in regp#012 and 2011.

During 2010, a dividend of €0.30 per share totaft§2.0m was paid.
30. Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety ofdfincial risks: market risk (including foreign curey risk, interest
rate risk, commaodity price risk), credit risk, ligity risk and capital risk. The Group’s overatkimanagement programme
focuses on the volatility of financial markets a®kks to minimise potential adverse effects orGtmip’s cash flows. The
Group uses derivative financial instruments to leeckgrtain risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by the Group Trgagsura controlled manner, consistent with the Boafd
Directors’ approved policies. Group Treasury idiéesi evaluates and hedges financial risks in ctmseperation with the
Group’s subsidiaries. The Board of Directors haprayed the Treasury Policy and Chart of Authorithich together
provide the control framework for all treasury arehsury related transactions.

Market Risk
Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to the effect of foreign auryerisk on future commercial transactions, recsgdimonetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated inetwies other than the local entity’s functionalreaocy, as well as net
investments in foreign operations. Foreign currefayard contracts and foreign currency option cacts are used to
hedge a portion of the Group’s foreign currenck.rifhe majority of the foreign currency forward t@ets and foreign
currency option contracts have maturities of léssitone year after the balance sheet date. Thigriotarrency risk arising
from the investment in foreign operations is nadded.

Management has set up a policy that requires Gecougpanies to manage their foreign exchange risknsgeneir
functional currency. To manage their foreign exdeamisk arising from future commercial transacti@ml recognised
monetary assets and liabilities, entities in theu@ruse foreign currency forward and option consr&@nsacted with Group
Treasury. Foreign exchange risk arises when futaremercial transactions or recognised monetarytasgdiabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entifytsctional currency. The Group Treasury’s risk ngaraent policy is to
hedge between 25% and 80% of anticipated cash floveach major foreign currency for the next twelmenths. Each
subsidiary designates contracts with Group Treasisrfair value hedges or cash flow hedges, as pppte. External
foreign exchange contracts are designated at Glewgd as hedges of foreign exchange risk on smenifbnetary assets,
monetary liabilities or future transactions on asgbasis.

The following tables present details of the Grouggssitivity to reasonably possible increases awledises in the
euro and US dollar against the relevant foreigrnrengies. In determining reasonable possible chanes historical
volatility over a twelve-month period of the restree foreign currencies in relation to the euro &mel US dollar, has been
considered. The sensitivity analysis determinespthtential gains and losses in the income statemreatjuity arising from
the Group’s foreign exchange positions as a resullie corresponding percentage increases and ategeén the Group'’s
main foreign currencies, relative to the euro dre@lWS dollar. The sensitivity analysis includesstariding foreign currency
denominated monetary items, external loans asagdtbans between operations within the Group wtierelenomination of
the loan is in a currency other than the currerfaye local entity. The sensitivity analysis forceange risk for 2012, 2011
and 2010 was as follows:
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30. Financial risk management (continued)

2012 exchange risk sensitivity analysis

Armenian dram ........ccccceeeeeiienieeeene.
Belarusian rouble ...............cooooinnnn.e
Bulgarian leV........ccccoooeeeiivvvens e
Croatian Kuna..........c.ccccvvvvnnnen vmmmmen.
Czech koruna............coeevvvvvvvnns

Hungarian forint
Moldovan leu............ccccevvveneen.

Nigerian naira ........ccccccvveeeeeennnn.
Polish zloty ..........ccoovvvviiiii e

Romanian leu........cc.ccoooooiiiiiiimens
Russian rouble ...............cceeeiieriiaee.
Serbian dinar.............ccceoeevivviemeemens
SWISS franC.........cceeeeiiiiiiiiieeeeeeenn.
UK sterling ......oooooveeccniiiiiiiiieeeeeee,
Ukrainian hryvnia.........ccccoeeviieneeenn.s
uSdollar......cccooeeieiiiiiiiiiieeeeee,

Bulgarian leV.......cccccoooeeevivvvnns e
Croatian Kuna............cooovvveeeeeescomenn.
Czech Koruna .......cooevvveiiiinncecv e

Euro strengthens against

local currency

Euro weakens against
local currency

Loss/(Gain) in

(Gain)/loss in

income (Gain)/loss in income (Gain)/loss in
statement equity statement equity
% change € million € million € million € million
10.04% 0.7 — (0.8) —
9.58% (0.9) — 1.0 —
1.97% (0.7) — 0.8 —
1.99% (0.1) (0.1) 0.1 0.1
6.52% (2.0 (1.3) 25 1.2
10.55% (0.7 (1.3) 0.7 1.3
10.37% 0.5 0.8 (0.6) (0.9)
9.89% 1.7 — (2.1) —
8.67% (0.4) (3.8) 0.3 3.4
4.03% — (1.2) 0.2 0.8
7.70% 0.2 (2.5) (0.4) 1.4
7.27% 0.6 — (0.5) —
1.60% — (0.6) — 0.6
5.81% (0.5) 4.2 0.6 4.7)
8.99% 1.8 — (2.2) —
8.62% 18.4 1.7 (21.8) (2.0)
18.6 (4.1) (22.2) 1.2
US dollar strengthens against US dollar weakens against
local currency local currency
(Gain)/loss in Loss/(Gain) in
income (Gain)/loss in income Loss/(Gain) in
statement equity statement equity
% change € million € million € million € million
8.60% 0.1 — (0.1) —
8.77% — (0.1) — 0.1
13.09% 0.1 — (0.1) —
8.62% (19.1) 1.7 22.7 (2.0
9.98% (0.1) — 0.1 —
10.92% (0.3) (6.6) 0.8 3.1
11.10% — — 0.1 —
2.59% 0.2 — (0.3) —
(19.1) (5.0) 23.2 1.2
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30. Financial risk management (continued)

2011 exchange risk sensitivity analysis

Armenian dram .........coeeeeeiieiiiiniieneen.

Belarusian ro
Bulgarian lev

uble ..o

Croatian kuna..............cccooeeeeeisceeaen..
Czech koruna........ccooeeeeeieeivnnn .
Hungarian forint.............cccceeeeeiiiiivnees
Latvian lati............cccoevvvvveviiiiinennn,

Moldovan leu

Nigerian naira .........cccccevveveeeeeeeeennnnn,

Polish zloty ..

Romanian leU.........c.ccceeviiviniis e

Russian roub

1€

Serbiandinar...................oo e
SWISS franC........ceeeeiiieiiieieeeieeeeeeeinns
UK sterling .....cooooeeeeeeiiiiiiececiieiiiinn,
Ukrainian hryvnia...........cccocvvvvvennnees

Us dollar......

Belarusian ro
Bulgarian lev

Croatian kuna

(U] o] [

Nigerian naira .........cccccevvvveveeeeenenennn,
Russian rouble .........ccccoeeiiiiiiiiiienanns
Serbian dinar.........ccceeeeeieviievv e

Swiss franc..

Ukrainian hryvnia...........cccoccvvvvvennnees

Euro strengthens against
local currency

Annual Report 2012
Coca-Cola Hellenic

Euro weakens against
local currency

Loss/(Gain) in

(Gain)/loss in

income (Gain)/loss in income (Gain)/loss in
statement equity statement equity
% change € million € million € million € million
12.04% 0.4 — (0.5) —
30.00% (1.9) — 3.6 —
0.47% (0.2) — 0.2 —
1.68% — (0.2) — 0.1
6.71% (1.6) (1.3) 2.1 0.9
11.70% (0.2) (1.3) 0.1 1.4
1.48% (0.1) — 0.1 —
12.66% 0.2 1.0 (0.3) (1.3)
15.46% 1.2 — (1.6) —
10.31% (1.0) (4.5) 0.6 4.7
4.76% 0.1 (1.4) (0.2) 1.4
8.66% 0.2 (3.4) (1.3) 2.8
9.11% 0.3 — (0.4) —
14.95% 35 (4.5) (3.8) 4.6
8.02% 1.7 5.7 (1.6) (6.8)
12.18% 0.8 — (1.0) —
11.09% 20.8 6.6 (26.4) (7.2)
24.3 (3.2) (30.4) 0.6
US dollar strengthens agains US dollar weakens again:
local currency local currency
(Gain)/loss in Loss/(Gain) in
income (Gain)/loss in income Loss/(Gain) in
statement equity statement equity
% change € million € million € million € million
20.00% 2.3 0.2 (3.5 (0.3)
11.09% 0.7 — (0.8) —
11.27% 0.1) (0.3) 0.1 0.3
11.09% (22.5) (2.2) 28.2 2.7
10.59% — 4.1 — (5.2)
11.55% 0.7) (10.1) 0.3 10.2
14.33% (0.2) — 0.2 —
15.98% — — 0.1 —
2.74% 0.1 — (0.1) —
(20.4) (8.3) 24.5 7.8
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2010 exchange risk sensitivity analysis

Belarusian rouble
Bulgarian lev...........cccc.......

Croatian kuna
Czech koruna

Nigerian naira

Polish zloty ............cccceeeee

Romanian leu

Russian rouble
Serbian dinar.....................
Swiss franC......ccceeeeeeeeeen..n.
UK sterling .......ccoeevevieiinnnnns
Ukrainian hryvnia
uSdollar.......cccccvvvnieennnn,

Belarusian rouble
Bulgarian lev.......................

Croatian kuna

Nigerian naira
Romanian leu

Russian rouble
Ukrainian hryvnia

Euro strengthens against
local currency
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Euro weakens against
local currency

Loss/(Gain) in

Loss/(Gain) in

Estonian kroon
Hungarian forint
Moldovan leu.....................

income Loss/(Gain) in income (Gain)/loss in
statement equity statement equity
% change € million € million € million € million
9.82% (0.6) — 0.7 —
0.59% (0.2) — 0.1 —
1.84% — (0.1) — 0.1
6.22% (1.4) (1.0) 1.6 0.9
0.46% (0.2) — 0.1 —
11.28% (1.2) (1.6) 2.0 1.1
12.38% 0.1 1.0 (0.1) (1.3)
10.66% 0.5 — (0.7) —
10.56% (0.4) (4.4) 2.6 1.7
5.14% 1.2 (1.2) (0.4) —
8.64% (0.2) (0.8) (0.7) 0.5
4.91% (0.4) — 0.4 —
8.65% (1.6) (1.9) 1.8 1.8
8.38% (0.1) 6.0 0.5 (7.0
10.87% 0.2 — (0.2) —
10.25% 5.4 3.9 (6.7) (3.3)
1.3 (0.1) 1.0 (5.5)
US dollar strengthens against US dollar weakens against
local currency local currency
(Gain)/loss ir Loss/(Gain) in
income (Gain)/loss in income Loss/(Gain) in
statement equity statement equity
% change € million € million € million € million
2.87% 0.1 — (0.1) —
10.22% 0.6 (0.2) (0.8) 0.1
11.05% — (0.2) — 0.1
10.25% (5.5) (3.0) 6.8 3.7
4.18% 0.1 1.5 (0.1) (1.7)
12.47% — (0.3) — 0.3
8.94% 0.4 (2.2) (0.6) 0.5
3.21% (0.9) — 1.0 —
(5.2) (4.2) 6.2 3.0
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Commodity price risk

The Group is affected by the volatility of certainmmodity prices in relation to certain raw materiébeinc
mainly sugar and aluminium) necessary for the petido of the Group’s products.

Due to the significantly increased volatility ofmnodity prices, the Group’s Board of Directors Haseloped an
enacted a risk management strategy regarding coitynmdce rik and its mitigation. Although the Group continue
contract prices with suppliers in advance, to redits exposure to the effect of shtetm changes in the price of sug
fructose and aluminium, in addition, based on Bn@I36 month forecast, ghGroup hedges the purchase price of suga
aluminium using commaodity swap contracts, even giwathese contracts do not qualify for hedge acéognt

The following table presents detailsthe Group’s income statement and equity $eitgi to increases ar
decreases in sugar and aluminium prices. The tid®e not show the sensitivity to the Group's totaderlying sugar ar
aluminium exposure or the impact of changes in mas that may arise from increase or decrease iar suglaluminiurr
prices. The sensitivity analysis determines théemital effect on profit or loss and equity arisifgm the Group’
commodity swap contract positions as a result efrdasonably possible increases or decreases stifae and aluminiu
price. The sensitivity analysis for sugar andrahium price risk was as follows:

31 December 2012

Commodity price increases with Commodity price decreases with
all other variables held constant all other variables held constant
(Gain)/loss ir Loss/(Gain) in
income (Gain)/loss ir income Loss/(Gain) in
statement equity statement equity
% change € million € million € million € million
YU - | S 16.4% (7.8) — 7.8 —
AlUMINIUM . 19.8% (0.6) — 0.6 —
(8.4) — 8.4 —
31 December 2011
Commaodity price increases with Commodity price decreases with
all other variables held constant all other variables held constant
(Gain)/loss in Loss/(Gain) in
income (Gain)/loss in income Loss/(Gain) in
statement equity statement equity
% change € million € million € million € million
SUGAT ..t 27.9% (11.2) — 11.0 —
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Interest rate risk

The fair value of interest rate swap agreementisexdi by the Group modifies the Group’s exposuraterest rate
risk and the changes in fair value of debt by cotivg the Group’s fixed rate debt into floating eatbligation based on
Euribor over the life of the underlying US$500.0llimh notes. The agreements involve the receipfixafd rate interest
payments in exchange of floating rate interest gaysiover the life of the agreement without an erge of the underlying
principal amount. In June and July 2009, the Gromywound two euro interest rate swap contracts wittotional value of
€207.5m, while in June and July 2010 the Group wmgidhe remaining interest rate swap contracts avitiotional value of
€292.5m, all of which related to the €500.0m 7-ymaro-denominated fixed rate bond that maturediil2 Furthermore, in
June and July 2010, the Group unwound the intea¢stswap contracts with notional value of €500Wdinich related to the
€500.0m 5-year euro-denominated fixed rate bondntfzdures in 2014.

During 2009, Coca-Cola Hellenic purchased interat option contracts on floating rate debt ineord continue
to benefit from lower floating interest rates whignsuring protection against adverse interestmateements. These interest
rate options were sold in June and July 2010.

During 2012, we recognized in interest expensexaense of €7.9m in relation to the ineffectivetioor of swaps
which qualified for hedge accounting compared t@gpense of €6.6m in 2011 and an income of €1.02010.

The sensitivity analysis in the following paragrapds been determined based on exposure to intetestof both
derivative and non-derivative instruments existaighe balance sheet date and assuming constaigrfoexchange rates.
For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is paepd assuming the amount of liability outstandihtha balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis paicteéase or decrease represents management’s asses$ma reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points highdrall other variables were held constant, theu@soprofit for the
year ended 31 December 2012 would have decreasé€d.by (2011: €5.0m, 2010: €1.8m). If interest sadtad been 100
basis points lower and all other variables were keehstant, the Group’s profit for the year endéd@&cember 2012 would
have increased by €4.7m (2011: €5.0m, 2010: €1.8m%.is mainly attributable to the Group’s exp@sto interest rates on
a fixed rate bond that have been swapped to arftpaate obligation.

Credit risk

The Group has limited concentration of credit @&koss trade and financial counterparties. Poliaiesin place to
ensure that sales of products and services ont@etimade to customers with an appropriate chestibry. The Group has
policies that limit the amount of credit exposwehy single financial institution.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in @vent that counterparties fail to perform theirigdifions at
31 December 2012 in relation to each class of meised financial asset, is the carrying amount of¢hassets as indicated
on the balance sheet.

If credit is granted to customers, their credit lgyas normally assessed using external agenciesb tastoric
experience. Credit limits are set accordingly. Rerinformation regarding credit risk exposurehiewn within Notes 12 and
13.

With respect to derivative financial instrument®dit risk arises from the potential failure of cterparties to meet
their obligations under the contract or arrangemdite Group’s maximum credit risk exposure for eadrivative
instrument is the carrying amount of the derivaijrefer to Note 8). In addition, the Group regufamiakes use of money
market funds to invest temporarily excess cashrigak and to diversify its counterparty risk. Théseds all have a
minimum AAA rating and strict investment limits aset, per fund, depending on the size of the fund.
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The Group only undertakes investment and derigati@nsactions with banks and financial institwioimat have a
minimum credit rating of ‘BBB-’ from Standard & Pos and ‘Baa3’ from Moody's. Since June 2012 the@r has also
introduced the Credit Default Swaps of a countdypam order to measure more timely the credit wimgks of a
counterparty and set up its counterparties in tiersrder to assign maximum exposure and tenortiper If the Credit
Default Swaps of certain counterparty exceed 50@fpsSroup will stop trading derivatives with tleiunterparty and will
try to cancel any deposits on a best effort basis.

Liquidity risk

The Group actively manages liquidity risk to enstimere are sufficient funds available for any stterin and long-
term commitments. Bank overdrafts and bank faesitboth committed and uncommitted, are used tagethis risk.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk managemt rests with the Board of Directors, which hasltban
appropriate liquidity risk management framework fioe management of the Group’s short, medium ang-term funding
and liquidity requirements. The Group manages difuirisk by maintaining adequate cash reservescantmitted banking
facilities, access to the debt capital markets, lydontinuously monitoring forecasted and actwehcflows. Included in
Note 15 is a listing of the undrawn facilities tiia¢ Group has at its disposal to manage liquitkty.

The following tables detail the Group’s remainingntractual maturities for its financial liabilitieShe tables
include both interest and principal undiscounteshciows assuming that interest rates remain coh$tam 31 December
2012.

€ million € million € million € million

up to 1 year 1-2 yrs 2-5yrs over 5 years
BOITOWINGS ooeeeeeiiiiiie e e e e e e 639.1 597.9 1,078.7 96.6
Derivative liabilities .........ccccoeeiiiiiiiicie e 8.3 2.2 0.2 —
Trade and other payables .............ooiieeceeeer e, 1,461.6 — — 6.7
As at 31 December 2012 ..........ccooeiiiiiiiceeeeeeeeeen 2,109.0 600.1 1,078.9 103.3
BOITOWINGS oooeeeeii ittt ee e e e e e 413.0 511.7 1,615.7 44.7
Derivative liabilities .........cccoeeiiiiiiiiie e 4.0 0.2 — —
Trade and other payables .........cccuvvvvicmeccmveiiiiieieeeee e, 1,475.9 — — 6.8
As at 31 December 2011 ..........cooeveiiiiiicmeeeeeeeeen 1,892.9 511.9 1,615.7 51.5
BOITOWINGS wvvvviiiiiiiiiie et eee e eeaeenes 619.9 92.4 1,458.2 361.3
Derivative liabilities ..........cccoiviiiiiiiiiieee e 4.1 — — —
Trade and other payables .............ooieceeemr e, 1,420.2 — — 6.8
As at 31 December 2010 ........ovieiiiiiiiiimee e, 2,044.2 92.4 1,458.2 368.1

The Group hedges exposures to changes in thedhie wf debt, as well as in the foreign exchangsh dbows of
debt by using a combination of interest rate arabssicurrency swap contracts (refer to Notes 8 @)d Therefore, the
impact of these instruments has been includederatigregate interest and principal undiscounteld ftawss related to the
underlying borrowings presented above.

Page 86 of 98



Caca-Cola Annual Report 2012
‘C Coca-Cola Hellenic
SR R

>assion for Excellence

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (ctinued)
30. Financial risk management (continued)
Capital risk

The Group’s objectives when managing capital asafeguard the Group’s ability to continue as gaoagcern and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to redtieecost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital struefuhe Group may increase or decrease debt, igsbayoback
shares, adjust the amount of dividends paid toestedaers, or return capital to shareholders.

The Group’s goal is to maintain a conservativerfmal profile. In April 2012, Standard & Poor’s ciged its rating
outlook to negative and in June the corporate tiradings were downgraded to "BBB+" long term, "Astiort term with
Credit Watch Negative. In June 2012, Moody's alswngraded Coca-Cola Hellenic ratings to "Baal'gtterm and the
outlook remained negative. The main reasons fdn Hotvngrades were the continued pressure on bssiasslts due to the
macroeconomic pressures in our territories angttential impact of Greece leaving the Eurozones Gnoup monitors its
capital structure on the basis of the gearing ratios ratio is calculated as net debt divided ditgltcapital. Total capital is
calculated as ‘Total equity’ plus 'Net debt’ as smoin the consolidated balance sheet. The Groupsegy is to maintain a
gearing ratio within a 35% to 45% range. The gepratios at 31 December 2012, 2011 and 2010 weficlaws:

2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Total borrowings (refer to NOte 15) ........coeeoiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 2,159.7 2,261.3 2,194.0
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer to Note.14).........ccoocovvveiimniieeeennineeen. (439.1 (447.4, (306.7)
NN L=] e (= o RO UPPRPPPPRP 1,720.6 1,813.9 1,887.3
L] Tz =10 01§ ST PSP OPPPPT PP 3,006.5 2,920.2 3,031.1
1] =1 o7= o = | P 4,727.1 4,734.1 4,918.4
(12T T o To T - L1 [ T 36% 38% 38%

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

For financial instruments such as cash, deposihtods and creditors, investments, short-term bonmgs
(excluding the current portion of bonds and no&gaple) and other financial liabilities (other tHaonds and notes payable),
carrying values are a reasonable approximatiorheif tfair values. According to the fair value hietay, the financial
instruments measured at fair value are classificfblbows:

Level 1
The fair value of available-for-sale listed equggcurities is based on quoted market prices at@kember 2012.
Level 2

The fair value of foreign currency forward contsadbreign currency option contracts, commodity gwantracts,
bonds and notes payable, interest rate swap ctgtaac cross-currency swap contracts is determiyedsing valuation
techniques. These valuation techniqgues maximisaisieeof observable market data. The fair valuehefforeign currency
forward contracts, foreign currency option contsactommodity swap contracts and cross-currency sedpracts is
calculated by reference to quoted forward exchadgppsit rates and forward rate curve of the ugaeylcommodity at
31 December 2012 for contracts with similar mayudiates. The fair value of interest rate optiontiuts is calculated by
reference to the Black and Scholes valuation maddlimplied volatilities. The fair value of bondsdanotes payable has
been determined on the basis of the estimated mrgafie of future cash flows based on observalalel yurves. The fair
value of interest rate swap contracts is determagethe difference in the present value of theréuinterest cash inflows and
outflows based on observable yield curves.
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Level 3

The fair value of available-for-sale unlisted inveents is determined through the use of estimatsmbdnted cash
flows.

The following table provides therfaalue hierarchy in which fair value measurememéscategorised for assets
and liabilities at 31 December 2012:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ million € million € million € million
Financial assets at FVTPL

Foreign currency forward CONtracts ... oooveeeeeenieeieennnnns — 0.8 — 0.8

Foreign currency option CONIacts.......mmmm eeeerereanieneeneeeenns — 0.2 — 0.2
Derivative financial assets used for hedging

Fair value hedges
Foreign currency forward contracts .....eee.occeeeviiiiieennnnnn, — — — —
Interest rate swap CONLracts .........cccceeeeiiieiiimeceeiiee e — 11.3 — 11.3
Cash flow hedges

Foreign currency forward contracts .....eee.ccoeeeviiiiieninnnnn, — 0.6 — 0.6

Foreign currency option CONIacts ... eeeeerereeeeeeeeeeeeenens — 0.7 — 0.7

Interest rate Swap CONLracts .........ccceeeeiiiiiii et — 35.8 — 35.8
Available-for-sale financial asSets ...........coeeviiiiiiiieeiiiieeneeeenn,

EQUILY SECUNTIES ...iiiiiiiiiieiieeiiet s ettt s e e e e e e e e s e 1.0 — 0.7 1.7
Total financial aSSEetS ...........cvvvviiiiiiicce e 1.0 49.4 0.7 51.1
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Foreign currency forward contracts .....eee.oceeeiieiiieennnnnn, — (0.8) — (0.8)

Cross-currency swap contracts — (67.8) — (67.8)

Commodity SWapP CONLIACES........ueueees e eeeereraeeeeesesannnnens — (5.8) — (5.8)
Derivative financial liabilities used for hedging

Fair value hedges
Foreign currency forward contracts .....ceeeeeeeeeeeeeiiivienenennns, — (0.5) — (0.5)
Cash flow hedges

Foreign currency forward contracts .....eee.occeeeeiieiieennnnnn, — (3.6) — (3.6)

Cross-Currency SWap CONraCtS .........coecemmiseesssmmeeeeeeeesnnsennes — (75.6) — (75.6)
Total financial liabilities ..........ccvvvvviice e — (154.1 — (154.1)

There were no material changes in fair value memsents for Level 3 items for the year ended 31 Déen
2012.

The following table provides therfaalue hierarchy in which fair value meastnents are categorised for as
and liabilities at 31 December 2011:
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ million € million € million € million
Financial assets at FVTPL

Foreign currency forward CONtracts ... oooieeeeeeeieeiiennnnns — 3.5 — 35

Foreign currency option CONtracts........meeeeeeeeiaceieeieeeeeenn, — 0.4 — 0.4
Derivative financial assets used for hedging

Fair value hedges
Foreign currency forward contracts .....ceeeeeeeeeeeeeiiivienenennns, — 0.6 — 0.6
Interest rate Swap CONLracts .........ccceeeeieeeivmmeeeeiiie e — 25.7 — 25.7
Cash flow hedges

Foreign currency forward contracts — 9.8 — 9.8

Foreign currency option CONIacts ... eeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeenens — 1.4 — 1.4

Interest rate SWap CONITACES .........cceevevervrvemimereeeeeeeienniinienens — 43.8 — 43.8
Available-for-sale financial asSets ...........coeeieiiiiiiiiceiiieeeeeeeenn,

EQUILY SECUNMLIES ...oeeiiiiiieeeee st e e e e e e e e e e e 0.7 — 0.5 1.2
Total financial 8SSetS ........ccuviiiiiiiiieecc e 0.7 85.2 0.5 86.4
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Foreign currency forward contracts .....ee.occeeeiiiiiiennnnnnn, — (0.9 — (0.9)

Foreign currency option CONIaCES ... eeeeeeeeriaeieeseeeeeenns — (0.4) — (0.4)

Cross-Currency swap CONtraCtS .........ceeeccceeeeeimmeesensnnnnnenens — (60.9) — (60.9)

Commodity SWapP CONLIACES.........ceeee s s eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeinenannns — (1.4) — 1.9)
Derivative financial liabilities used for hedging

Cash flow hedges

Foreign currency forward contracts .....eceeeeeeeeeeeiiiveneneenns, — (1.5) — (1.5)

Cross-CUrrency SWap CONraCtS .........coeeemmisessssmmeeeeeeeesnnsennes — (69.9) — (69.9)
Total financial liabilities ..........ccvvvvviicc e — (135.0 — (135.0)

There were no material changes in fair value memsents for Level 3 items for the year ended 31 Déen
2011.

Theollowing table provides the fair value hierarclywhich fair value measurements are categoriseddset
and liabilities at 31 December 20
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
€ million € million € million € million
Financial assets at FVTPL
Foreign currency forward CONtracts ... oooieeeeeeeieeiiennnnns — 0.3 — 0.3
Foreign currency option CONtracts........umeeeeeeeeeaceieeieeeeennn, — 0.4 — 0.4
Derivative financial assets used for hedging
Fair value hedges
Foreign currency forward contracts .....ceeeeeeeeeeeeeiiivceneneenns, — 1.7 — 1.7
Interest rate Swap CONLracts .........ccceeeeieeeivmmeeeeiiie e — 35.4 — 354
Cash flow hedges
Foreign currency forward contracts — 0.6 — 0.6
Foreign currency option CONIacts ... eeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeenens — 1.2 — 1.2
Interest rate swap CONLracts .........cccceeeeiiieiimmeceeiiee e — 37.7 — 37.7
Available-for-sale financial assets
Equity securities 1.3 — 0.3 1.6
Total financial assets 1.3 77.3 0.3 78.9
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Foreign currency forward contracts .....ee.occeeeiiiiiiennnnnnn, — (0.2) — 0.1
Cross-CUrrency SWap CONraCES .........coecemmisessesmmeeeeeeeesnssonnes — (72.6) — (72.6)
Derivative financial liabilities used for hedgin
Fair value hedges
Foreign currency forward contracts .....eee.ooceeeeeiiiiiennnnnnn, — (0.6) — (0.6)
Cash flow hedges
Foreign currency forward contracts .....ceeeeeeeeeeeeeiiivenenennns, — (3.4 — (3.4)
Cross-Currency SWap CONraCES .........coecemmiseesesmmereeeeeesnnsennes — (63.5) — (63.5)
Total financial liabilities .........cccceviiimmiiiii — (140.2 — (140.2)

The following table presents chanigefair value measurements for Level 3 items Far year ended 31 December

2010:
€ million
As at 1 January 2010 15.6
Total gains for the year
L 0T 01 = Vg T I 0 E PSP 1.0
Settlements (16.3)
AS at 31 DECEMDET 2000 ...ceitiiieie it mmme ettt e et e e e et et e e e b e et e e ah e e e e s e e e e e e et b r e e e e e b reee e e eenn 0.3
Total gains for the year included in profit or lossfor assets held at 31 December 2010 1.0

Total gains for the year includecpiofit or loss for available-for-sale equity saties amounted t€1.0m, relate
to assets held at 31 December 2010 and were retwitldn operating expenses.
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The Greek Competition Authority isgua decision on 25 January 2002, imposing a finghe Company of
approximately €2.9m for certain discount and relpatetices and required changes to the Companytsracial practices
with respect to placing coolers in certain locasi@nd lending these assets free of charge. On ri® 2004, the fine was
reduced on appeal to €1.8m. On 29 June 2005, tleekGCompetition Authority requested that the Comgpprovide
information on its commercial practices as a resiilta complaint by certain third parties regarditg Company’s
compliance with the decision of 25 January 2002.7actober 2005, the Company was served with notiappear before
the Greek Competition Authority. On 14 June 200@ Greek Competition Authority issued a decisiopadsing a daily
penalty of €5,869 for each day that the Comparggeliily failed to comply with the decision of 25 Jary 2002. On 31
August 2006, the Company deposited an amount &ng8treflecting the amount of the fine and applieatalx, with the
Greek authorities. As a result of this deposit,@lmenpany increased the charge to its 2006 finastééments in connection
to this case. On 23 November 2007, the Court ofeafp partly reversed and partly upheld the decisibthe Greek
Competition Authority reducing the amount of theefito €5.9m. The reduction of the fine by €2.8m weagnized in the
Company’s 2007 income statement. The Company hasadgd the decision of the Court of Appeals toektent it upholds
the fine, to the Supreme Administrative Court oe&re. The Company believes that it has substdatjal grounds for its
appeal against the judgment of the Court of Appe@lse Greek Competition Authority and one of thenany’s
competitors have also appealed the decision ofCinert of Appeals. There have been no material dgweénts in the
applicable litigation. Since 2008 when the case firas referred to the Supreme Administrative CoofrtGreece, hearings
have been postponed due to the backlog of pendisgscbefore the Court. Utilizing advice from outsieigal counsel, we
consider the risk of an increase to the amourth®fine and the possibility of further cash outftoms remote.

In relation to the Greek Competitidnthority’s decision of 25 January 2002, one &f tbompany’s competitors
has filed a lawsuit claiming damages in an amodi707m. The court of first instance heard the cas®1 January 2009
and subsequently rejected the lawsuit. The pléihaé appealed the judgment. At present, it ispassible to predict the
final outcome of this lawsuit or quantify the likedod or materiality of any potential liability amg from it. We have not
provided for any losses related to this case.

On 1 February 2012, the Greek Coitippt Commission conducted an inspection of the @any's Greek
operations as part of an investigation into therldjmay, juice and water categories. The Company &gwlicy of strict
compliance with Greek and EU competition law and itooperating fully with the Commission.

In the second quarter of 2010, tleebn Competition Authority opened an investigatiato the commercial
practices of our Serbian subsidiary for potentialise of dominance in the market for distributionaéfoholic and non-
alcoholic beverages. On December 2012, the aughadtiressed a statement of objections to our Serhiésidiary. We
believe that our Serbian subsidiary has not vidlaey Serbian competition rules and we will chaliemny such allegations
vigorously. At present, it is not possible to patdhe outcome of this investigation.

In 1992, our subsidiary Nigerian Bottling Compari}NBC") acquired a manufacturing facility in Nigerfeom
Vacunak, a Nigerian Company. In 1994, Vacunak fiethwsuit against NBC, alleging that a represeratf NBC had
orally agreed to rescind the sale agreement andadsenter into a lease agreement with Vacunakpaks of its lawsuit
Vacunak sought compensation for rent and loss sihless opportunities. NBC discontinued all usenheffacility in 1995. In
a judgement delivered by the Nigerian court oftfirstance on 28 June 2012, the court awarded \&cdamages in an
amount equivalent to approximately €7.0 million. GlBas filed an appeal against the judgment. Baseddwice from
NBC's outside legal counsel, we believe that itriikely that NBC will suffer material financial $ses from this case. We
have consequently not provided for any losseslatios to this case.

The tax filings of the Company atglsubsidiaries are routinely subjected to auditayauthorities in most of the
jurisdictions in which the Company conducts businéthese audits may result in assessments of awagittaxes. The
Company provides additional tax in relation to thecome of such tax assessments, to the extena tiiedbility is probable
and estimable.

The Company is also involved in various other lggalceedings. Management believes that any lightidit the
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Company that may arise as a result of these penelyad proceedings will not have a material adverféect on the results of
operations, cash flows, or the financial positibthe Company taken as a whole.

32. Commitments
(@) Operating leases

The total of future minimum leasg/p&nts under non-cancellable operating leases Be8&mber was as

follows:
2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
LESS than ONE YEAN .....ooiiiiii ittt ame e 50.3 55.1 62.6
Later than one year but less than five Years......c...ccccvveviiiiiieii e, 130.4 107.8 141.3
Later than fiVe YEAIS .....coiiiiiiiee et mm s 25.2 19.1 26.8
Future minimum [€aSe PAYMENTS .......uuuuiiiieeieeeeierieiriieii s s e e e e e e s s eeeeeees 205.9 182.0 230.7
The total operating lease chargetuded withinoperating expenses for the years ended 31 Decewdrer a:
follows:
2012 2011 2010
€ million € million € million
Plant and equipment 74.1 67.9 57.4
(0] 01T ¢ PP PPPPPTPPPPPPPRPPPRNt 45.0 47.2 46.1
Total operating [€aSe ChargeS.......cooeviii i eeeeaaeaee 119.1 115.1 103.5
(b) Capital commitments

At 31 December 2012 the Group haatahcommitments amounting €90.3m (2011: €93.9m and 2010: €66
respectively). Of this, €1.0m related to the Conymehare of the commitments of its joint ventuf2811:€2.5m and 201!
€0.5m respectively).

(c) Long-term commitments

At 31 December 2012 the Group hachro@ments to purchase rawaterials and receive services amountin
€300.5m (2011: €355.3m and 2010: €203.8m respéglivOf this, €8.9m related to the Company's shafethe
commitments of its joint ventures (2011: €7.8m a6d0: €13.2m respectively).
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33. Directors’ and senior management remuneration

The total remuneration paid to or accrued for dexand the senior management team for 2012 amduot
€11.4m (2011: €14.4m, 2010: €14.1m). Out of tHie &mount paid or accrued for stock option gramotsnd 2012 was
€3.0m (2011: €4.6m, 2010: €4.2m). Pension and eogiloyment benefits for directors and the senionagament team
during 2012 amounted to €1.0m (2011: €0.8m, 200®rh).

34. Related party transactions
(@) The Coca-Cola Company

As at 31 December 2012, TCCC indirectly owned 23(294.1: 23.2%, 2010: 23.2%) of the issued sharéaalagf
Coca-Cola Hellenic. TCCC considers Coca-Cola Halembe a ‘key bottler’ and has entered into leotsl agreements with
Coca-Cola Hellenic in respect of each of Coca-CGte#lenic’s territories. All the bottler's agreemsrentered into by TCCC
and Coca-Cola Hellenic are Standard Internatiordtl®&’s (‘SIB’) agreements. The terms of the bmtd agreements grant
Coca-Cola Hellenic the right to produce and thdwesiee right to sell and distribute the beverage3@CC in each of the
countries Coca-Cola Hellenic operates. Consequetitiga-Cola Hellenic is obliged to purchase allagmrate for TCCC's
beverages from TCCC, or its designee, in the orginaurse of business. On 10 October 2012, TCCEeagto extend the
term of the bottlers’ agreements for further teargeuntil 2023. On 29 December 2008, Kar-Tess Hgldind TCCC agreed
to extend their existing shareholders’ agreemehgreby the combined shareholdings of Kar-Tess IHgldind TCCC will
not fall below 44% for the period up to January £2@hd not below 40% for the period thereafter udtiiDecember 2018.
Refer also to note 36.

TCCC owns or has applied for the trademarks tteititly its beverages in each of the countries Gook Hellenic
operates. TCCC has authorised Coca-Cola Hellerdccartain of its subsidiaries to use the tradem@dca-Cola’ in their
corporate names.

Total purchases of concentrate, finished produstsaither materials from TCCC and its subsidiariesng) 2012
amounted to €1,305.4m (2011: €1,300.8m, 2010: 81236).

TCCC makes discretionary marketing contributions @@ca-Cola Hellenic’'s operating subsidiaries. The
participation in shared marketing agreements IBGEC's discretion and, where co-operative arrangesnare entered into,
marketing expenses are shared. Such arrangemehidarthe development of marketing programmes ¢tmnpte TCCC's
beverages. Total net contributions received fron€CCJor marketing and promotional incentives durihg year amounted
to €70.6m (2011: €76.5m, 2010: €60.8m). Contritngidor price support and marketing and promotiacehpaigns in
respect of specific customers are recorded in @essevenue as an offset to promotional incentpad to customers. In
2012, such contributions totaled €51.2m (2011: @#492010: €48.8m). Contributions for general mangprogrammes are
recorded as an offset to selling expenses. In 281¢h contributions made by TCCC to Coca-Cola Hadléotalled €20.1m
(2011: €21.9m, 2010: €19.8m) and the contributiamfisCoca-Cola Hellenic to TCCC totalled €0.7m (20€2:0m,
2010: €7.8m). TCCC has also customarily made amiditipayments for marketing and advertising diyettdl suppliers as
part of the shared marketing arrangements. Theoptiop of direct and indirect payments, made at T&Qiscretion, will
not necessarily be the same from year to yeardtitian, there were no support payments receivethfTCCC for the
placement of cold drink equipment for the year eh8lé December 2012 (2011: €14.6m, 2010: nil).

During the year, the Group sold €25.1m of finishgdods and raw materials to TCCC (2011: €32.8m,
2010: €19.0m).

Other income primarily comprises rent, facility aotther items of €1.2m (2011: €1.2m, 2010: €14.3n9 a toll-
filling relationship in Poland of €18.0m (2011: €88, 2010: €17.6m). Other expenses related toitfacibsts charged by
TCCC and shared costs included in operating exgesrs@unted to €1.5m (2011: €4.0m, 2010: nil).

During 2012 the Group did not make any purchasdsaothise rights (2011: nil, 2010: €4.4m) and kad receive
any income from the sale of available-for-sale @steTCCC (2011: nil, 2010: €4.9m).
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As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a total atrawm from TCCC of €49.6m (2011: €56.6m, 2010: 841,
and a total amount due to TCCC of €154.0m of trpdgables (2011: €162.1m, 2010: €163.1m) and nor didlgilities
(2011: €7.6m, 2010: nil).

(b) Frigoglass S.A. (‘Frigoglass’)

Frigoglass, a company listed on the Athens Exchaimgy@ manufacturer of coolers, glass bottles amuavies.
Frigoglass is related to Coca-Cola Hellenic by veéy14.1% ownership by the parent of Kar-Tess Hald{gee below).
Frigoglass has a controlling interest in Frigoglastustries Limited, a company in which Coca-Colallehic has a 23.9%
effective interest, through its investment in NigarBottling Company plcréfer to Note &

Coca-Cola Hellenic entered into a supply agreemdht Frigoglass for the purchase of cooling equiptria 1999.
The supply agreement was extended in 2004 and, reosttly, in 2008, on substantially similar terr@eca-Cola Hellenic
has the status of most favoured customer of Fragsglon a non-exclusive basis, provided that ihiobtat least 60% (at
prices which are negotiated on an annual basisvandh must be competitive) of its annual requiretaefor cooling
equipment. The current agreement expires on 31Dieee2013.

During 2012, the Group made purchases of €137.9h1(26147.7m, 2010: €100.5m) of coolers, glasddmtnd
crowns from Frigoglass and its subsidiaries andunmezl maintenance and other expenses of €9.8m (2613m,
2010: €5.6m). In addition the Group recorded otheome of €0.8m (2011: €1.0m, 2010: €0.5m). AslaD&cember 2012,
Coca-Cola Hellenic owed €21.4m (2011: €14.3m, 2@13.8m) to, and was owed €1.2m (2011: €1.2m, 2012m) by
Frigoglass.

(c) Directors

Mr George A. David, Mr Haralambos K. Leventis, Mndstasios P. Leventis and Mr Anastassis G. Davieé ha
been nominated by Kar-Tess Holding to the boar€afa-Cola Hellenic. Mr Irial Finan and Mr John Hemhave been
nominated by TCCC to the board of Coca-Cola Hetlemhere have been no transactions between Coeatxlenic and
the directors except for remuneratioafér to Note 33

(d) Other
Beverage Partners Worldwide (‘BPW’)

BPW is a 50/50 joint venture between TCCC and Me&lring 2012, the Group purchased inventory fE@RW
amounting to €101.5m (2011: €99.6m, 2010: €89.4mj did not record any income (2011: nil, 2010: f9).1As at
31 December 2012, Coca-Cola Hellenic owed €4.9m1284.4m, 2010: €4.4m) to and was not owed any usmso
(2011: €0.1m, 2010: nil) by BPW.

Kar-Tess Holding

As at 31 December 2012, Kar-Tess Holding owned%32011: 23.3%, 2010: 23.3%) of the issued shapéaiaf
Coca-Cola Hellenic.

On 6 December, 2010 Kar-Tess Holding transferred®2254 of Coca-Cola Hellenic shares and votigits
representing 6.13% of the total number of sharesvaning rights of Coca-Cola Hellenic by transfegiits 100% owned
subsidiaries under the trade names “Sammy LLC",ckyu70 LLC", “Zoe 20 LLC", “Kooky LLC", “Utopia Busness
Company Ltd.”, “Harmonia Commercial S.A.”, “lce @oHoldings Limited” and “Red & White Holdings Lingt” to
entities and individuals, who were either ultimbtneficial owners of Kar-Tess Holding or have baeminated by them.
None of the above persons owns individually morantl2% of the outstanding shares and voting rigiit€aca-Cola
Hellenic.
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Leventis Overseas & AG Leventis (Nigeria) PLC (tleventis Companies’)

The Leventis Companies are related to Coca-Coldehiel by way of common directors, as a result oficlrh
significant influence is considered to exist. Dgria012, the Group purchased €20.3m (2011: €14.910:210.8m) of
finished goods and other materials from the Lege@thmpanies. Furthermore the Group did not recoydsales of finished
goods and raw materials to the Leventis Compan2€.1( nil, 2010:€0.1m) and incurred rental expense<€2.1m
(2011: €2.8m, 2010: €0.6m) from the Leventis Conganin addition during 2012 the Group incurredeotbxpenses of
€0.3m (2011: €0.3m, 2010: €0.4m) and did not recotder income (2011:€0.3m, 2010: €1.0m) with thevdntis
Companies. As at 31 December 2012, the Group owzf8n€ (2011: €3.8m, 2010: €1.3m) to, and was owedng0
(2011: €0.2m, 2010: €0.8m) by the Leventis Companie

Other Coca-Cola bottlers

The Group sold €0.5m of finished goods (2011: €1.@010: €1.3m), purchased €5.5m of finished goods
(2011: €1.9m, 2010: €0.5m), incurred expenses ofrf80(2011: €0.1m, 2010: €0.1m) and recorded nonrec¢2011: nil,
2010: €0.3m) from other Coca-Cola bottlers overchiifCCC has significant influence. Furthermore nigi”2012 the Group
received reimbursement for direct marketing expgmseurred of €0.2m (2011: €0.1m, 2010: €0.8m) fratimer Coca-Cola
bottlers. At 31 December 2012, the receivables feuth Coca-Cola bottlers were €0.2m (2011: €0.33402€1.5m) and
payables to other Coca-Cola bottlers were €0.2rhY26il, 2010: nil).

Other related parties

The Group purchased €1.3m (2011: nil, 2010: nilyax# materials and finished goods and did not perfany
purchases of fixed assets from other related gaf®i@11: nil, 2010: €0.1m). Further, the Group med expenses of €1.9m
(2011: €1.8m, 2010: €1.4m) and recorded incomedafré (2011: €0.3m, 2010: nil). At 31 December 2Gh2, Group owed
€0.5m (2011: €0.2m, 2010: nil) to, and was owed ®0(2011: €0.4m, 2010: €0.8m) by other relatedigsirt
(e) Joint Arrangements

The Group purchased €31.0m of finished goods (2628:9m, 2010: €62.3m), incurred other expense20afm
(2011: €0.1m, 2010: €0.1m) and recorded other ircofrE0.2m from joint arrangements (2011: €0.2nM,@2&0.1m). As at
31 December 2012, the Group owed €67.5m (2011561,52010: €15.3m) to, and was owed €19.5m (2017:4&id, 2010:
€17.8m) by joint arrangements ventures, which ediatcurrent and non-current portion.

There are no significant transactions with othé&atesl parties for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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35. List of principal Group companies

The following are the principal Group companie8htDecember:

% ownership

Country of registration 2012 2011 2010

3E (Cyprus) LIMited .........ccooviiiiiiiiiiieieeeece e Cyprus 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
AS Coca-Cola HBC E€Sti........uuviiiiiiiieiiiiiimiiiieieieeee e Estonia 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Bankya Mineral Waters Bottling Company EOOD............ Bulgaria 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Brewinvest S.A. GroUp.........c.ccoeveviieeiceeeeeee e, Greece 50.0% 50.0%  50.0%
BrewTech B.V. Grouf® ........c.ccooiiiiie e, The Netherlands 50.0% — —
CC Beverages Holdings 11 B.V...........cc.vvmmmmmmevvieeeeeeeininens The Netherlands 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
CCB Management Services GmbH ..............cccceeemevveeenn... Austria 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
CCHBC Armenia CJISC.......coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e Armenia 90.0%  90.0% 90.0%
CCHBC BUIgaria AD .........ccooeuiiiiieeree s e e sneennananaaaaees Bulgaria 85.4% 85.4% 85.4%
CCHBC Insurance (Guernsey) Limited ceeeeeme GUEINSEY 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
CCHBC IT Services Limited ..........ccccevveeeiecvcvieriiieeeeee e, Bulgaria 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola Beverages Austria GmbH ...........ccceeeecivivieenn, Austria 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola Beverages Belorussiya........... .o e eeeeveeeeennes Belarus 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola Beverages Ceska republika, S.[.0..........uvvennnn, Czech Republic 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola Beverages Ukraine Ltd ...........cceccceervvviennnnnn. Ukraine 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola Bottlers Chisinau S.R.L. .........ccccccee...o o oeen.... MoldoOva 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola Bottlers 1asi Srl ...........evveiimmemeeeeee e Romania 99.2% 99.2% 99.2%
Coca-Cola Bottling Company (Dublin) Limited................. Republic of Ireland 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC Balkan Holding B.N? .........c.ccccoooiininnnne. The Netherlands — 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC-Srbija d.0.8..........cocoovvieeecieeeee e Serbia 100.0% 100.0%  91.2%
Coca-Cola HBC B-H d.o.0. Sarajevo weeeeeenwenee. BOSNIA @and Herzegovina 100.0% 100.0%  100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC Finance B.V..........ccccuiiiiiieieiciiiiiieiee, The Netherlands 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC FIiNance PlC.........uuvvveeeeicccmemeeiiiiieeeeenn England and Wales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC Greece SALE. ... Greece 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC Hrvatska d.0.0. .............eueceemmeveeiiiineeenne Croatia 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC Hungary Ltd..........ccoooooimeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e Hungary 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC Ireland Limited ...............oceeemecieicnvinnnnnnn. Republic of Ireland 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC Italia S.r.l. ..ocoeveeeeiiiiiceeeee e, Italy 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC KOSOVO L.L.C. .....ovviiiiieiii e Kosovo 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC Northern Ireland Limited........................ Northern Ireland 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC Polska Sp. Z 0.0. ..cccccvvvvvieverieeecieee e, Poland 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC Romania Ltd ...........coccvvieriiiaeeiiiieee, Romania 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC Slovenija d.0.0. ......ccoeeeeieiieeeeee e, Slovenia 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC Slovenska republika, S..0....cccceeeeeennenn. Slovakia 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Coca-Cola HBC Switzerland LI ...............ccccoevevivriemen. Switzerland 99.9% 99.9% 99.9%
Coca-Cola Hellenic Bottling Company-Crna Gora d.,0.0

POAGONCH ... Montenegro 100.0% 100.0%  91.2%
Coca-Cola Hellenic Business Service Organizafion......... Bulgaria 100.0% 100.0% —
Coca-Cola Hellenic Procurement GmbH.............c....cce.ee Austria 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Deepwaters Investments Ltd.............occcceeeveeeeveevevvvinnnnnnn. Cyprus 50.0% 50.0% 50.0%
Dunlogan Limite® ............ccooviiiieeee e Northern Ireland — 100.0% 100.0%
Lanitis Bros Ltd ........ccooveiiiiiiiiiieiis e a e, Cyprus 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
LLC Coca-Cola HBC EUrasia.........cccceeeeeeiieeeeam e Russia 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
MTV West Kishinev Bottling Company S.A...................... Moldova 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Multon Z.A.O. Grouf™@ ..o, Russia 50.0% 50.0%  50.0%
Nigerian Bottling Company Ltd? ............ccoovoiiiiii e Nigeria 100.0% 100.0%  66.4%
Panpak Limited ... Republic of Ireland — 100.0% 100.0%
SIA Coca-Cola HBC LatVia.........c.ceveeiiiiieeeamiiieee e Latvia 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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35. List of principal Group companies

% ownership

Country of registration 2012 2011 2010
Star Bottling Limited ...........cccvvevveeee s Cyprus 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Star Bottling Services Corp. .....vevieieeeeeeeieieeeeees s, British Virgin Islands 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Tsakiris S.A. e, ceemme. Greece 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
UAB Coca-Cola HBC Lietuva.............cccovvveeevemniiiniiiiinnnnn, Lithuania 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Valser Services A .........ccoooiveviiececeer e Switzerland 99.9% 99.9% —
Vendit LEd @, ... Republic of Ireland 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Yoppi HUNGary Kft. ... e e e Hungary 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

@)
@)

®)

)

(5)

6)
)
@®)
9)

(10)

()

(12)

Joint arrangement.

The BrewTech B.V Group of companies is engagethénbiottling and distribution of soft drinks and beeFYROM. In 2010, 2011 and up until
April 2012 Brewtech B.V. Group formed part of theeRinvest S.A Group.

CCHBC Balkan Holding BV was merged into its paremnpany, CC Beverages Holdings Il BV, effectiveNigvember 2012.

On 25 June 2010, the Group initiated a tender aéfggurchase all of remaining shares of the nortrotiimg interest in Coca-Cola HBC — Srbija
A.D., Zemun ("CCH Serbia”). The tender offer wasmpleted on 2 August 2010 and resulted in the @Ginareasing its stake in CCH Serbia to
91.2% as of 31 December 2010. In 2011, the Grogpieed all the remaining interest in the subsidi@efer to Note 28).

Effective from 1 August 2012, Elxym S.A. has beenamed to “Coca-Cola HBC Greece S.A.l.C". On 2%R012, CCH'’s annual general meeting
of shareholders approved the transfer of Greekabipas’ operating assets and liabilities to Coc#aCG$BC Greece S.A.I.C, in accordance with
Greek Law 2166/1993. In connection therewith, tiamdformation balance sheet of 31 March 2012, ¢lspactive audit report and the draft deed
relating to the transaction were approved and #oessary authorisations for its execution and sssiam to the competent authorities were granted.
During 2010, Coca-Cola Beverages A.G. was renam&@bta-Cola HBC Switzerland Ltd.

Incorporated in 2011.

On September 2012, Dunlogan Limited was merged @@Beverages Holdings Il B.V.

On 20 April, 2011 the Group along with TCCC, aceqdithrough Multon Z.A.O., MS Foods UAB, a compahgttowns 100% of the equity of
Vlanpak FE, a fruit juice and nectar producer iteBgs (refer to Note 28).

On 8 June 2011, the Board of Directors of the Camsasubsidiary Nigerian Bottling Company plc (“NBQesolved to propose a scheme of
arrangement between NBC and its minority sharehs|devolving the cancellation of part of the shaapital of NBC. The transaction was
approved by the Board of Directors and General iéde of NBC on 8 June 2011 and 22 July 2011 re$gelgtand resulted in acquisition of the
remaining 33.6% of the voting shares of NBC briggihe Group’s interest in the subsidiary to 100%e Transaction was completed in September
2011 (refer to Note 28).

Dissolved, effective 7 March 2012.

Dissolved, effective 1 January 2013.
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36. Post Balance Sheet Events (continued)

On 14 January 2013, the Group acquired approxima#&D% in Coca-Hellenic Bottling Company BulgafiB for
a consideration of approximately €13.2 million ahds its overall participation in the Bulgarian sigliary is now 99.39%.

By virtue of a tax law that was enacted in Greeoe28 January 2013, the Greek corporate incomeatxwas
increased to 26% (from 20%) for accounting yeaastisy as of 1 January 2013 onwards. This rateeas® had not been
substantively enacted at the balance sheet datetardfore, is not included in 2012 financial staénts. The effect of the
changes enacted by Parliament on 23 January 20aRIwe to increase the deferred tax asset proadi¢ide balance sheet
date by €5.0m.

On 22 February 2013, Coca-Cola HBC AG (“CCHBC") aunced that the existing shareholders’ agreement of
Kar-Tess Holding and TCCC, as well as the relatigmagreement relating to Coca-Cola Hellenic emténéo in connection
with the acquisition of Coca-Cola Beverages pldg}ienic Bottling Company S.A. in 2000, will ternaite upon settlement
of the voluntary share exchange offer and will m@trenewed in relation to CCHBC.

During the first months of 2013 the Group incurgslém of restructuring costs before tax, in itsaklished
countries.
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